CALENDAR FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

AND FOR SPECIAL DISTRICTS, AGENCIES, AND AUTHORITIES GOVERNED BY THE BOARD

BOARD CHAMBERS, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 1025 ESCOBAR STREET
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA 94553-1229

JOHN GIOIA, CHAIR, 1ST DISTRICT

FEDERAL D. GLOVER, VICE CHAIR, 5TH DISTRICT
CANDACE ANDERSEN, 2ND DISTRICT

DIANE BURGIS, 3rRD DISTRICT

KEN CARLSON, 4TH DISTRICT

MONICA NINO, CLERK OF THE BOARD AND COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, (925) 655-2075

The public may attend the Board meeting in person and remotely via call-in or Zoom. Board
meetings are televised live on Comcast Cable 27, ATT/U-Verse Channel 99, and WAVE Channel
32, and can be seen live online at www.contracosta.ca.gov. Meetings of the Board are
closed-captioned in real time.

Persons who wish to address the Board during public comment or with respect to an item on the
agenda may comment in person or may call in during the meeting by dialing 888-278-0254
followed by the access code 843298#. A caller should indicate they wish to speak on an agenda
item by pushing "#2" on their phone. Persons who wish to address the Board in person should
complete the form provided for that purpose. Access via Zoom is also available using the
following link: https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/87344719204. Those participating via Zoom should
indicate they wish to speak on an agenda item by using the “raise your hand” feature in the Zoom
app. To provide contact information, please contact Clerk of the Board at
clerkoftheboard@cob.cccounty.us or call 925-655-2000. A Spanish language interpreter is
available to assist Spanish-speaking callers.

Public comments generally will be limited to two minutes per speaker. Your patience is
appreciated.

A lunch break or closed session may be called at the discretion of the Board Chair. Staff reports
related to open session items on the agenda are also accessible online at www.contracosta.ca.gov.

AGENDA
March 7, 2023

9:00 A.M. Convene, call to order and opening ceremonies.

Closed Session

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Gov. Code § 54957.6)

1. Agency Negotiators: Monica Nino.



http://www.contracosta.ca.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcccounty-us.zoom.us%2Fj%2F87344719204&data=04%7C01%7CJoellen.Bergamini%40cao.cccounty.us%7C4d9b6227de954fe4fdb808d9b8d16d66%7C76c13a07612f4e06a2f4783d69dc4cdb%7C0%7C0%7C637744031886981006%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=PKdsuFsellHoX%2FaeSL%2FlrRto8FhurbtdJAV74tAjvI8%3D&reserved=0
mailto:clerkoftheboard@cob.cccounty.us
http://www.contracosta.ca.gov

Employee Organizations: Public Employees Union, Local 1; AFSCME Locals 512 and 2700;
California Nurses Assn.; SEIU Locals 1021 and 2015; District Attorney Investigators’ Assn.;
Deputy Sheriffs Assn.; United Prof. Firefighters I.A.F.F., Local 1230; Physicians’ & Dentists’
Org. of Contra Costa; Western Council of Engineers; United Chief Officers Assn.; Contra Costa
County Defenders Assn.; Contra Costa County Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn.; Prof. & Tech.
Engineers IFPTE, Local 21; and Teamsters Local 856.

2. Agency Negotiators: Monica Nino.

Unrepresented Employees: All unrepresented employees.

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Initiation of litigation pursuant to Gov. Code, § 54956.9(d)(4): [One potential case]

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Gov. Code, § 54956.9(d)(2): [One potential case.]

Claim of S.B.

1. S.B. Claim

D. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT (Gov. Code, § 54957) — beginning at 11 a.m.
Title: County Counsel

Inspirational Thought: “There shall never be another season of silence until women have the
same rights men have on this green earth.” Susan B. Anthony, American Women’s Rights
Activist

CONSIDER CONSENT ITEMS (Items listed as C.1 through C.59 on the following agenda) —
Items are subject to removal from Consent Calendar by request of any Supervisor. Items
removed from the Consent Calendar will be considered with the Discussion Items.

PRESENTATIONS (5 Minutes Each)

PR.1 PRESENTATION proclaiming March 2023 as National Red Cross Month.
(Supervisor Gioia)

PR.2 PRESENTATION proclaiming March 2023 as Women’s History Month and

recognizing March 8, 2023, as International Women's Day. (Supervisors Burgis
and Andersen)

PR.3 PRESENTATION proclaiming March 2023 as Prescription Drug Awareness
Month. (Supervisor Burgis)

DISCUSSION ITEMS




HEARING on the itemized costs of abatement for property located in
unincorporated Contra Costa County at 0 Stone Rd., Bethel Island, California
(Thanh Nguyen, Owner). (Jason Crapo, Conservation and Development
Department).

HEARING on the itemized costs of abatement for property located at 4150
Appian Way, El Sobrante, California (Joseph & Sofia New, Owner). (Jason
Crapo, Conservation and Development Department).

D. 3 CONSIDER Consent Items previously removed.

D. 4 PUBLIC COMMENT (2 Minutes/Speaker)

D. 5 CONSIDER reports of Board members.

ADJOURN

CONSENT ITEMS

Road and Transportation

C.1

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/59 approving and authorizing the Public Works
Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of Oak View Avenue between
Colusa Avenue and Santa Fe Avenue, on March 18, 2023 from 6:00 a.m. through
11:00 a.m., for the purpose of the Colusa Circle 5K Run, Kensington area. (No
fiscal impact)

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/60 approving and authorizing the Public Works
Director, or designee, to partially close the east bound lane only of Parker Avenue
between st Street and 7th Street, on March 11, 2023 from 8:00 a.m. through
10:00 a.m., for the purpose of the Rodeo Baseball Association Opening Day
Parade, Rodeo area. (No fiscal impact)

Engineering Services

C.3

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/58 approving the Parcel Map and Subdivision
Agreement for minor subdivision MS22-00006, for a project being developed by
David Brothers Construction, Inc., as recommended by the Public Works Director,
Alamo area. (No fiscal impact)

Special Districts & County Airports




C.4

C.6

C.7

C.8

C.9

C.10

C.11

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to allocate
up to $61,000 from County Service Area R-7 funds for the Alamo “2023 Summer
Concert Series” and Alamo “2023 Movie Under the Stars” events at Livorna Park,
Alamo area. (100% County Service Area R-7 Funds)

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Flood Control and
Water Conservation District, APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, or
designee, to execute a contract amendment with GEI Consultants, Inc., to extend
the term through March 18, 2024, for on-call facility design and conditions
assessment, with no change to the payment limit, Countywide. (No fiscal impact)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a
month-to-month hangar rental agreement with Peter Moody, for a north-facing
hangar at Buchanan Field Airport effective February 28, 2023, in the monthly
amount of $380, Pacheco area (100% Airport Enterprise Fund).

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Fire Chief,
to execute a purchase order with Stryker, in an amount not to exceed $215,000, for
the purchase of four LIFEPAK defibrillators and accompanying equipment.

(100% CCCFPD EMS Transport Fund)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute an
amended and restated lease with Dale Village Apartment Company, LP, to extend
the term of the lease for the property located at 45 John Glenn Drive, Concord,
through March 2073, at an initial annual rent of $500,400, with rent increases
every three years. (100% Airport Enterprise Fund)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a
month-to-month hangar rental agreement with Rushmore Aviation, LLC., for a
south-facing hangar at Buchanan Field Airport effective February 24, 2023, in the
monthly amount of $359, Pacheco area (100% Airport Enterprise Fund).

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a Change
Order with Golden State Fire Apparatus, in the amount of $30,075, for the
purchase of one (1) Wildland Firefighting Engine and increasing the maximum
expenditure amount under the contract to not exceed $423,075. (100% CCCFPD
General Fund)

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Fire Chief,
to execute a purchase order with American Medical Response, in an amount not to
exceed $983,000, for the purchase of ambulance equipment. (100% CCCFPD
EMS Transport Fund)



C.12

C.13

C.14

C.15

C.16

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a contract
with Locality Media, Inc., dba First Due Corporation, in an amount not to exceed
$486,500 for fire prevention software, for the period of March 15, 2023, through
March 14, 2026, with two one-year extension options to March 14, 2028. (100%
CCCFPD General Fund)

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a contract
with GOGov, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $4,188 per year, for the period of
March 15, 2023, through March 14, 2026, with two one-year extension options to
March 14, 2028, for a total cost of $26,110, to provide record tracking software
for weed abatement. (100% CCCFPD General Fund)

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (7300): APPROVE Appropriation

and Revenue Adjustment No.005051 authorizing new revenue in the amount of
$44,900 from the Contra Costa Community College District and appropriation of
the funds to the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (7300) for
maintenance of training facilities. (100% CCCFPD General Fund)

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a contract
amendment with Vision33 Inc. to extend the termination date from March 10,
2023 to March 31, 2025, and increase the payment limit by $185,000 to a new
payment limit of $825,000, to provide for hosting and support of the Calytera
Amanda fire inspection software system. (100% CCCFPD General Fund)

Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District,
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, on behalf of the Contra
Costa County Fire Protection District (District), to make a payment to the State of
California Department of Health Care Services in an amount not to exceed
$547,586 for the Ground Emergency Medical Transportation Quality Assurance
Fee for ambulance transports provided by the District in the months of October
2022 through December 2022. (100% CCCFPD EMS Transport Fund)

Claims, Collections & Litigation

C.17

DENY the claims filed by Lorrie J. Ceccarelli, Roy S. Halleybone, Harry
Imperial-Bobis, John Muir Medical Center, W.C.(2), Helena Lee, Antonio Lopez,
Susannah M. McDavid, Mercury Insurance, State Farm Mutual for Lashun
Shumake-Ward, Erica Tiffany Thomas for H.A.L., and Romelyn Bayaua for R.D.
DENY an amended claim filed by Harry Imperial-Bobis. DENY a late claim filed
by Chung Jin Park.



Honors & Proclamations

C.18

C.19

C.20

C.21

Ordinances

C.22

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/64 proclaiming March 2023 as National Red Cross
Month, as recommended by Supervisor Gioia.

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/62 declaring March 2023 as Prescription Drug
Abuse Awareness Month, as recommended by Supervisor Burgis.

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/63 recognizing March 10, 2023 as the 64th
Anniversary of the Tibetan National Uprising and Affirm Support of the People of
Tibet, as recommended by Supervisor Gioia.

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/67 proclaiming March 2023 as Women’s History
Month, and recognizing March 8, 2023, as International Women's Day in Contra
Costa County, as recommended by Supervisors Burgis and Andersen.

ADOPT Ordinance No. 2023-06 to prohibit commercial vehicles with a gross
weight of more than 20,000 pounds at all times on Fred Jackson Way, Market
Avenue, Chesley Avenue, Gertrude Avenue, First Street, Fifth Street, and Sixth
Street, as recommended by the Public Works Director, North Richmond area.
(100% Local Road Funds)

Appointments & Resignations

C.23

C.24

C.25

REAPPOINT Roosevelt Gibson, Jr. to the Education Seat and Eric Maldonado to
Community Seat #3 on the Advisory Council on Equal Employment Opportunity
(ACEEO) both terms to expire on November 30, 2025, as recommended by the
Equity Committee.

REAPPOINT Lara DeLaney to the Management Seat #1 on the Advisory Council
on Equal Employment Opportunity for a term ending November 30, 2025, as
recommended by the County Administrator.

ACCEPT the resignation of Dylan Johnson, DECLARE a vacancy in the District
IV Seat on the Alcohol and Other Drugs Advisory Board for a term ending June
30, 2023, and DIRECT the Clerk of the Board to post the vacancy, as
recommended by Supervisor Carlson.

Intergovernmental Relations




C.26

As a condition of a performance payment to the Contra Costa Transportation
Authority in the amount of $280,000, APPROVE proposal of the Contra Costa
Transportation Authority to form a partnership with a new or existing nonprofit
community-based organization as the type of Coordinating Entity to be
established to implement the recommendations of the Accessible Transportation
Strategic Plan, as recommended by the Transportation, Water, and Infrastructure
Committee. (100% Measure X sales tax funds)

Personnel Actions

C.27

C.28

C.29

C.30

C31

C.32

C.33

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 25592, to establish the Food Service
Worker Series (Generalist, Specialist, and Lead) represented classifications,
reclassify positions, and reallocate the salaries of the Institutional Services Worker
series and the Environmental Services Supervisor in the Health Services
Department. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 26119 to add one Public Defender
Client Services Specialist (represented) position and one Legal Assistant
(represented) position in the Public Defender's Office. (100% 2011 Realignment
funding)

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 26124 to add one Employment and
Human Services Division Manager (represented) position in the Children and
Family Services Bureau of the Employment and Human Services Department for
a limited period through July 31, 2023, pending the announced retirement of an
incumbent in the Children and Family Services Bureau. (72% State, 9% Federal,
19% County)

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 26120 to add two Systems
Accountant [ (represented) positions in the Auditor-Controller's Office. (100%
General Fund)

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 26126 to add two Information
Systems Programmer Analyst IV (represented) positions and one Information

Systems Specialist III (represented) position in the Department of Information
Technology. (100% General Fund)

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 26125 to reallocate the salary for the
Senior Hydrologist (represented) classification from salary plan and grade ZAS5
1949 to salary plan and grade ZAS5 1950. (100% Charges for Service)

APPROVE placement of incumbent (EE# 71261) to the position of Board of
Supervisors Assistant- Chief Assistant (J995) for Supervisorial District IV at Step
3 of the salary range, effective January 3, 2023, as recommended by Supervisor
Carlson. (100% General Fund; Budgeted)



Grants & Contracts

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreements between the County and the
following agencies for receipt of fund and/or services:

C.34

C.35

C.36

C.37

C.38

C.39

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Department
Director, or designee, to execute an agreement amendment (C2AP Amendment 1)
with the State of California Department of Social Services, to increase the

payment limit by $250,319 to a new payment limit of $3,817,333 for CalWORKSs
Stage 2 childcare program, with no change to the term. (State 58%, Federal 42%)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute
an agreement with EV Charging Solutions, Inc., to design and implement direct
current fast charging stations at specific County-owned library locations and other
facilities effective March 7, 2023 through December 31, 2025, as recommended
by the Sustainability Committee, Countywide. (100% No fiscal impact)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Conservation and Development Director, or
designee, to apply for and accept an amount not to exceed $486,915 from the
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Caltrans Sustainable Communities Planning Grant program
to conduct a study for the Bay Point Enhanced Bicycle and Pedestrian
Improvements Project. ($63,085 required match to be funded 50% Road Fund and
50% Measure J Fund)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, Flood Control and Water
Conservation District, or designee, to submit a San Francisco Bay Water Quality
Improvement Fund Bipartisan Infrastructure Law grant application to the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency in the amount of $1,000,000, for the Contra
Costa Clean Water Program’s Clean Watersheds for All project, Countywide. (No
County Match)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to
execute on behalf of the County, a grant agreement with Blue Cross of California
Partnership Plan, Inc. (dba Anthem Blue Cross), to pay the County an amount not
to exceed $650,000 for the Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program to

support homeless services for the period December 1, 2022 through December 31,
2023. (No County match)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee to
execute a contract with the California Board of State and Community Corrections,
for the Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Grant Program, in an amount not
to exceed $1,000,000 for the implementation of substance use disorders treatment
at the West County Detention Facility for the period July 1, 2022 through October
1, 2024. (25% County match, budgeted)



C.40

C41

ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/51 to approve and authorize the Employment and
Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract amendment #1 with
the California Department of Community Services and Development to extend the
term from March 31, 2023 to June 30, 2023, with no change in the funding
amount of $4,692,311 for the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program.
(100% Federal)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to
execute a contract with the Contra Costa County Office of Education, to pay the
County an amount not to exceed $123,283 to provide a substance abuse counselor
to screen incarcerated persons at the West County Detention Facility for substance
use treatment for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. (No County
match)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreement between the County and the
following parties as noted for the purchase of equipment and/or services:

C.42

C43

C.44

C.45

C.46

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute
a contract amendment with Waters Moving & Storage, Inc., to extend the term
through December 31, 2025, for on-call moving and storage services, with no
change to the payment limit, Countywide. (No fiscal impact)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Defender, or designee, to execute a
contract with Rubicon Programs, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $987,068 to
provide civil legal and service navigation services for Holistic Intervention
Partnership (HIP) participants, for the period March 1, 2023 through February 28,
2026. (100% State)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to
execute a contract with Jennifer Lee Miles, M.D, in an amount not to exceed
$351,438 to provide outpatient psychiatric care services to children and
adolescents for the period April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024. (50% Federal
Medi-Cal, 50% Mental Health Realignment)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to
execute a contract with Robin Wendy Asher, M.D., in an amount not to exceed
$219,648 to provide outpatient psychiatric care services to children and
adolescents in central Contra Costa County for the period April 1, 2023 through
March 31, 2024. (50% Federal Medi-Cal, 50% Mental Health Realignment)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to
execute a contract amendment with Allison Smith, MFT, effective March 1, 2023,
to increase the payment limit by $24,000 to a new payment limit of $230,000 for
additional outpatient mental health services for beneficiaries in East and Central

Contra Costa County ages 11 years and older with no change in the original term
through June 30, 2023. (50% Federal Medi-Cal, 50% State Mental Health



C.47

C.48

C.49

C.50

C.s1

Other Actions

C.52

C.S3

C.54

Realignment)

RATIFY the Employment and Human Services Director’s execution of the 2019
Medi-Cal Privacy and Security Agreement No. 19-07 with California Department
of Health Care Services, and APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and
Human Services Director or designee to execute an amendment thereto to extend
the term to the earlier of March 1, 2024 or the date a successor Agreement is
entered. (No fiscal impact)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute
the Agreement and Statement of Work with ePlus Technology, Inc., in an amount
not to exceed $161,252 for Rubrik software installation, configuration,
maintenance and training for the period February 1, 2023 through January 31,
2026, Countywide. (100% Various Local Road, Flood Control and Special
Districts Funds)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a
contract with Fresh Eyes Development to provide social media management

services, in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for the term of April 1, 2023 to
March 31, 2024. (100% General Fund)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a
contract with Robert Half, Inc. (dba Accountemps), in an amount not to exceed

$100,000 for temporary administrative and accounting services due to vacancies
for the period March 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023. (100% General Fund)

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a
contract with Robert Half International Inc., doing business through its technology
practice group, in an amount not to exceed $1,680,480 to provide temporary
staffing for the period March 1, 2023, through February 28, 2025. (100% General
Fund)

APPROVE referrals to the Transportation, Water and Infrastructure Committee
for action in 2023, as recommended by the Committee. (No fiscal impact)

ACCEPT the 2022 annual report from the Transportation, Water and
Infrastructure Committee, as recommended by the Committee.

ACCEPT the Treasurer’s Quarterly Investment Report as of December 31, 2022,
as recommended by the County Treasurer-Tax Collector.



C.55 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee to
execute a contract with Leica Microsystems, Inc., in an amount not to exceed
$596,174 for the purchase of tissue sample equipment and reagent supplies for the
Clinical Laboratory at Contra Costa Regional Center, for the period January 4,
2023 through January 3, 2028. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)

C.56 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, or designee, to pay an
amount up to $14,838 to Meals on Wheels Diablo Region for meal delivery
services to homebound seniors provided in good faith and during the period July 1,
2022 through September 30, 2022. (100% Federal Older Americans Act)

C.57 CONTINUE the emergency action originally taken by the Board of Supervisors
on November 16, 1999, and most recently approved by the Board on January 10,
2023 regarding the issue of homelessness in Contra Costa County, as
recommended by the Health Services Director. (No fiscal impact)

C.58  ACCEPT the Office of the Sheriff Inmate Welfare Fund (IWF) report, in
accordance with Penal Code Section 4025(e), on the accounting of all IWF
receipts and disbursements for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, as recommended by the
Sheriff-Coroner. (No fiscal impact)

C.59 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner or designee, to expend $2,180
for costs associated with employee Brian Sliger's attendance at the Federal Bureau

of Investigation National Academy from April 1, 2023 through June 8, 2023.
(100% General Fund)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Board meets in all its capacities pursuant to Ordinance Code Section 24-2.402.

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and
distributed by the Clerk of the Board to a majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors less
than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 1025 Escobar Street, First
Floor, Martinez, CA 94553, during normal business hours.

All matters listed under CONSENT ITEMS are considered by the Board to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a
member of the Board before the Board votes on the motion to adopt. Each member of the public
will be allowed two minutes to comment on the entire consent agenda.

Persons who wish to speak on matters set for PUBLIC HEARINGS will be heard when the Chair
calls for public testimony. Each speaker during public testimony will be limited to two minutes.
After public testimony, the hearing is closed and the matter is subject to discussion and action by
the Board. Comments on matters listed on the agenda or otherwise within the purview of the Board
of Supervisors can be submitted to the office of the Clerk of the Board via mail: Board of
Supervisors, 1025 Escobar Street, First Floor, Martinez, CA 94553 or to


mailto:clerkoftheboard@cob.cccounty.us

clerkoftheboard@cob.cccounty.us.

Time limits for public speakers may be adjusted at the discretion of the Chair.

The County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to
attend Board meetings who contact the Clerk of the Board at least 24 hours before the meeting, at
(925) 655-2000.

Anyone desiring to submit an inspirational thought nomination for inclusion on the Board Agenda
may contact the Office of the County Administrator or Office of the Clerk of the Board, 1025
Escobar Street, Martinez, California.

Subscribe to receive to the weekly Board Agenda by calling the Office of the Clerk of the Board,
(925) 655-2000 or using the County's on line subscription feature at the County’s Internet Web
Page, where agendas and supporting information may also be viewed:

www.contracosta.ca.gov

DISCLOSURE OF CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS

Pursuant to Government Code section 84308, members of the Board of Supervisors are
disqualified and not able to participate in any agenda item involving contracts (other than
competitively bid, labor, or personal employment contracts), franchises, discretionary land use
permits and other entitlements if the Board member received, since January 1, 2023, more than
$250 in campaign contributions from the applicant or contractor, an agent of the applicant or
contractor, or any financially interested participant who actively supports or opposes the County’s
decision on the agenda item. Members of the Board of Supervisors who have received, and
applicants, contractors or their agents who have made, campaign contributions totaling more than
$250 to a Board member since January 1, 2023, are required to disclose that fact for the official
record of the subject proceeding. Disclosures must include the amount of the campaign
contribution and identify the recipient Board member, and may be made either in writing to the
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors before the subject hearing or by verbal disclosure at the time of
the hearing.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS STANDING COMMITTEES

For more information please visit the Board of Supervisors Standing Committees page.

Airport Committee March 8, 2023 4:00 p.m.
Equity Committee March 20, 2023 10:30 a.m.
Family and Human Services Committee March 27, 2023 Canceled 10:30 a.m.
Special meeting March 23, 2023
Finance Committee April 3, 2023 8:30 a.m.
Internal Operations Committee March 13, 2023 10:30 a.m.
Legislation Committee March 13, 2023 1:00 p.m.
Los Medanos Healthcare Operations Committee April 3, 2023 1:00 p.m.



mailto:clerkoftheboard@cob.cccounty.us
http://www.contracosta.ca.gov
https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/8633/Board-of-Supervisors-Standing-Committees

Public Protection Committee April 3, 2023 10:30 a.m.

Sustainability Committee March 20, 2023 10:30 a.m.

Transportation, Water and Infrastructure Committee |March 13, 2023 9:00 a.m.

AGENDA DEADLINE: Thursday, 12 noon, 12 days before the Tuesday Board meetings.

Glossary of Acronyms, Abbreviations, and other Terms

Contra Costa County has a policy of making limited use of acronyms, abbreviations, and
industry-specific language in its Board of Supervisors meetings and written materials. For a
complete list of commonly used language that may appear in oral presentations and written
materials associated with Board meetings, please visit
https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/8464/Glossary-of-Agenda-Acronyms.



https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/8464/Glossary-of-Agenda-Acronyms

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: Monica Nino, County Administrator Cou nty

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: S.B. Claim

RECOMMENDATION(S):

*

FISCAL IMPACT:
*

BACKGROUND:

*

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE
ACTION:
*

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Contact: Clerk of the Board

By:, Deputy

ce:



ATTACHMENTS
S.B. Claim




DORROS
LLAW

Via E-Mail to Member Services: Monika.Cooper@cc.cccounty.us

Monika L. Cooper

i August 5, 2022 E—

Assistant County Counsel
Tort and Civil Rights Litigation Division E @ E ﬂ w E

AUG 05 2022

Contra Costa County Counsel's Office

Re: S.B. v. Contra Costa Regional Medical Center N
Notice of Claim / Presentation of Claim

Claim Information

Claimant: S.B. (“Client”)
Date of/Date Learned of PHI Breach: = February 20, 2022
Provider: Contra Costa Regional Medical Center (“Hospital”

Dear Monika:

It was a pleasure speaking with you on Friday. Thank you for bearing with the noise in the background
from Comic-Con. It is rather fun, admittedly, that the non-PHI side of my practice literally allows me to say | can
go to Comic-Con for business. | hope you had a nice weekend.

Again, thank you for the call. | do believe it was very productive. Please allow this letter to summarize
the substance of our call and also to constitute my client’s formal notice of claim for submission to County Board
of Directors. Please of course let me know if | have misstated anything from our call. 1 have done my best to
relay the substance of our call as accurately as possible, but if indeed | have misstated something please let me
know and accept my apologies up front. Per our conversation please accept this letter as my client's’ formal
notice of claim.

Preliminarily, we discussed that | generally try to avoid these notice of claims in these PHI privacy
violation matters for the literal fact that we are dealing with privacy and by their very nature notices of government
tort claims are public. We discussed my preferred route of looking toward a tolling agreement relative to the
statute of limitations to avoid the need for a notice of claim at all, however unfortunately such in and of itself
would require Board approval and thus due to timing it may not be the best option in this case. Secondarily |
mentioned that | have handled notices of claims in privacy matters where | only use the initials of the
plaintiff/claimant to try to maintain confidentiality. We agreed that in this case this may be a preferred option
rather than crossing our fingers on the tolling agreement possibility.

As a formality, | will just indicate for the Board that the County’s counsel/Legal Department is fully familiar
with the name of the claimant/plaintiff as well as the facts and allegations regarding this claim. My client's, the
claimant's, initials are S.B. | have also attached a copy of the initial notice of PHI privacy breach sent to the
County’s hospital, albeit redacted for privacy reasons. (Exhibit 1) | am also attaching a copy of the
County/hospital's breach notice letter to S.B. Under relevant PHI privacy law, when a provider, such as the
County hospital, confirms that a PHI privacy breach has occurred it is required to send the patient a breach
notice letter confirming the occurrence of the PHI privacy breach, and describing the facts and circumstances
surrounding or resulting in the breach, as well as the actions or steps taken by the provider once the breach was
discovered, among other items. (Exhibit 2)

From our call | understand that the Hospital has identified the individual involved, responsible for the
breach, and that such person was an employee of the Hospital at the time of the breach—uwell technically an
employee by way of contract services and thus the Hospital intends to bring in the contract employment company

DORROS LAW
8730 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 350
Beverly Hills, California 90211
Phene: (310) 997-2050 Fax: (310) 496-1320
www.dorroslaw.com



Notice/Presentation of Claim
August 5, 2022
Page 2 of 6

for purposes of indemnification or similar type joint liability / damages coverage legal theories. We of course
would be happy to work with the Hospital / County, along with any third party contractor that the Hospital may
- believe-is relevantto-try-to reach-resolution-of this matter.-—Fundamentally the PHI pruacy_bteachjndjlablmy e
flowing therefrom falls on the Hospital, however we do understand that the Hospital may also have
indemnification type arguments against-a third party and again we would be happy to try to coordinate
discussions that involve all of the appropriate parties to be able to resolve this matter. However please
understand that our position remains that the Hospital is the primarily liable party under the PHI privacy laws
-and would ultimately remain responsible for the damages suffered. by our Client, regardless of whether the
contract employment company agrees to cooperate in this matter.

With that said, | have set forth some further information in support of our Client's claim against the
Hospital/County. To the extent you need further information please of course contact me at any time. | ma
happy to have further calls or communications to ensure that the parties are on the same page.

. A. The Claimant's initials are S.B.. As mentioned above, County counsel are fully familiar with the
facts of this claim and the name of the claimant.

B. Please direct all notices and correspondences related to this matter/Claim to this office at:

Torin A. Dorros

Dorros Law .

8730 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 350

Beverly Hills, California 90211

Phone: (310) 997-2050

Fax: (310) 496-1320

E-mail: tdorros@dorroslaw.com .

You have authorization to communicate with this office through electronic mail and facsimile as well as mail and
express/overnight mail. Often communications via electronic mail is most effective and time efficient.

C. The following is a high level description of the facts and circumstances giving rise to our Client's
Claim and claims but should give the Hospital sufficient understanding and information relating to Claimant’s
Claim. Please understand that some of the facts or evidence remains within the control of the Hospital and thus
fundamentally would be clarified through.discovery. Our Client was a patient of the Hospital. As a result, the
Hospital had and maintained, and was responsible for the privacy, security, and confidentiality of our Client's
protected health information (“PHI"), including her medical records. However, in violation of the relevant PHI
privacy laws, the Hospltal failed to protect our Client’s privacy and failed to have proper security measures in
place to ensure the privacy, security, and. confidentiality of our Client's PHI. As a restilt, our Client's PHI was
unlawfully disclosed, used, and released by the Hospital causing very significant damages and emotional
distress for our Client.

On or about February 20, 2022, Our Client discovered the privacy breach when she learned that a
Facebook page had been created purporting to belong to our Client to which copies of her PHI/medical records
had been posted. In fact, and of course, this Facebook page was not created by our Client, but rather another
individual whorn we believe was an employee or contractor of the Hospital. In fact there are two scenarios and
investigation and discovery through litigation will further-clarify these facts. Itis our Client’s belief that a Deandra
Bryant is responsible for the actual creation of the Facebook page and posting of the medical records to that
page. We believe, but have yetto confirm, that Ms. Bryant is also the Hospital employeelcontractor and.also
responsible for both accessing and disclosing the PHI without authorization. There is, however a second
scenario, which factually -is slightly different, but from Hospital liability and damages perspective is not really
legally significant. The alternative scenario is that while Deandra Bryant was the individual that posted the PHI
to Facebook that a separate Hospital employee/contractor- unlawfully accessed our Client's PHI and then
subsequently unlawfully disclosed it to Ms. Bryant. In truth, regardless of whether the first or second scenario
above is the more accurate recitation of the factual history giving rise to the PHI breach, the resulting damages
for which the Hospital would be liable remain the same, because but for the PHI breach, our Client's PHI would



Notice/Presentation of Claim
August 5, 2022
Page 3 of 6

not have been unlawfully posted to Facebook, which has resulted in very substantial damages and emotional
distress.

Significantly it is worth highlighting that the type of information, type of PHI, that was unlawfully disclosed
and ultimately posted to social media for the world to view was very hypersensitive PHI. While all PHI is in an
of itself “protected” and required to be kept confidential and subject to the various PHI privacy laws, certain types
of PHI, at the most basic of levels, often carry with it increased potential for significant damages if the PHI is
improperly used or disclosed. In our Client's case the Hospital disclosed / released PHI related to alleged
evidence of STDs and other highly personal and embarrassing information or details. This information was
apparently intentionally, disclosed and released for the purpose of harming and causing substantial
embarrassment and other damages to our Client. If not intentional, certainly the unauthorized disclosure, use,
and/or release of our Client's PHI was negligent and resulted in substantial damages.

. D. The Hospital's wrongful conduct has resulted in substantial damages and harm to Claimant for
which the Hospital is liable. Claimant has suffered monetary damages, as well as substantial emotional distress,
irreparable and ongoing harm, and other damages related to and resulting from the Hospital's conduct.

a. Damages and Injury Related to PHI Privacy Breach

First and foremost PHI-privacy violations carry with them the availability for statutory damages, statutory
punitive damages, statutory attorneys' fees, statutory litigation costs, and statutory civil penalties, as well as
recovery of actual damages and any other relief available under the law. The statutes make it clear that recovery
is-cumulative and per individual violation. For example, Cal. Civ. Code § 56.35 (the first remedy section of the
California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act (“CMIA")) allows for $1,000 in statutory damages, $3,000 in
punitive damages, and $1,000 in attorney’s fees per violation. Cal. Civ. Code § 56.36 provides for $1,000 in
statutory nominal damages and up to $25,000 in civil penalties per violation. Monetary damages are available
under both Cal. Civ. Code §§ 56.35 and 56.36. Injunctive relief, attorney’s fees, and litigation costs may also be
awarded under CMIA. Further, California’s Information Practices Act, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1798 et seq. (“CIPA”)
provides for a statutory minimum damages of $2,500 per violation for unlawful PHI disclosure such as has
occurred in this action. Cal. Civ. Code § 1798.53. Monetary damages are available under both Cal. Civ. Code
§§ 1798.48 and 1798.53. CIPA also provides for the award. of injurictive relief, reasonable attorneys fees, and
litigation costs. Moreover, Claimant believes the Hospital had or should have had prior knowledge of the privacy
breachesand failed to notify Claimant of the breaches which would provide for liability under California’s privacy
breach notice statute, Cal. Civ. Code § 1798.82, a subsection of the California Customer Records Act., Cal. Civ.
Code §§ 1798.80 et seq. Monetary damages are also available for violations of the this Act. Thus, for the
moment not considering civil penalties, the Hospital faces potential statutory liability of at least $5,000 per
violation-under Civ. Code 56.35 and 56.36 as Claimant’s healthcare provider; plus $2,500 per violation as a PHI
privacy violating agency under Cal. Civ. Code § 1798.53—that would be a total of $7,500 per violation. We are
aware of at least one privacy breach, however in litigation we intend to have our expert.conduct a forensic
investigation of the Hospital's EMR system relative to overall HIPAA/HITECH/CMIA compliance, but also as to
determine the true number of violations, including unauthorized accesses etc. into our Client's PHI, so as to
properly be able to determine the number of discrete violations, each of which carry with them separate statutory
damages etc.  After handling:a substantial number of these PHI privacy breach matters, we are confident that
this investigation will reveal that there exist far. more than a single breach relative to our Client's PHI. That being
said, again, we do know, and the Hospital has confirmed that there exists at least one PHI breach relative to our

Client's PHI. - -

As noted, the above are merely the statutorily available/set forth damages relative to California’s relevant
statutory PHI privacy statutes. You should understand that the above does not specifically account for monetary
damages related to other claims associated with PHI privacy breaches, such as common law and Califoria
Constitutional invasion of privacy, negligence/negligence per se, negligent hiring, supervision, and/or retention,
breach of contract (of the Hospital's patient privacy policies or the HIPAA privacy agreement likely entered into
between the Hospital and Claimant as a Hospital patient), intentional and/or negligent infliction of emotional
distress, and (UCL) Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200 type claims. Further, depending upon the facts, the
Americans with Disabilities Act also provides for protections against, and liability for, unauthorized disclosure of
PHI—for purposes of this Notice of Claim, Claimant may also bring an action pursuant to the ADA, however




Notice/Presentation of Claim
August 5, 2022
Page 4 of 6

further investigation whether the applicability of the Act to Claimant's specific facts. Further, given we believe

the Hospital knew, or should have known, of the privacy breaches and failed to provide the requisite statutory

- notices-to-Claimant, the-Hospital-would-also be-liable-for damages-under California’s Customer Records-Act; ——
Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1798.80 et seq., and more specifically related to the privacy breach notice statute, Cal. Civ.

Code § 1798.82. As noted above, based upon CIPA, CMIA, and other legal theories or avenues such as
Claimant's seeking injunctive relief for the good of the public, i.e. for a public benefit, Claimant will be entitled to

her attorneys fees, litigation costs, and other relief in this case.

As noted, the privacy violations have resulted in monetary damages, as well as non-economic damages
such as without limitation, severe emotional distress, for which the Hospital is liable. Given the nature of the
conduct, punitive damages would also be available. Further, attorneys fees and costs of litigation are specifically
provided for under the relevant statutes. R

b. Damages and Injury Related to Employment such as Hostile Workplace Environment.

While not intended to be an exhaustive list of the resulting harm from the Hospital and its
employees'/contractors’ conduct, Claimant has-and continues to suffer ongoing damages, emotional distress,
and irreparable harm. Notably, it took more than a month for Facebook even to claim that it has removed the
postand PHI from Facebook and the Internet, but the reality is that once material has been posted to the Internet
it is always on the Internet in one form or fashion. Unfortunately it is virtually impossible to entirely remove
information from the Internet, which makes privacy violations where information is posted online all that much
more damaging and harmful on many levels. With that said, understandab’ly the unlawful disclosure of PHI and
subsequent resulting posting of PHI to social media for the world to view and access has caused substantial
emotional distress and trauma for the Claimant, so much-so that Claimant has had to seek professional help as
a direct result of and to help deal with the aftermath of the privacy violation. Moreover given the intensely
embarrassing type of information that was disclosed, and the fact that co-workers specifically became aware of
the information, Claimant ultimately was placed in a position where her workplace was so uncomfortable that
'she had to leave. Had Claimant’'s PHI not been disclosed by the Hospital, her co-workers would not have
become aware of such information and Claimant would still have the income from'such job. Indeed, Claimant
now faces similar embarrassment.on a very routine basis because of the PHI that was disclosed. As mentioned,
the PHI was of the type that is hyper sensitive and extremely likely to cause substantial harm and embarrassment
if it were to be disclosed / released to unauthorized persons. That is what occurred and the damage and ripple
effects have-been devastating for Claimant on both a personal and business level.

Again, this should not be considered an all-inclusive or exhaustive list or summary of the various claims
that Claimant may file against the Hospital nor the damages or harm suffered by Claimant. However we believe
it provides the Hospital sufficient notice that should formal litigation need to proceed that Claimant intends to
pursue various claims related to and ‘arising from the Hospital's conduct which has detrimentally impacted her.
Claimant would be entitled to substantial damages related to such claims in addition to attorneys fees, litigation
costs, and any other relief available under law relative to the conduct and breach. While of course investigation
is ongoing, and as mentioned above there is a likelihood that there are more breaches that will be revealed
through discovery, we are confident that Claimants case is valued at well over $250,000 not including potential
penalties, punitive damages, attorneys fees, or litigation costs.

. E. As part.of the Notice of Claims process we are also providing you and the Hospital with the
below information regarding percipient witnesses -and/or Hospital employees/contractors who are or were
involved in the facts and conduct giving rise to this Claim. While investigation is ongoing and to be candid much
of the information remains in the control of the Hospital, we believe at least the. following individuals may have
relevant information to this claim: (1) Deandra Bryant; (2) Alex Nielsen, Esq.; (3) Hospital privacy officer or HIMS
officer or Compliance office or similar position related to privacy and EMR and PHI compliance; (4) S.B.. This
is of course not an exhaustive list and is subject to further-investigation and discovery.

F. Should litigation be necessary any action would be for an amount in controversy far in excess
of the $25,000 minimum for California State Unlimited Jurisdiction cases. Indeed, exclusive of potential
penalties, punitive damages, attorneys fees, or litigation costs, we are confident that this case is valued at well
over $250,000.




Notice/Presentation of Claim
August 5, 2022
Page 5 of 6

We look forward to the Hospital's response and, similar to what we have tried to communicate in our
prior correspondences;-are-amenable-to-and-welcome-opening up substantial-discussions to-explore-resolution
between the parties.

Very Truly Yours,

DORROS LAW

T 2. Dovos
Torin A. Dorros

a




Notice/Presentation of Claim
August 5, 2022
Page 6 of 6

LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS

— -You and/er your-cempany/business—(“You"),-have-been-identified-as-a-relevant-party/person/entity
related to significant concerns that have arisen regarding the facts, circumstances, and matters related to issues
identified in the above correspondence, including without limitation those related to Your and/or Your employee’s
or contractor’s violations of our Client’s privacy, PHI, and other legal rights, and other conduct referenced in the
correspondence and/or prior correspondences between the parties and/or counsel (“Matters”). As such, we
request that You read and carefully adhere to the instructions provided herein this Litigation Hold Letter.

The purpose of this correspondence is to ensure that no evidence, or potential evidence, relating to the
Matters is lost, altered, deleted, or destroyed. The law requires that, once litigation is foreseeable all potential
parties (and requested third parties) must maintain all and not destroy any -potentially relevant documents,
information and data even if that means holding.documents, information and data well beyond minimum periods
set out by law or Your or company record-retention policies. Destruction, deletion, loss, or alteration of evidence
can cause a party to lose possible defenses, not to mention subject the party (andlor third party) to civil and
criminal penalties.

In connection with the Matters, You, the parties, and third .parties duly notified hereby, have a legal
obligation to preserve all relevant documents, information and data. As indicated, the law requires preservation
of all documents, information and data relating to or concerning the matters referenced herein, including, without

limitation, any- subject matter related to the Matters and Your and third parties’ acts and conduct related to the.

Matters. To the extent You may have a question as to whether Documents, information, and/or data falls under
the scope of this Litigation Hold Letter you should take a broad approach and assume that such Documents,
information, and/or data are covered by this Litigation Hold Letter and therefore should ensure that such
information, documents, and/or data is preserved, as outlined herein.

“Documents, information, and data” as used herein means not only hard copy documents, but also audio
recordings, videotapes, e-mails, instant messages, social media posts, social media messages, word processing
documents, spreadsheets, databases, calendars, telephone logs, Internet usage files, and all other electronically
stored information (including metadata) maintained, created; received; indéxed, and/or otherwise recorded,
logged, or stored by You, the parties, and/or third parties on computer systems. Sources of the documents and
data include, without limitation, .all hard copy files, computer hard drives, computer servers, removable media
(e.g., CDs, DVDs and flash drives), laptop computers, PDAs, Blackberry devices, cell phones, smartphones,
and any other locations where hard copy and electronic data is or may be stored. Keep in mind that any of the
above-mentioned sources of relevant information may include personal computers You or Your employees use
or have access to at home, or other locations. It.also includes inaccessible storage media, such as back-up
tapes which may contain relevant electronic information that does not exist in any other form. The above should
not be deemed an all-inclusive list of sources of documents, information, and data—Your obligation is to
preserve all documents, information, and data.

In order to comply with Your legal obligations, You, the parties (and notified third parties) must
immediately preserve not only all existing-paper copies of documents, including drafts and-revisions, but also all
electronically stored information, including drafts and revisions, in its existing electronic format (along with all
metadata) that relate or pertain to, without limitation, the matters and issues described or referenced above. In
order to comply with this L|t|gat|on Hold, You should immediately suspend deletion, overwriting, or any other
possible destruction of documents, information, and data related to the Mattérs, as well as suspend Your current
document destruction policy and/or automatic deletion function en Your computers, servers, or other electronic
devices.




EXHIBIT 1
DORROS
L. AW March 01, 2022

-Vfia-E-Mail to-Member-Services:-member.services@cchealth.org e e
Privacy.- Officer
CONTRA COSTA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
2500 Alhambra Avenue
Martinez, CA 94553

Re: SN 5/ v. Contra Costa Regional Medical Center
Notice of HIPAA/CMIA//PHI Privacy Violations

Dear Privacy Officer:

Dorros Law is retained counsel for S_ B ' (our “Client”) regarding certain serious violations
of our Client’s: privacy rights, including violations of the Health Information Portability and Accountability Act
(“HIPAA"), California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act ("CMIA"), and/or other relevant privacy laws and
regulations (“PHI Privacy Laws") committed by Contra Costa Regional Medical Center (“You"). We have been
engaged to see if we can resolve this serious matterprior to the need for litigation, however, if resolution cannot
be achieved expeditiously, litigation or other options will be pursued.

Our Client was Your patient and thus You became privy to, and/or in- possession of, our Client's
protected private and confidential medical and other personal identifying information (“PHI"). As we are certain
You are aware there are serious consequences for a healthcare provider/covered entity’s, and/or its employees’,
violation of its/their privacy obligations relative to a patient's PHI. That is precisely what has occurred.

In violation of our Clients’ privacy rights and related PHI Privacy Laws You and/or Your employees or
contractors disclosed, used, or released our Client's PHI without authorization, and/or allowed our Client's PHI
to be disclosed; used, released, or accessed without authorization, and otherwise failed to properly protect and
secure our Client's PHI. In short, You and/or Your employee permitted an unauthorized third party to gain
access, obtain, use, and exploit our Client's PHI without our Client’s authorization and subsequently our Client's
PHI was used in a fashion to try to harm and cause emotional distress, embarrassment, and other harm to our
Client. Indeed, our Client's PHI, including an image of her PHI and medical record were specifically uploaded
to Facebook in a further attempt to cause damage to our Client.

Please understand that, as a result of Your serious violations of our Client's privacy rights and related
PHI Privacy Laws, our Client has suffered significantly including substantial emotional distress not to mention
other damages. Moreover, simply as a result of the violations, under CMIA, let alone other bases for liability,
including without limitation, common law and California Constitutional invasion of privacy, infliction of emotional
distress, negligence and negligence per se, negligent hiring, retention, and supervision, breach of express and/or
implied contract, and California Business and Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq., You are liable. for actual
damages, statutory damages, punitive damages, and attorney's fees.

While there remains the possibility to resolve this matter without the .need for litigation, time is of the
essence. We will need a-response to this letter and realistic progress toward resolution on an expedited basis
to avoid the need for court intervention. Therefore, we would request that you contact us within ten days of the
date of this letter to discuss this serious matter.

Very Truly Yours,

DORROS LAwW

Torin A. Dorros

DORROS LAW
8730 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 350
Beverly Hills, California 90211
Phone: (310) 997-2050 Fax: (310) 496-1320
= e ——————www.dorroslaw.com____ . _




Notice Re Privacy/HIPAA Violation
March 01, 2022
Page 2 of 2

LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS

You-and/er-your-company/business—(*You"),—have-been=dentified-as-a-relevant-party/person/entity
related to significant concerns that have arisen regarding the facts, circumstances, and matters related to issues
identified in the above correspondence, including without limitation those related to Your and/or Your employee’s
or contractor’s violations of our Client’s privacy; PHI, and other legal rights, and other conduct referenced in the
correspondence and/or prior correspondences between the parties and/or counsel (“Matters”). As such, we
request that You read and carefully adhere to the instructions provided herein this Litigation Hold Letter.

The purpose of this correspondence is to ensure that no evidence, or potential evidence, relating to the
Matters is lost, altered, deleted, or destroyed. The law requires that, once litigation is foreseeable all potential
parties (and requested third parties) must maintain all and not destroy any potentially .relevant documents,
information and data even if that means holding documents, information and data well beyond minimum periods
set out by law or Your or company record-retention policies. Destruction, deletion, loss, or alteration of evidence
can cause a party to lose possible defenses, not to mention subject the party (and/or third party) to civil and
criminal penalties. :

In connection with the Matters, You, the parties, and third parties duly notified hereby, have a legal
obligation to preserve all relevant documents; information and data. As indicated, the law requires preservation
of all documents, information and data relating to or concerning the matters referenced herein, including, without
limitation, any subject matter related to the Matters and Your and third parties’ acts and conduct related to the
Matters. To the extent You may have a question as to whether Documents, information, and/or data falls under
the scope of this Litigation Hold Letter you should take a broad approach and assume that such Documents,
information, and/or data are covered by this Litigation Hold Letter and therefore should ensure that such
information, documents, and/or data is preserved, as outlined herein.

“Documents, information, and data” as used herein means not only hard copy documents, but also audio
recordings, videotapes, e-mails, instant messages, social media posts, social media messages, word processing
documents, spreadsheets, databases, calendars, telephone logs, Internet usage files, and all otherelectronically
stored information (including metadata) maintained, created, received, indexed, and/or otherwise recorded,
logged, or stored by You, the parties, and/or third parties on computer systems. Sources of the documents and
data include, without limitation, -all hard copy files, computer hard drives, computer servers, removable media
(e.g., CDs, DVDs and flash drives), laptop computers, PDAs, .Blackberry devices, cell phones, smartphones,
and any other locations where hard copy and electronic data is or may be stored. Keep in mind that any of the
above-mentioned sources of relevant information may include personal computers You or Your employees use
or have access to at home, or other locations. It also includes inaccessible storage media, such as back-up
tapes which may contain relevant electronic information that does not exist in any other form. The above should
not be deemed an all-inclusive list of sources of documents, information, and data—Your obligation is to
preserve all documents, information, and data.

In order to comply with Your legal obhgatlons You, the parties (and notified third parties) must
immediately preserve not only all existing paper copies of documents, including drafts-and revisions, but also all
electronically stored information, including drafts and revisions, in its existing electronic format (along with all
metadata) that relate or pertain to, without limitation, the matters and issues described or referenced above. In
order to comply with this Litigation Hold, You should immediately suspend deletion, overwriting, or any other
possible destruction of documents, information, and data related to the Matters, as well as suspend Your current
document destruction policy and/or automatic deletion function on Your computers, servers, or other electronic
devices.















Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors
From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Cost Confirmation Hearing for Real Property Located at: 0 Stone Road, Bethel Island, CA 94511

RECOMMENDATION(S):
OPEN the hearing on the costs of abating a public nuisance on the real property located at 0 Stone Road, Bethel Island, California, in

unincorporated Contra Costa County (APN 031-110-015);

RECEIVE and CONSIDER the attached itemized report on the abatement costs and any objections thereto from the property owner or other
person with a legal interest in the property; and CLOSE the hearing.

DETERMINE the cost of all abatement work and all administrative costs to be $3,488.90.
ORDER the itemized report confirmed and DIRECT that it be filed with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

ORDER the costs to be specially assessed against the above-referenced property and AUTHORIZE the recordation of a Notice of Abatement
Lien.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No net fiscal impact. The costs as determined above will be added to the tax roll as a special assessment on this property and will be collected at
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary County taxes are collected.

BACKGROUND:

Contra Costa County Ordinance Code Article 41-6.4 and California Government Code Section 25845 authorize the recovery of abatement costs
in public nuisance cases, the recordation of a Notice of Abatement Lien, and inclusion of abatement costs on the tax roll as a special assessment,
upon approval of the Board of Supervisors.

The Notice and Order to Abate was posted on the above-referenced property for a vacant lot with overgrown weeds and debris and was served
on the property owner and all person known to be in possession of the property by certified mail on March 30, 2022.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

1 hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Jason Crapo, (925) 655-2800

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The property owner did not file an appeal of the Notice and Order to Abate. The County Abatement Officer abated the nuisance on June 6,
2022.

The property owner was billed for the actual costs of the abatement and all administrative costs. The bill was sent by first-class mail to the
property owner on July 25, 2022. The property owner did not pay the bill within 45 days of the date of mailing.

Notice of this Cost Hearing was sent to the property owner by certified mail by the Clerk of the Board. For proof of service, see Clerk of the
Board 1025 Escobar St, 1st Floor, Martinez, CA.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, the County will not be able to recover costs for abatement on code violations for this property.

ATTACHMENTS
Itemized Abatement Costs
Before and After




O Stone Rd, Bethel Island, CA
Before Photos









O Stone Rd, Bethel Island, CA

After Photos









Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors
From: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Cost Confirmation Hearing for Real Property Located at 4150 Appian Way, El Sobrante, CA 94803

RECOMMENDATION(S):
OPEN the hearing on the costs of abating a public nuisance on the real property located at 4150 Appian Way, El Sobrante, California, Contra

Costa County (APN 425-170-030);

RECEIVE and CONSIDER the attached itemized report on the abatement costs and any obligations thereto from the property owner or other
persons with a legal interest in the property; and CLOSE the hearing.

DETERMINE the cost of all abatement work and all administrative costs to be $4,154.00.
ORDER the itemized report confirmed and DIRECT that it be filed with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

ORDER the costs to be specially assessed against the above-referenced property and AUTHORIZE the recordation of a Notice Of Abatement
Lien.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No net fiscal impact. The costs as determined above will be added to the tax roll as a special assessment on this property and will be collected at
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary County taxes are collected.

BACKGROUND:

Contra Costa County Ordinance Code Article 14-6.4 and California Government Code Section 25845 authorize the recovery of abatement costs
in public nuisance cases, the recordation of a Notice of Abatement Lien, and inclusion of abatement costs on the tax roll as a special assessment,
upon approval of the Board of Supervisors.

The Notice and Order to abate was posted on the above-referenced property for construction debris, garbage, and contaminated soil throughout
the parcel and was served on the property owner and all persons known to be in possession of the property by certified mail on June 17,

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Contact: Jason Crapo, 925-655-2800

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

2021. The property owner did not file an appeal of the Notice and Order to Abate. The County Abatement Officer abated the nuisance on
July 21, 2021.

The property owner was billed for the actual cost of the abatement and all administrative costs. The bill was sent by first-class mail to the
property owner on January 6, 2023. The property owner did not pay the bill within 45 days of the date of mailing. Notice of this Cost
Hearing was sent to the property owner by certified mail by the Clerk of the Board. For proof of service, see Clerk of the Board at 1025
Escobar St., 1 8t Floor, Martinez, CA 94553.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, the County will not be able to recover costs for abatement on code violation for this property.

ATTACHMENTS
Before and After Photos
Itemized Costs




4150 Appian Way
El Sobrante, CA, 94803

Before Photos









4150 Appian Way
El Sobrante, CA, 94803

After Photos



Y
SR

&

N

=V
r

y
-




;éf!lv :




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

DATE: February 22, 2023
TO: Clerk of the Board
FROM: Department of Conservation & Development

By: Andrew Gomer, Building Inspector I
RE: Itemized Report of Abatement Costs
The following is an itemized report of the costs of abatement for
the below described property pursuant to C.C.C. Ord. Code ' 14-
6.428.
OWNER: New Joseph & Sofia
POSSESSOR: N/A
MORTGAGE HOLDER: N/A
ABATEMENT ORDERED DATE: June 17, 2021

ABATEMENT COMPLETED DATE: July 22, 2021

SITE ADDRESS: 4150 Appian Way, E1 Sobrante, CA 94803
APN#: 425-170-030

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: Residential

AMOUNT OF ABATEMENT COSTS (CCC ORDINANCE CODE 14-6.428)

ITEM EXPLANATION COST
Notice to Comply (include first 2 inspections) S 300.00
Site Visits (11 x $150.00 @) $ 1,650.00
Recording Fee S 17.00
PIRT (Title Search) S 150.00
Certified Letter & Regular Mailings S 37.00
Photos S 10.00
Contractor hired for abatement S 1,590.00
Final Site Inspection to Confirm Compliance 200.00
Compliance Report and Board Hearing S 200.00
Total S 4,154.00

Abatement costs can be paid at or mailed to Department of
Conservation and Development, Building Inspection Division, 30
Muir Rd., Martinez, CA 94553.



Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors

From: Brian M. Balbas, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer
. o _‘ r

Date: March 7,2023 ':'?h-!{iq":iﬁ“;ﬁl:‘

Subj ect: Approve & Authorize to fully close a portion of Oak View Avenue, on March 18, 2023 from 6:00 a.m. through 11:00 a.m.,
Kensington area.

RECOMMENDATION(S):
ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/59 approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of Oak View

Avenue between Colusa Avenue and Santa Fe Avenue, on March 18, 2023 from 6:00 a.m. through 11:00 a.m., for the purpose of the Colusa
Circle 5K Run, Kensington area. (District I)

FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND:
Zip Code East Bay requested the road closure to use as a safe area to create a staging area for the start and finish of their event. Applicant shall
follow guidelines set forth by the Public Works Department.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Applicant will be unable to close the road for planned activities.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7, 2023
Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Contact: Bob Hendry (925) 374-2136

By:, Deputy

ce: Larry Gossett- Engineering Services, Kellen O'Connor - Engineering Services, Bob Hendry -Engineering Services, Chris Lau - Maintenance, CHP, Sheriff - Patrol Division Commander



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.
2023/59




THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board
Adopted this Resolution on 03/07/2023 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:
Resolution No. 2023/59
IN THEMATTER OF: Approving and Authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of Oak View

Avenue between Colusa Avenue and Santa Fe Avenue, on March 18, 2023 from 6:00 a.m. through 11:00 a.m., for the purpose of
the Colusa Circle 5K Run, Kensington area. (District I)

RC23-3

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that permission is granted to Zip Code East Bay to fully close Oak View Avenue
between Colusa Avenue and Santa Fe Avenue, except for emergency traffic, local residents, US Postal Service and garbage
trucks, on March 18, 2023 for the period of 6:00 a.m. through 11:00 a.m., subject to the following conditions:

1. Traffic will be detoured via roads identified in a traffic control plan, reviewed by the Public Works Department. Emergency
vehicles, residents within the event area and essential services will be allowed access as required.

2. All signing to be in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.
3. Zip Code East Bay shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance Code of Contra Costa County.

4. Provide the County with a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00 for Comprehensive General Public Liability
which names the County as an additional insured prior to permit issuance.

5. Obtain approval for the closure from the Kensington Police Department and the Kensington Fire Department.

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.

ATTESTED: March 7, 2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Bob Hendry (925) 374-2136

By:, Deputy

cc: Larry Gossett- Engineering Services, Kellen O'Connor - Engineering Services, Bob Hendry -Engineering Services, Chris Lau - Maintenance, CHP,
Sheriff - Patrol Division Commander



C.2

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors

From: Brian M. Balbas, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer
. o _‘ r

Date: March 7,2023 ':'?h-!{iq":iﬁ“;ﬁl:‘

Subj ect: Approve & Authorize to partially close a portion of Parker Avenue, on March 11, 2023 from 8:00 a.m. through 10:00 a.m., Rodeo
area.

RECOMMENDATION(S):
ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/60 approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to partially close the east bound lane only of

Parker Avenue between 1st Street and 7th Street, on March 11, 2023 from 8:00 a.m. through 10:00 a.m., for the purpose of the Rodeo Baseball
Association Opening Day Parade, Rodeo area. (District V)

FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND:
Rodeo Baseball Association requested the road closure to use as a safe area to create a staging area for the start and finish of their event.
Applicant shall follow guidelines set forth by the Public Works Department.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Applicant will be unable to close the road for planned activities.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7, 2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Bob Hendry (925) 374-2136

By:, Deputy

ce: Larry Gossett- Engineering Services, Kellen O'Connor - Engineering Services, Bob Hendry -Engineering Services, Austin Pato - Engineering Services, CHP, Sheriff - Patrol Division Commander



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.
2023/60




THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board
Adopted this Resolution on 03/07/2023 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:
Resolution No. 2023/60
IN THE MATTER OF: Approving and Authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to partially close the east bound lane

only of Parker Avenue between 1st Street and 7th Street, on March 11, 2023 from 8:00 a.m. through 10:00 a.m., for the purpose
of the Rodeo Baseball Association Opening Day Parade, Rodeo area. (District V)

RC23-4

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that permission is granted to Rodeo Baseball Association to partially close the east
bound lane only of Parker Avenue between 1st Street and 7th Street, except for emergency traffic, local residents, US Postal
Service and garbage trucks, on March 11, 2023 for the period of 8:00 a.m. through 10:00 a.m., subject to the following conditions:

1. Traffic will be detoured via roads identified in a traffic control plan, reviewed by the Public Works Department. Emergency
vehicles, residents within the event area and essential services will be allowed access as required.

2. All signing to be in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.
3. Rodeo Baseball Association shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance Code of Contra Costa County.

4. Provide the County with a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00 for Comprehensive General Public Liability
which names the County as an additional insured prior to permit issuance.

5. Obtain approval for the closure from the Rodeo-Hercules Police Department and the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Department.

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Bob Hendry (925) 374-2136

By:, Deputy

cc: Larry Gossett- Engineering Services, Kellen O'Connor - Engineering Services, Bob Hendry -Engineering Services, Austin Pato - Engineering Services,
CHP, Sheriff - Patrol Division Commander



C.3

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors
From: Brian M. Balbas, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer
Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Approve the Parcel Map and Subdivision Agreement for minor subdivision MS22-00006, Alamo area.

RECOMMENDATION(S):
ADOPT Resolution No. 2023/58 approving the Parcel Map and Subdivision Agreement for minor subdivision MS22-00006, for a project being
developed by David Brothers Construction, Inc., as recommended by the Public Works Director, Alamo area. (District II)

FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND:
The Public Works Department has reviewed the conditions of approval for minor subdivision MS22-00006 and has determined that all
conditions of approval for Parcel Map approval have been satisfied.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Parcel Map and the Subdivision Agreement will not be approved and recorded.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS 1 hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date
shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Contact: Kellen O'Connor (925) 313-2278

By:, Deputy

cc: Larry Gossett- Engineering Services, Kellen O'Connor - Engineering Services, Devon Patel- Engineering Services, Renee Hutchins - Records, Karen Piona- Records, Randolf Sanders- Design & Construction,
Chris Hallford -Mapping , Michael Mann- Finance, Chris Lau - Maintenance, Stanley Muroaka- DCD, David Brothers Construction, Inc., Nor Cal Builders Services, T-01/07/2024



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.
2023/58

Parcel Map

Subdivision
Agreement

Tax Letter



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board
Adopted this Resolution on 03/07/2023 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:
Resolution No. 2023/58

IN THE MATTER OF approving the Parcel Map and Subdivision Agreement for minor subdivision MS22-00006, for a project
being developed by David Brothers Construction, Inc., as recommended by the Public Works Director, Alamo area. (District II)

WHERE AS, the following documents were presented for board approval this date:

I. Map

The Parcel Map of minor subdivision MS22-00006, property located in the Alamo area, Supervisorial District I, said map
having been certified by the proper officials.

II. Subdivision Agreement

A subdivision agreement with David Brothers Construction, Inc., principal, whereby said principal agrees to complete all
improvements as required in said subdivision agreement within 2 year(s) from the date of said agreement. Accompanying said
subdivision agreement is security guaranteeing completion of said improvements as follows:

A. Cash Bond

Performance amount: $16,000.00

Labor & Materials Amount: $8,000.00

Auditor’s Deposit Permit No. 864307 Date: February 10, 2023
Submitted by: David Brothers Construction, Inc.

III. Tax Letter

Letter from the County Tax Collector stating that there are no unpaid County taxes heretofore levied on the property included in
said map and that the 2022-2023 tax lien has been paid in full and the 2023-2024 tax lien, which became a lien on the first day of
January 2023, is estimated to be $27,170.00, with security guaranteeing payment of said tax lien as follows:

- Tax Surety

Auditor's Deposit Permit Number: DP864172 Date: February 7, 2023
Amount: $27,170.00

Submitted by/Principal: David Brothers Construction, Inc.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That said subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and improvement, is DETERMINED to be consistent with the
County's general and specific plans.

2. That said Parcel Map is APPROVED and this Board does hereby accept subject to installation and acceptance of
improvements on behalf of the public any of the streets, paths, or easements shown thereon as dedicated to public use.

3. That said Subdivision Agreement is also APPROVED.



I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date
shown.

Contact: Kellen O'Connor (925) 313-2278 ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

By:, Deputy

cc: Larry Gossett- Engineering Services, Kellen O'Connor - Engineering Services, Devon Patel- Engineering Services, Renee Hutchins - Records, Karen
Piona- Records, Randolf Sanders- Design & Construction, Chris Hallford -Mapping, Michael Mann- Finance, Chris Lau - Maintenance, Stanley Muroaka-
DCD, David Brothers Construction, Inc., Nor Cal Builders Services, T-01/07/2024



OWNER'S STATEMENT

THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING THE ONLY PARTY HAVING A RECORD TITLE INTEREST IN

THE LANDS DELINEATED AND EMBRACED WITHIN THE HEAVY BLACK LINES UPON
THIS PARCEL MAP, DOES HEREBY CONSENT TO THE MAKING AND RECORDATION
OF THE SAME.

THE AREA SHOWN AS "PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT" (PrAE) IS NOT OFFERED FOR
DEDICATION TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC, BUT IS FOR THE USE OF THE OWNERS OF
PARCELS 'A' & 'B' OF THIS SUBDIVISION, FOR, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, INGRESS,

EGRESS, UTILITIES, WATER, SANITARY SEWER, STORM DRAINAGE AND EMERGENCY

VEHICLE ACCESS.

THE AREA SHOWN AS "PRIVATE UTILITY EASEMENT" (PrUE) IS NOT OFFERED FOR
DEDICATION TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC, BUT IS FOR THE USE OF THE OWNERS OF
PARCEL °A’ OF THIS SUBDIVISION, FOR, BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE CONSTRUCTION
AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES, WATER, SANITARY SEWER & STORM DRAINAGE,

THIS MAP SHOWS ALL EASEMENTS ON THE PREMISES OR OF RECORD.

MICHAEL DAVID, TRUSTEE AND SUSAN CARABALLO DAVID, TRUSTEE OF
DAVID/CARABALLO REVOCABLE TRUST DATED OCTOBER 31, 2006

BY: W@M/

MICHAEL DAVID

BY: allo y
SUSAN CARABALLO DAVID

OWNER'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES
ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR
VALIDITY OF THAT DOCUMENT.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA ) §S

ON_Oecewdoer 2% , 2022, BEFORE ME, _Z_Tharow)d

PARCEL MAP
SUBDIVISION MS 22-0006
URBAN LOT SPLIT

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THAT PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED
IN THE DOCUMENT 2020-0265884, AND BEING A PORTION
OF THE RANCHO SAN RAMON

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Ao

817 Amold Drive, Ste. 50
' Martinez, CA 94553
' - .E: ( Ph: (925) 476-8499
CIVILENGINEERING & LAND SURVEYING WWW.apexce.net
AUGUST, 2022

PROJECT
SITE
PAAAD E~ ’ ‘
=
- Ll
STONE VALLEY ROAD TN

A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED Mitwere\ David qnc\_ﬁmﬂ_cém\m\\o Dovd

WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE
PERSON(S) WHOSE NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT
AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE/SHE/THEY EXECUTED THE SAME IN
HIS/HER/THEIR AUTHORIZED CAPACITY{(IES), AND THAT BY HIS/HER/THEIR
SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S), OR THE ENTITY UPON
BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.

[ CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL
SIGNATURENOTARY; =228
NAME (PRINTED OR TYPED),_Z- Tbu{ta
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES;__ 2/ 221 /zoz4

COUNTY OF NOTARY: ___ “Sou\ jcmrum
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS: “The. UP> Shxe

JOB NO. 22063

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

THIS MAP CORRECTLY REPRESENTS A SURVEY, MADE BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION, IN
CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCAL
ORDINANCE AT THE REQUEST OF MICHAEL DAVID IN MAY 2022. | HEREBY STATE THAT THIS
PARCEL MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE APPROVED OR CONDITIONAL APPROVED
TENTATIVE MAP, IF ANY. ALL MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON ACTUALLY EXIST AND ARE
SUFFICIENT TQ ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.

BOB J. LEZGAND, LS 8514 DATED

CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPER VISORS' CERTIFICATE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

I, MONICA NINO CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR OF CONTRA
COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING MAP
ENTITLED "PARCEL MAP SUBDIVISION MS 22-0008" WAS PRESENTED TO SAID BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS, AS PROVIDED BY LAW, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF HELDON THE _______ DAY
OF. ,20___, AND THAT SAID BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DID THEREUPON BY
RESOLUTION DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED AT SAID MEETING APPROVE SAID MAP, AND DID NOT
ACCEPT ANY DEDICATIONS SHOWN THEREON.

| FURTHER CERTIFY THAT ALL TAX LIENS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED AND THAT ALL BONDS AS
REQUIRED BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE WITHIN MAP HAVE BEEN APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, AND FILED IN MY OFFICE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND THIS DAY _OF » 20

MONICA NINO

CLERK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

BY:

DEPUTY CLERK

COUNTY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

| HEREBY STATE THAT | HAVE EXAMINED THIS MAP; THAT THE SUBDIVISION AS SHOWN IS
SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE TENTATIVE MAP, IF REQUIRED, AND
ANY APPROVED ALTERATIONS THEREOF; THAT ALL PROVISIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA
SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND ANY LOCAL ORDINANCES APPLICABLE AT THE TIME OF
APPROVAL OF THE TENTATIVE MAP, IF REQUIRED, HAVE BEEN COMPLIED WITH; AND
THAT | AM SATISFIED THIS MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.

DATE: 8Y:

DANA M. TREZISE, LS 7438
INTERIM COUNTY SURVEYOR

APN 192-110-004

COUNTY RECORDER'S STATEMENT

THIS MAP ENTITLED "SUBDIVISION MS 22-0006" IS HEREBY ACCEPTED FOR
RECORDATION SHOWING A CLEAR TITLE PER LETTER OF TITLE WRITTEN BY
FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE COMPANY, DATED , AND AFTER
EXAMINING THE SAME, | DEEM THAT SAID MAP COMPLIES IN ALL RESPECTS
WITH THE PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW AND LOCAL ORDINANCES GOVERNING
THE FILING OF SUBDIVISION MAPS.

FILED THIS___ DAY OF ,20__,AT __M. INBOOK OF

PARCEL MAPS, AT PAGE AT THE REQUEST OF CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY.

DEBORAH COOPER
COUNTY RECORDER
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

BY: :
DEPUTY COUNTY RECORDER

SHEET 1 OF 2



HUNT

LEGEND

BASIS OF BEARINGS

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY LINE
EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY LINE
ADJACENT LOT LINE
CENTERLINE

EASEMENT LINE

BASIS OF BEARINGS WAS TAKEN AS NORTH 79°32'00" WEST
ALONG THE NORTH LINE LINE OF THE RECORD OF SURVEY
38 LSM 03 BETWEEN FOUND SURVEY MARKERS

PARCEL MAP
SUBDIVISION MS 22-0006
URBAN LOT SPLIT

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THAT PARCEL OF LAND
DESCRIBED IN THE DOCUMENT 2020—-0265884, AND
BEING A PORTION OF THE RANCHO SAN RAMON

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

o) SET 1/2" REBAR AND CAP LS 8514
o FND IRON PIPE OR REBAR AS NOTED
( ) RECORD DATA 817 Amold Drive, Ste. 50
£ Martinez, CA 94553
(1) TOTAL y > E X Ph: (925) 476-8499
SNF SEARCH FOR NOTHING FOUND CIVILENGINEERING & LAND SURVEYING  WWw.apexce.net
PrUE PRIVATE UTILITY EASEMENT %ot
PrAE PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT AUGUST, 2022 SCALE: 1°=20
20 0 10 20 {
( IN FEET )
1 INCH = 20°FT.
_ LASAGNA LASAGNA - 40.0" ———=
LA W N AN Bl VI F
FOUND 1.5" IRON PIPE
FOUND 1.5" IRON PIPE R o NG
NO TAG PER (1 BASIS OF BEARINGS , BoSITON OF (1)
- N79°'32°00"E 418.44°(7) (418.81°)(2) -~
255.84’ s . .
~ & \ 15" WDE PRIVATE  162.59(T) c? 20.00
UTILITY EASEMENT , 3
(PrUE) -~
"""""""""" N7932°00°E 144.53 T 7
—
N L
S -
. ~
= 8 2 - g e~ [ =
. g 7 3o 288 >
w O 3 | 2 ISWN ~
N S PARCEL "A" 3 [@ j o MERIN s 3=
N S w |8 PARCEL "B RS-SRS W) <
N, :%’ N 25,9808F+ GROSS/NET N 17,378 SF+ GROSS X %LU °‘§ &5 }EE ng
] ] S ! o~ p‘-: M =
o glg 2 12,901 SE+ NET ez br el 2
8 2 =353 S =2
S > n = Z &8
3 20.02' = 5
S NB6°32°24™W EXISTING 40° RIGHT OF 3
WAY PER 887 OR 308—= (g —-—
—— e — —— e . N79G2'00°€_136.00° __ __ __ __ __ __ __ __ _| <
FOUND 1" FOURD ReBeR a\P 15’ WIDE PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT (PrAE) 7 g
P PER (1) , PER (3) / 175.82°(T) d :
/ 250.09 * A~ 20.00
) * . » s s ] o d e
— 178.37°(178.30°)(3) - 113.68° (113.75°)(4) "/f\/FOUND REBAR AND 133.85° (113.75°)(4) ,RoshéAgggEgEﬁog )'\(1‘3)7(4) -
N79°32'00°E  425.91° () L—7 CAP LS 6627 FOUND SET NEW REBAR
REFERENCES (426.31)(1)(2) FOUND REBAR AND PER (4) AND CAP LS 8512
STEELE : CAP LS 7136 NO
LLL (425.80°)(3) RECORD IN PQSITION
(1) 38 LSM 03 PARCEL 'B° PER (3)
(2) VESTING 2020-265884 an Ton 2 -0 O PR -
(3) 89 CR 38 (38 LSM 3) YANG SAINIO
(4) 143 CR 17 PARCEL "B’ PARCEL A’
(41 LSM 38) (41 LSM 38)
SHEET 2 OF 2

JOB NO. 22063

APN 192-110-004




SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT
(Gov. Code, §§ 66462 and 66463)

Subdivision: MS22-0006 Effective Date:
Subdivider: David Brothers Construction Inc. cOmpletion Period: 2 Years

THESE SIGNATURES ATTEST TO THE PARTIES' AGREEMENT HERETO:

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY SUBDIVIDER 7 /
Brian M. Balbas, Public Works Director / 4 -. ’(/
L U4 la7%

/
By: Print Name __Michael K David
Print Title President

Coretn it Bons

By: Print Name: Susan Caraballo David

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

Engineering Services Division Print Title: Secretary

[Note: If Subdivider is a corporation, two officers must sign. The first

must be the chairman of the board, president or any vice president; the
FORM APPROVED: Silvano B. Marchesi, County Counsel second must be the secretary, assistant secretary, chief financial officer or
any assistant treasurer. (Carp. Code, § 313; Civ. Code, § 1190.) If
Subdivider Is a limited liability company, Subdivider shall sign in the
manner required of carporations, or by two managers, or by one manager,
pursuant to the articles of organization (see Corp. Code,
§§17151, 17154, 17157.) If Subdivider is a partnership, any authorized
partner may sign. Signatures by Subdivider must be notarized.]

1. PARTIES & DATE. Effective on the above date, the County of Contra Costa, California (hereinafter "County”), and the
above-mentioned Subdivider mutually promise and agree as follows conceming this Subdivision:
2. IMPROVEMENTS. Subdivider agrees to install certain road improvements (both public and private), drainage improvements,

signs, street lights, fire hydrants, landscaping and such other improvements (including appurtenant equipment) as required in the
improvement plans for this Subdivision as reviewed and on file with the Contra Costa County Public Works Department, as required by
the Conditions of Approval for this Subdivision, and in conformance with the Contra Costa County Ordinance Code, including future
amendments thereto (hereinafter “Ordinance Code").

Subdivider shall complete said improvements (hereinafter “Work®) within the above completion period from date hereof, as
required by the California Subdivision Map Act (Gov. Code, §§ 66410 et. seq.) in a good workmanlike manner, in accordance with
accepted construction practices and in a manner equal or superior to the requirements of the Ordinance Code and rulings made
thereunder: and where there is a conflict among the improvement plans, the Conditions of Approval and the Ordinance Code, the

stricter requirements shall govern.

3. IMPROVEMENTS SECURITY. Upon executing this Agreement, the Subdivider shall, pursuant to Gov. Code § 66499 and the
County Ordinance Code, provide as security to the County:
A. For Performance and Guarantee: $ 1.000.00 __ cash, plus additional security, in the amount of $ 15,00000

which together total one hundred percent (100%) of the estimated cost of the Work. Such additional security is presented in the form
of:
v Cash, certified check or cashier's check.
Acceptable corporate surety bond.
Acceptable irrevacable letter of credit.

With this security, Subdivider guarantees performance under this Agreement and maintenance of the Work for one year after its
completion and acceptance against any defective workmanship or materials or any unsatisfactory performance.

B. For Payment: Security in the amount: $ 8.000.00 _ which is fifty percent (50%) of the estimated cost of the Work.
Such security is presented in the form of:
Cash, certified check, or cashier's check
Acceptable corporate surety bond.
Acceptable irrevocable letter of credit.

With this security, Subdivider guarantees payment to the contractor, to its subcontractors and to persons renting eguipment or
furnishing labor or materials to them or to the Subdivider.

Upon acceptance of the Work as complete by the Board of Supervisors and upon request of Subdivider, the amounts held as

security may be reduced in accordance with Sections 94-4.406 and 94-4.408 of the Ordinance Code.
Form Approved by County Counsel

[Rev. 8/08]
Page 1 0of 2



4. GUARANTEE AND WARRANTY OF WORK. Subdivider guarantees that the Work shall be free from defects in material or
warkmanship and shall perform satisfactorily for a period of one (1) year from and after the Board of Supervisors accepts the Work as
complete in accordance with Article 96-4.6, “Acceptance,” of the Ordinance Code. Subdivider agrees to correct, repair, or replace, at
Subdivider's expense, any defects in said Work.

The guarantee period does not apply to road improvements for private roads that are not to be accepted into the County road
system.

5. PLANT ESTABLISHMENT WORK. Subdivider agrees to perform plant establishment work for landscaping installed under this
Agreement. Said plant establishment work shall consist of adequately watering plants, replacing unsuitable plants, doing weed, rodent
and other pest control and other work determined by the Public Works Department to be necessary to ensure establishment of plants.

Said plant establishment work shall be performed for a period of one (1) year from and after the Board of Supervisors accepts the Work

as complete.

6. IMPROVEMENT PLAN WARRANTY. Subdivider warrants the improvement plans for the Work are adequate to accomplish the
Work as promised in Section 2 and as required by the Conditions of Approval for the Subdivision. If, at any time before the Board of
Supervisors accepts the Work as complete or during the one year guarantee period, said improvement plans prove to be inadequate in
any respect, Subdivider shall make whatever changes are necessary to accomplish the Work as promised.

7. NO WAIVER BY COUNTY. Inspection of the Work and/or materials, or approval of the Work and/or materials or statement by
any officer, agent or employee of the County indicating the Work or any part thereof complies with the requirements of this Agreement,
or acceptance of the whale or any part of said Work and/or materials, or payments therefor, or any combination or all of these acts,
shall not relieve the Subdivider of its obligation to fulfilt this Agreement as prescribed; nor shall the County be thereby stopped from
bringing any action for damages arising from the failure to comply with any of the terms and conditions hereof.

8. INDEMNITY. Subdivider shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify the indemnitees from the liabilities as defined in this section:
A The indemnitees benefitted and protected by this promise are the County and its special districts, elective and
appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents and employees.
B. The liabilities protected against are any liability or claim for damage of any kind allegedly suffered, incurred or

threatened because of actions defined below, and including personal injury, death, property damage, inverse condemnation, or any
combination of these, and regardless of whether or not such liability, claim or damage was unforeseeable at any time before County
reviewed said improvement plans or accepted the Work as complete, and including the defense of any suit(s), action(s), or other
proceeding(s) conceming said liabilities and claims.

C. The actions causing liability are any act or omission (negligent or non-negligent) in connection with the matters
covered by this Agreement and attributable to Subdivider, contractor, subcontractor, or any officer, agent, or employee of one or more of
them.

D. Non-Conditions. The promise and agreement in this section are not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any
indemnitee has prepared, supplied, or approved any plan(s) or specification(s) in connection with this Work or Subdivision, or has
insurance or other indemnification covering any of these matters, or that the alleged damage resulted partly from any negligent or willful
misconduct of any indemnitee.

9. COSTS. Subdivider shall pay, when due, all the costs of the Work, including but not limited to the costs of relocations of existing
utilities required thereby; inspections; material checks and tests; and other costs incurred by County staff arising from or related to the
Work, and prior to acceptance of the Work as complete or expiration of any applicable warranty periods, whichever is later.

10. SURVEYS. Subdivider shall set and establish survey monuments in accordance with the filed map and to the satisfaction of
the County Road Commissioner-Surveyor before acceptance of the Work as complete by the Board of Supervisors.
11. NON-PERFORMANCE AND COSTS. If Subdivider fails to complete the Work within the time specified in this Agreement, and

subsequent extensions, or fails to maintain the Work, County may proceed to complete and/or maintain the Work by contract or
otherwise and Subdivider agrees to pay all costs and charges incurred by County (including, but not limited to, engineering, inspection,
surveys, contract, overhead, etc.) immediately upon demand.

Once action is taken by County to complete or maintain the Work, Subdivider agrees to pay all costs incurred by County, even
if Subdivider subsequently completes the Work.

Should County sue to compel performance under this Agreement or to recover costs incurred in completing or maintaining the
Work, Subdivider agrees to pay all attorney's fees, staff costs and all other expenses of litigation incurred by County in connection
therewith, even if Subdivider subsequently proceeds to complete the Work.

12. INCORPORATION/ANNEXATION. If, before the Board of Supervisors accepts the Work as complete, the Subdivision is
included in territory incorporated as a city or is annexed to an existing city, except as provided in this paragraph, County's rights under
this Agreement and/or any deposit, bond, or letter of credit securing said rights shall be transferred to the new or annexing city. Such
city shall have all the rights of a third party beneficiary against Subdivider, who shall fulfill all the terms of this Agreement as though
Subdivider had contracted with the city originally. The provisions of paragraph 8 (Indemnity) shall continue to apply in favor of the
indemnitees listed in paragraph 8.A. upon any such incorporation or annexation.

13. RECORD MAP. In consideration hereof, County shall allow Subdivider to file and record the final map or parcel map for said
Subdivision.

14. RIGHT OF ENTRY. Subdivider hereby consents to entry onto the Subdivision property, and onto any other property over
which Subdivider has land rights and upon which any portion of the Work is to be installed pursuant to the improvement plans, by
County and its forces, including contractors, for the purpose of inspection, and, in the event of non-performance of this Agreement by
Subdivider, completion and/or maintenance of the Work.

H:\Final\PW 1Sub.Agrmt.8.08.wpd

Form Approved by County Counsel
[Rev. 8/08]

Page 2 of 2



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or
validity of that document.

State of California .
County of _(ondved CosT2 )

On %W kﬂ'\’: 2022 before me, N&h/f ﬂfY) wa ?LLAO\;C)

(insért nanfe and title of the officer)

personally appeared Ml('/hfiplkbét\ffﬁ' m’l{‘/’ Suian (\J{T (ibd.ﬂfO DKLVII‘d

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s).isfare
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that hefShe/they executed the same in
higfhef/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by hislberftheir signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

Jrim

WITNESS my hand an i3 COMM. # 2360000 é

FSETAPCA NOTARY PUBLIC # CALIFORNIA
$3E9/)  CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
48/ Commission Expires JUNE 4, 2025

Signature (Seal)




| Fidelity National | $ 47.00

St

Contra

Russell V. Watts

Tax Collector’s Office
County Treasurer-Tax Collector

625 Court Street
Finance Building, Room 100

P. O. Box 631 Lulis Lopez
Mar‘gnez, California 94553- Assistant Tax Collector
006

(925) 957-5280

(925) 957-2898 (FAX) Danielle Goodbar

Tax Operations Supervisor

Date: 1/31/2023

IF THIS TRACT IS NOT FILED PRIOR TO THE DATE TAXES ARE OPEN FOR
COLLECTION (R&T CODE 2608) THIS LETTER IS VOID.

This will certify that | have examined the map of the proposed subdivision entitled:

Tract/ MS # City T.R.A.
MS 22-0006 Alamo 66009

Parcel #: 192-110-004-4

and have determined from the official tax records that there are no unpaid County taxes heretofore
levied on the property included in the map.

The 2022-2023 tax lien has been paid in full. Our estimate of the 2023-2024 tax lien, which
became a Lien on the 1st day of January, 2023 is :
$27,170.00

This tract is not subject to a 1915 Act Bond.

The amount calculated is void 45 days from the date of this letter, unless this letter

is accompanied with security approved by the Contra Costa County Tax Collector

Subdivision bond must be presented to the County Tax Collector for review and approval of
adequacy of security prior to filing with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

RUSSEL V. WATTS

e ‘\Jy v




COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT PERMIT
OFFICE OF COUNTY AUDITOR-CONTROLLER
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT NAME FISCAL YEAR
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 2022 - 2023 ORGANIZATION NUMBER 15
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSIT F“"'?éoRG :gg'r TAsk | opT| AcTiviTY| AMOUNT | TOTAL
SUBDIVISION GUARANTEE
tax collector special - subdivision guarantee 831400 0803 $27,170.00
$27,170.00

GENERAL DEPOSIT NOTES:

TOTAL DEPOSIT: $27,170.00

SITE OF DEPOSIT: BANK ACCOUNT DEPOSITED: Wells Fargo Bank - Tax Collector
CASH: $0.00 CHECKS: $0.00 BANK DEPOSIT: $27,170.00

Bank Receipt: SUB-DIV Date: 02/07/2023 NOTES: SUB-DIVISION GUARANTEE MS 22-0006 APN 192-110-004-4

SECTION 26901 GOVERNMENT CODE
| HEREBY SWEAR THAT THIS IS A

THE A-C OF CCC, HEREBY CERTIFIES

THAT THE AMOUNT DUE THE TREASURER

RECEIPT OF ABOVE AMOUNT

TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD OF THE TOTAL OF SAID COUNTY FOR MONIES COLLECTED

AMOUNT OF MONEY AS DESCRIBED ABOVE
FOR DEPOSIT INTO THE COUNTY TREASURY

BY TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR
-WELLS FARGO BANK - TAX COLLECTOR

IN SETTLEMENT OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED
ACCOUNTS IS THE SUM OF $27,170.00

Feb 07, 202303:50:10PM NOT PROCESSED
Rebbecca Magdaleno (Tax) NOT SIGNED
USER VALIDATION AUDITOR'S VALIDATION

USER PHONE NO.
925-957-2808

USER NAME
Rebbecca Magdaleno (Tax)

NOT PROCESSED

IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED.

NOT SIGNED.
TTC VALIDATION

SUBMIT DATE
Feb 07, 2023 03:50:10PM

EDP NO
DP864172




C. 4

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors
From: Brian M. Balbas, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer
Date: March 7, 2023

> 6
G Gt

Subj ect: Approve & Authorize the Public Works Director or Designee, to allocate up to $61,000 for the summer events at Livorna Park,
Alamo area.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to allocate up to $61,000 from County Service Area R-7 (CSA R-7)
funds to present the Alamo “2023 Summer Concert Series” and Alamo “2023 Movie Under the Stars” events at Livorna Park, Alamo area.
(District II)

FISCAL IMPACT:
100% CSA R-7 funds.

BACKGROUND:

The Alamo Municipal Advisory Council (Alamo MAC) presents free summer concerts and movie nights at Livorna Park. A recreation
sub-committee of the Alamo MAC chooses the movies and the bands each year. The “2023 Alamo Summer Concert Series” will take place
June 2314, July 7th, 215t and August 4th at 6:30 p.m., and the “2023 Alamo Movie Under the Stars” will take place on June 30th and July 28th
at 8:45 p.m. CSA R-7 parks and recreation funds are used to present these popular community events. On November 1, 2022 the Alamo MAC
reviewed and made recommendations about the bands and movies to be presented at this year's summer events.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without Board approval the events would not be possible.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7, 2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Rochelle Johnson (925) 313-2299

By:, Deputy

ce: Cameron Collins- BOS, Diana Oyler - Finance, Rochelle Johnson - Special Districts, Scott Anderson - Special Districts



ATTACHMENTS

Alamo MAC Meeting Record of Actions for November 1, 2022, 2022-2023 CSA R-7 "Event
budget with detail of event expenditures.




Alamo Municipal Advisory Council
Sharon Burke, Chair

Heather Chaput, Vice-Chair

Anne Struthers

Cecily Barclay

Michaela Straznicka

Robert Brannan

Robert Mowat

Michelle Parkinson, Alternate

Ronald Kan, Youth Member

Candace Andersen, Supervisor
Contra Costa County, District 2

309 Diablo Road

Danville, CA 94526

925-957-8860
cameron.collins@bos.cccounty.us

The Alamo Municipal Advisory Council serves as an advisory body to the Contra Costa County
Board of Supervisors and the County Planning Agency.

RECORD OF ACTIONS
Tuesday, November 1, 2022
6:00 p.m.
Alamo Women’s Club — 1401 Danville Blvd, Alamo, CA 94507

1. CALLTO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - ROLL CALL
All Members Present

2. STAFF/AGENCY REPORTS (15 minutes)
a. District Il Staff Update
a. Roundabout Update
b. LAFCO R7 Update
b. Contra Costa County Sheriff - Valley Station Update — None
¢. San Ramon Valley Fire District Update

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes/speaker)

4. PRESENTATIONS (20 minutes)

5. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS (20 minutes)
Alamo AOB Downtown/Roundabout Committee: Barclay
Alamo Subcommittee for Schools: Kan
Land Use Planning Subcommittee: Barclay, Brannan, Mowat
Iron Horse Corridor Subcommittee: Struthers
Parks and Recreation Subcommittee: Struthers (Chair), Burke, Chaput
Public Safety (Police P-2, Fire, Emergency): Brannan, Chaput, Straznicka
Trees and Landscape Subcommittee: Mowat, Burke

6. NEW BUSINESS (20 minutes per application)

a. CDVR22-01054 — The applicant requests approval of a Variance for an
approximately 10-foot side yard (where 15 feet is required) and a small lot
design review in order to construct a 1,049 square-foot addition in line with
the existing side yard of the single-family residence. The plans were approved as
part of a small lot design review, but a survey performed for the building permit
shows that the fence lines are not in line with the property lines as initially
thought. Address is 315 Crest Avenue. (Planner: Adrian Veliz)

Motion to recommend approve by Member Mowat, second by Member
Struthers. Unanimous approval.

Public Comment:

Jacob Schroeder (Applicant)



mailto:cameron.collins@bos.cccounty.us

Valerie Schooley

b. CDVR22-01055 - The applicant requests approval of variances for an
approximately 2.5-foot side yard (where 3 feet is required) and an approximately
2-foot rear yard (where 3 feet is required) for the construction of as-built retaining
walls over 3 feet in height. Address is 2551 Joseph Drive, Alamo. (Planner: Adrian
Veliz)

Motion to recommend denial based on a lack of information, by Member

Struthers, second by Member Chaput. Vote is 5 to 2 (Member Brannan

and Member Mowat vote against).

Public Comment:

Valerie Schooley

Eric Firstman

Questions:

- Was the wall built based on structural engineering plans such that a
county inspector could determine that the wall is safe, and has proper
drainage and reinforcement for its height and size? Why were the
engineering plans dated after the wall was built?

- What are the County rules for the height of a retaining wall?

- How can the MAC be sure the trees planted will not be a future
maintenance problem for the neighbor? is there enough room for the
trees so that roots do not compromise the safety of the wall?

- Can the applicant explain what their hardship is that they require a
variance to build this structure?

c. CDTP22-00017 — The applicant requests approval of a Tree Permit for the removal
of nineteen (19) code-protected trees with the demolition of an existing single-
family residence, and a Small Lot Design Review for the construction of a new,
5,915 sq. ft. single-family residence, a new pool, and a new, 545 sq. ft. pool house
on a lot of substandard average width. The address is 132 Leona Court. (Planner:
Diana Lecca)

Public Comment:

Mason Wodhmans, Architect

Valerie Schooley

Don Schmidt, Camille Court

Maureen Ellis, Leona Court

Motion by Member Struthers to recommend denial, second by Member

Straznicka. Unanimous approval.

d. December 4, 2022 Alamo Rotary Tree Lighting Cost

Motion to recommend approve by Member Struthers, second by

Straznicka. Unanimous approval.

e. 2023 Summer Concert and Movie Series Recommendation

Recommended dates: June 23 through the 4™ of August depending on
availability

Beach Boys, Sun Kings, David Perez and Forejour. If any of those are not
acceptable because too expensive or not available on our preferred
dates, then the alternate band is Mixed Nuts. The MAC would like to
direct County staff to report the pricing of each band, realizing the
budget guideline is $5,000 per band but if one band is more expensive
than that and one band is cheaper, then that is up to the MAC to decide
not just that a band would be excluded because it exceeds $5,000.



Motion to recommend by Member Struthers, second by Member
Straznicka. Unanimous approval.

Recommended Movies: Star Wars, ET, Back to the Future, Goonies,
Raiders of the Lost Ark, and Shrek

Motion by Vice Chair Chaput, motion by Member Straznicka. Unanimous
approval.

7. OLD BUSINESS

8. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the Alamo MAC to be routine and will be enacted by
one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a member of the Alamo MAC or
a member of the public prior to the time the Alamo MAC votes on the motion to adopt.

a. Approve October 4, 2022 Record of Actions.
Motion to recommend approval Member Struthers, Member Brannan.
Unanimous approval.

9. CORRESPONDENCE (the following items are listed for informational purposes only and
may be considered for discussion at a future meeting).
a. None

10. COMMENTS BY MEMBERS OF THE ALAMO MAC

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
a. Will Nelson, Department of Conservation and Development
b. Youth Representative role

12. ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 8:59pm.

The Alamo Municipal Advisory Council will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to attend the
meeting who contact Supervisor Candace Andersen’s office at least 72 hours before the meeting at 925-957-8860.

Materials distributed for the meeting are available for viewing at the District 2 Office at 309 Diablo Road, Danville, CA 94526. To receive a
copy of the Alamo MAC agenda via mail or email, please submit your request in writing using a speaker card or by contacting Supervisor
Andersen’s office at 925-957-8860. Complete name and address must be submitted to be added to the list.



Alamo Parks and Recreation, CSA R-7

2022-23 Budget Proposal

FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
Year to Date Budget Year to Date ?:;n:::‘edd Budget
. 6/30/2021 9/30/2021
7758|County Service Area R-7A Total
Fund Balance $3,876,325| $4,421,455 $4,421,455 $4,421,455 $4,888,878
Ledger Code|REVENUE:

9000, 9100, 9385, 9580(|Taxes 1,352,301 1,350,000 1,313,126 1,375,729 1,375,750
9400(Interest Earned 891 2,000 0 1,185 2,000
9600(|Alamo Sports Field Fees 6,876 7,500 0 5,000 7,500

TOTAL REVENUE 1,360,069 1,359,500 1,313,126 1,381,914 1,385,250
REVENUE PLUS FUND BALANCE 5,236,394 5,780,955 5,734,581 5,803,368 6,274,128
EXPENSES:
Services and Supplies
2100/2479/3622|0ffice Expense 572 1,000 0 1,000 1,000
2120/2170|Utilities 18,154 22,000 4,599 20,000 22,000
2170/2284|Trash/Custodial 36,672 32,000 516 30,000 32,000
2310|Hap Magee Operations 195,196 206,810 0 220,000 234,108
2310{Hemme Shade 14,054 0 28,146 54,000 0
2190/2130/2284/2310/2479|0ther Contracted Services 26,302 39,600 6,380 33,915 39,600
Various (2479/2490)|Recreation Supplies 8,358 16,000 16,592 32,000 19,600
SUBTOTAL(Services and Supplies Total 299,307 317,410 56,232 390,915 348,308
Other Charges
3611/3622|County Counsel; Assessment Admin. 11,764 15,600 823 10,600 10,600
3611/3619(|Prop Tax, Lease Management 14,840 7,500 0 7,200 7,500
2282/3620|Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 269,587 283,000 76,965 273,575 284,100
SUBTOTAL|Other Charges Total 312,127 306,100 77,788 291,375 302,200
Fixed Assets (Capital Improvements)
4766|Hap Magee Park Imps 41,982 70,000 0 70,000 20,000
4703 |Hemme Station Park Construction 0 0 0 300 0
SUBTOTAL|Fixed Assets (Capital Improvements) Total 41,982 70,000 0 70,300 20,000
Public Works Staff (Administration)
5011|Public Works Staff (Administration) 161,523 150,900 59,546 161,900 155,400
SUBTOTAL|Public Works Staff (Administration) Total 161,523 150,900 59,546 161,900 155,400
TOTAL EXPENSES 814,939 844,410 193,566 914,490 825,908
Net 545,129 515,090 1,119,560 467,424 559,342
Fund Balance (Park Development/Reserve) $4,421,455| $4,936,545|  $5,541,015 $4,888,878 $5,448,220

ADDITIONAL PARK DEVELOPMENT FUNDS - ALAMO

Park Dedication Fees $503,160

G:\Acct_SD\Alamo MAC Report 22-23\2022-23 Budget\CSA R7 MAC FY 2022-23 Budget6/3/2022




Alamo Parks and Recreation, CSA R-7
Administration and Miscellaneous

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
Year to Date Year End
Budget 9/30/2021 Total Budget
Service and Supplies 1,000 2,700 1,000 1,000
Assessment Admin./County Counsel 10,000 823 10,000 10,000
Public Works Staff (Administration) 75,000 27,969 75,000 75,000
Total 86,000 31,491.76 86,000.00 86,000




Alamo Parks and Recreation, CSA R-7

Parks
Livorna Park
FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
Estimated
Year to Date Year End
Budget 9/30/2021 Total Budget
Services and Supplies 50,000 4,145 45,000 50,000
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 170,000 40,523 170,000 170,000
Livorna Park Bocce Ball Courts 0 0 0 0
Public Works Staff (Administration) 23,500 2,911 22,000 23,500
Total 243,500 47,579 237,000 243,500
Alamo Elementary School
Services and Supplies 5,000 1,280 4,800 5,000
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 35,000 5,155 30,000 35,000
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 4,000 0 3,000 4,000
Total 44,000 6,435 37,800 44,000
Alamo Oaks Trail
Services and Supplies 500 0 500 500
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 5,000 0 5,000 5,000
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 1,000 0 1,000 1,000
Total 6,500 0 6,500 6,500
Andrew H. Young Park
Services and Supplies 6,500 2,808 6,000 6,500
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 30,000 18,636 30,000 30,000
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 2,500 6,397 7,500 5,000
Total 39,000 27,842 43,500 41,500
Hemme Park Development
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 0 364 0 0
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 0 0 0 0
Total 0 364 0 0
Rancho Romero School
Prop Tax/Insurance, Lease Management 500 11 200 500
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 100 0 100 100
Total 600 11 300 600
Hap Magee Ranch Park
Hap Magee Operations (Supplies & Services) 203,310 0 221,468 234,108
County Counsel 600 0 600 600
Prop Tax, Lease Management 7,000 0 7,000 7,000
Capital Improvements 70,000 0 70,000 20,000
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 2,000 2,297 3,500 4,000
Total 282,910 2,297 302,568 265,708
Iron Horse Trail Corridor
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 3,000 455 2,500 3,000
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 1,000 0 1,000 1,000
Total 4,000 455 3,500 4,000
Hemme Park Admin & Maintenance
Services and Supplies 22,000 1,718 22,000 22,000
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 45,000 10,664 36,000 40,000
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 10,000 3,450 10,000 10,000
Total 77,000 15,831 68,000 72,000
Hemme Shade Improvement
Services and Supplies 0 28,071 54,000 0
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 0 75 75 0
Capital Improvements 60,000 0 300 0
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 0 3,158 5,000 0]
Total 60,000 31,305 59,375 0
H Fire Dept M 1t
Services and Supplies 0 0 8,057 0
Grounds/Facilities Maintenance 0 0 0 0
Capital Improvements 0 0 0 0
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 0 0 2,000 0|
Total 0 0 10,057 0
Parks Summary
FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
Estimated
Year to Date Year End
BUDGET 9/30/2021 Total Budget
Services and Supplies 287,310 38,022 361,825 318,108
Grounds/Facilities Mtce and other charges 289,100 75,519 273,575 284,100
Capital Improvements 130,000 0 70,300 20,000
Public Works Staff (Admin.) 44,100 18,214 55,100 48,600
Total 750,510 131,755 760,800 670,808




Alamo Parks and Recreation, CSA R-7

Events
FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
Year to Date Year End
Budget 9/30/2021 Total Budget
Movie Under the Stars
Services and Supplies 4,100 3,170 4,090 4,200
Public Works Staff (Administration) 8,500 4,228 8,500 8,500
Total 12,600 7,398 12,590 12,700
Summer Concert Series
Services and Supplies 23,000 13,422 22,000 23,000
Public Works Staff (Administration) 23,000 9,136 23,000 23,000
Total 46,000 22,557 45,000 46,000
Tree Lighting
Services and Supplies 2,000 0 2,000 2,000
Public Works Staff (Administration) 300 0 300 300
Total 2,300 0 2,300 2,300

Events Summary

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
Year to Date Year End
BUDGET | 9/30/2021 Total Budget
Services and Supplies 29,100 16,592 28,090 29,200
Public Works Staff (Administration) 31,800 13,363 31,800 31,800
Total Event Summary 60,900 29,955 59,890 61,000




C.5

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Flood Control District Board of Supervisors
From: Brian M. Balbas, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer
Date: March 7,2023

Subject: On-call Contract Amendment with GEI Consultants, Inc.

RECOMMENDATION(S):
Acting as the governing body of the Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (FC District), APPROVE and

AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with GEI Consultants, Inc. (Consultant), to extend the term
through March 18, 2024, for on-call facility design and conditions assessment, with no change to the payment limit, Countywide.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact with this action, as it is only to extend the term of the contract. This project, including the contract, will be funded 100%
by FC District Funds. (Project No.: Various)

BACKGROUND:

The FC District provides regional flood protection, technical information, hydrology data and education to cities and residents, and
environmental stewardship for over 70 miles of streams and several detention basins as part of the County’s flood protection system. The FC
District initiated a facility conditions assessment program for its flood control facilities,

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Michelle Cordis, (925) 313-2381

By: , Deputy

ce: Allison Knapp, Deputy Chief Engineer, Tim Jensen, Flood Control, Michelle Cordis, Flood Control, Michael Taylor, Flood Control, Catherine Windham, Flood Control



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

which includes, among other facilities, concrete channels, earthen channels, steel structures, drop structures, levees, detention basins, and other
hydraulic structures (each referred to as “Facility”). The FC District, at times, requires additional temporary services from persons specially
trained, experienced, expert, and competent to perform professional engineering and technical services required for Facility conditions
assessment. For that reason, the FC District entered into the contract with Consultant on March 19, 2019. Under the contract, Consultant
provides professional engineering and technical services relating to Facility conditions assessment on an on-call basis for a variety of FC
District projects throughout Contra Costa County.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without the approval of the Board of Supervisors, the FC District will be unable to continue obtaining on-call services for professional
engineering and technical services relating to Facility conditions assessment.



Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors
From: Greg Baer, Director of Airports
Date: March 7, 2023

Subj ect: Approve and Authorize the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a hangar rental agreement with Buchanan Field Airport
Hangar tenant

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a month-to-month hangar rental agreement with Peter Moody,

for a north-facing hangar at Buchanan Field Airport effective February 28, 2023, in the monthly amount of $380.00, Pacheco area (District IV).

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Airport Enterprise Fund will realize $4,560.00 annually.

BACKGROUND:
On November 14, 2006, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved the form of the T-Hangar and Shade Hangar Rental
Agreement for use with renting the County's t-hangars, shade hangars, medium hangars, and executive hangars at Buchanan Field Airport.

On February 23, 2007, Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved the new Large Hangar Rental Agreement for use with the large
East Ramp Hangars.

On January 16, 2009, Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved an amendment to the T-Hangar and Shade Hangar

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Greg Baer, 925-681-4200

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Rental Agreement and the Large Hangar Rental Agreement (combined "Hangar Rental Agreements"). The Hangar Rental Agreements are
the current forms in use for rental of all the County hangars at Buchanan Field Airport.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
A negative action will cause a loss of revenue to the Airport Enterprise Fund.

ATTACHMENTS
Hangar Rental Agmt pg 4-5 CCR D-9




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY - BUCHANAN FIELD AIRPORT

T-HANGAR AND SHADE HANGAR RENTAL AGREEMENT

PARTIES: _February 28, 2023, (“Effective Date”), the COUNTY OF CONTRA
COSTA, a political subdivision of the State of California ("Airport"), Peter Moody
("Renter"), hereby mutually agree and promise as follows:

RENTER AND AIRCRAFT INFORMATION: Simultaneous with the execution of this
T-Hangar and Shade Hangar Rental Agreement (“Rental Agreement”) by Renter,
Renter shall complete the Renter and Aircraft Information Form. A completed copy
of the Renter and Aircraft Information Form is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated herein. Renter must also provide to Airport at that time, for inspection
and copying, (1) the original current Aircraft Registration or, if the aircraft described
in Exhibit A is under construction, the plans for and proof of ownership of such
aircraft; and (2) the insurance information required by Section 16 below.

PURPOSE: The purpose of this Rental Agreement is to provide for the rental of a T-
Hangar or Shade Hangar space at the Contra Costa County - Buchanan Field
Airport for the storage of the aircraft described in the Renter and Aircraft Information
Form (“Renter’s Aircraft”).

PREMISES: For and in consideration of the rents and faithful performance by Renter
of the terms and conditions set forth herein, Airport hereby rents to Renter and
Renter hereby rents from Airport that T-Hangar or Shade Hangar shown as #_D-9
on the T-Hangar and Shade Hangar Site Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit B and
incorporated herein. This T-Hangar or Shade Hangar is part of the T-Hangar and
Shade Hangar Site (“T-Hangar Site”) and shall hereinafter be described as the "T-
Hangar.”

Renter has inspected the T-Hangar and hereby accepts the T-Hangar in its present
condition, as is, without any obligation on the part of Airport to make any alterations,
improvements, or repairs in or about the T-Hangar.

USE: The T-Hangar shall be exclusively by Renter for the storage of Renter's
Aircraft. In addition to the storage of Renter’s Aircraft, Renter may use the T-Hangar
for (1) the homebuilding, restoration and/or maintenance of Renter's Aircraft,
provided that such homebuilding, restoration and/or maintenance is performed by
Renter only and in conformance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, resolutions,
regulations, orders, circulars (including but not limited to FAA Advisory Circular 20-
27) and policies now in existence or adopted from time to time by the United States,
the State of California, the County of Contra Costa and other government agencies
with jurisdiction over Buchanan Field Airport; (2) the storage of and materials directly
4

Revised T-HANGAR AND SHADE HANGAR AGREEMENT

aiinnna



related to the storage, construction of homebuilt planes homebuilding, restoration,
and/or maintenance of Renter's Aircraft; (3) the storage of one boat, or one
recreational vehicle, or one motorcycle, or one automobile, provided that Renter first
provides to Airport proof of Renter's ownership and original registration of any stored
boat or vehicle, for inspection and copying; and/or (4) the storage of comfort items
(such as a couch, small refrigerator, etc.) that the Director of Airports, in his sole
discretion, determines will not impede the use of the hangar for the storage of
Renter's Aircraft, and are not prohibited by applicable building and fire codes. The
T-Hangar shall not be used for any purpose not expressly set forth in this Section 5.
Use.

The use of all or a portion of the T-Hangar for the storage of aircraft not owned or
leased by Renter is prohibited. ("Aircraft not owned or leased by Renter” means any
aircraft in which Renter does not have an ownership interest or which is not directly
leased to Renter). Renter shall present proof of said ownership interest or lease to
Airport upon request in addition to that information provided in Exhibit A.

If Renter's Aircraft is or becomes non-operational, it may be stored in the T-Hangar
only if it is being homebuilt or restored by Renter. Prior to the commencement of
any such homebuilding or restoration, Renter shall provide to Airport (1) a copy of
the purchase agreement or (2) a valid federal registration number. If Renter's
Aircraft is not registered as of the Effective Date, upon completion of construction,
Renter shall register and apply for an airworthiness certificate for Renter’s Aircraft in
accordance with all applicable federal statutes and regulations and provide the
original registration and certification to Airport, for inspection and copying,
immediately upon receipt by Renter. On or before January 1 of each year, if the
homebuilding or restoration has not been completed, Renter shall provide a written
annual report to the Director of Airports that details the homebuilding or restoration
activity performed, work still required to be completed and an estimate of time of
completion.

TERM: This Rental Agreement shall be from month to month commencing
February 28, 2023, and shall continue until terminated. This Rental Agreement may
be terminated by any party upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.

RENT:

A. Monthly Rent and Additional Rent. Renter shall pay $_380.00 in rent per
month (“Monthly Rent”) due and payable in advance on the first day of each
calendar month, beginning on the commencement date of this Rental
Agreement. Unless directed to do otherwise by Airport, Renter shall pay rent
only in cash or by personal check, certified check, or money order. If the term
of this Rental Agreement begins on a day other than the first day of the
month, the Monthly Rent stated above for the first month shall be prorated

5

Revised T-HANGAR AND SHADE HANGAR AGREEMENT

IHNNG



Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard III, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Purchase Order for Stryker LifePak Defibrillators and Equipment

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Fire Chief, to execute a purchase order with Stryker, in an amount not to

exceed $215,000, for the purchase of four (4) LIFEPAK defibrillators and accompanying equipment.

FISCAL IMPACT:
100% CCCFPD EMS Transport Fund: $215,000; costs will be covered with existing appropriations in the CCCFPD EMS Transport Fund.

BACKGROUND:

The Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (District) uses highly technical emergency medical equipment to provide care on the scene of
medical emergencies. LifePak defibrillators are utilized by EMTs and Paramedics to analyze the heart’s rhythm and, if necessary, deliver an
electrical shock (defibrillation) to help the heart reestablish an effective rhythm. They can also be used as a pacing device and conduct 12-lead
electrocardiograms. The District needs to purchase new defibrillators periodically as older equipment becomes damaged beyond repair or ages
beyond use.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors
on the date shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Contact: Scott Wannamaker, Assistant Chief of EMS Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
925-941-3300

By: , Deputy

cc:



Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors
From: Greg Baer, Director of Airports
Date: March 7, 2023

Subj ect: Approval of an Amended and Restated Lease for the Existing Hotel at 45 John Glenn Drive, Buchanan Field Airport (District IV)

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute an amended and restated lease with Dale Village Apartment

Company, LP, to extend the term of the lease for the property located at 45 John Glenn Drive, Concord, through March 2073, at an initial annual
rent of $500,400, with rent increases every three years.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no negative impact on the General Fund. The amended lease facilitates the Airport Enterprise Fund to continue to receive ground rent
and other income from this existing hotel site. As a result of this lease extension, the General Fund will continue to receive revenue from sales,
transient occupancy, and possessory interest taxes.

BACKGROUND:

In September 1971, the County entered into a long-term ground lease for the subject property for the development of a 323-room hotel at
Buchanan Field Airport. While this property was approved by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for non-aeronautical uses, it remains
subject to the FAA’s lease provisions. The hotel was constructed under the terms of the original lease and has been in operation for
approximately 50 years. The term of the original lease

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7, 2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Beth Lee, 925-681-4200

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)
expires May 31, 2037.

Following a series of lease assignments, the current tenant is Dale Village Apartment Company, LP (Dale Village). Dale Village desires to
make improvements to the property, including renovation of the hotel in order to align it with a national brand. Financing for the
improvements is expected to be through a leasehold mortgage. To make the costs associated with the needed renovation economically
viable, the financing will need to be amortized over a longer period of time than the 14 years remaining on the existing lease. To that end,
Dale Village has requested that the term of the lease be extended through March 2073, which equates to a 36-year term extension.

In addition to extending the term of the lease, the proposed amended and restated lease will modify the terms applicable to ground rent and
other amounts due from the tenant, allow Dale Village to make capital improvements to the property, and incorporate current County and
FAA standard lease terms. Such modifications and updates will make the document more consistent with other leases in effect with the
Airports Division.

This lease extension aligns with the Airports Division’s goal of revenue diversification through non-aeronautical leases. Additionally, it
facilitates investment in airport property that also benefits the greater community.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the term of the lease is not extended, the hotel will not be renovated or attached with a national brand. As a result, there will most likely
be a reduction in the economic viability of the property, including the diminishment of rent received by the Airport Enterprise Fund, as well
as sales, transient occupancy and possessory interest taxes received by the County.

ATTACHMENTS
Hotel Lease




AMENDED AND RESTATED LEASE

Between

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

as Lessor

and

Dale Village Apartment Company, LP

as Tenant

April 1, 2023

Contra Costa County
Buchanan Field Airport
550 Sally Ride Drive
Concord, CA 94520-5606
(925) 681-4200



A S T et A e

|\ T NG T NG TR NG T NG TN N JSN Sy GGG G V HG GHR G C CHG
N N = T TS TN VIR SO I S e =

AMENDED AND RESTATED LEASE

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

AND

DALE VILLAGE APARTMENT COMPANY, LP

Percentage and Other AdditionNal RENT c.oeeeeneeeeieeeeeeeeee e e aa e

Additional PaYImMENTt PrOVISIONS. .. ..ueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeseeeaesnnennannnnn

Lessor Processing and TTanSaction FEES......ouuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees

Use of Premises.

CONAILION OF PIrOIMISES ettt ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e reaaaaeeeeeeeeananas

ULIIEY ODIIGATIONS e esesnsmsesnmsnmnmnnnnnnnn

AIterations and AQGITIONS ......eeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e seeenesesnennannnnn

Maintenance, RePaIr and STOTAZE ... .coeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eareaaeeeeas

Lawful Conduct

Waste, Quiet Conduct, Nuisance, POIIULION. ......coovitiiiiiieieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees

HAZATAOUS MALETIALS .eeeeeeeieiiieieeeeeieeeeee ettt ettt et eeeteeeeeeeeeeeeee et eeee et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees

StOTMIWALET DISCRATZE .eeeeeeeee et e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeearaaeeeeeaeaneans

RUIES AN REGUIALIONS. ..ottt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeaaaaaeeeens

Noise Ordinance

Security .............

Indemnification.

Insurance...........

InSpection, ACCESS AN NOLICE ...eevveieeeeiieeeeeeeeeeee ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees

Assignment and ENCUIMDIAINCES ......eeeeeeeeeeeee et e e e e e e e eeere e e e e e e e eeearaaaeeeeas




26. SUITENder Of POSSESSION .....uvieuiiiiiiiiiieeit ettt ettt e st et e s aeeebeeseeas
2 D 1<) 1 SRR SRSURRPSN
28, LeSSOI’S REMEAIES . .eeuviuiiiiiiiiiiiieieeitestce ettt sttt et s be ettt
29, DESHUCTION ..uteitetieiteeite sttt ettt ettt st ettt e bt et eb e e bt eatesht e bt eatesbe e bt eatesbeenbeentesbeenbesneesneenneas
30. CONACIMNALION ...ttt ettt e bt e et e b e e it e e bt e eabeebeesabeenbeesnbeenbeesnbeenbeenaeas
31. Cancellation DY LESSOT......coiuiiiiiiiieiiiete ettt ettt ettt et e st e b e
32.  Financing of Leasehold EState ..........ccccoroiiriiiiiiiiiniiiiiiieieeeeceese ettt
33, NON-DiSCIIMINATION ..uveriiiiiinieeitentierieete sttt ettt e steetestte bt eatesieesteetesaeesbeesbesatesbeesesseesaeennens
34. Operation of AIrPOrt DY LeSSOT...c..uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et
35. Airport Use and DeVEIOPMENL .........oiuiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeie ettt e
36. Development Of PrOMISES .. .coueeterieriiiieriieieeieeiieste ettt sttt ettt s e e
37.  Instrument Of TranSfer .......ccooiiiiiiiiiiie e
38. CROTCE OF LLAW .ttt ettt ettt e st e bt e st e e bt e sateenbeeeneas
39, INNOLICES tutteueeetieieeteetee sttt ettt et e et et e et e e et et e e st e e st et e enbeese e st enteenee et enteente st enteenteeseenbeeneenneennean
40. Time 1S Of the ESSEINCE ..c..eeviiuiiiiiiieiiesieeie ettt s
4].  BINAING ON SUCCESSOTS ..uveeuviriietienieriienteetesttenteetesttesteestesttes st essesueensesasesseenbeestesbeensesseenseensens
42. Invalid Provisions; SEVETabIlity .......cccueiuiiiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt e
43. ENIre AGIEEIMENL ... .eiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e bt e et e bt e sabeeabeesatesbeesaeeenee
44, Cumulative Rights and REMEdIes .......c.cevuiriiriiiiiiiiiniieieiieieeesee e
45.  No Third-Party BenefiCiaries .......c.cceouerirrieriiriieiiniieieeie sttt sttt
46. NO CONtNUING WAIVET ....eoutiiiiiiiiieeitieite ettt ettt ettt et e stee st esat e e bt e sbteeabeesaeeebeessseeseens
47. Covenant Against Liens; Recordation Against Premises ..........ccoecveevieniienienieenienieeieeee.
48, FOICE IMAJEULIEC ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e b ettt sh e bt et e s ae et e e st e sbe et e eatesbeenbesseesneennean
49.  Lease AUNOTIZATION ..cc.eeruiiiiriiitieteeiteste ettt ettt ettt sttt et e sbe bt et sbeenbesaeesbeenneas
50. Drafting CONVENTIONS .....ccuieiuiieiieiiie ettt ettt ettt et ettt e st e e bt e sateebeesateeabeesateenbeesaeeenne

EXHIBIT A — Legal Description
EXHIBIT B — Potential Capital Improvements



AMENDED AND RESTATED LEASE

This amended and restated lease agreement is dated as of April 1, 2023 (the “Effective
Date”), and is between of the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, a political subdivision of the State of
California (the “County” or “Lessor”), and DALE VILLAGE APARTMENT COMPANY, LP, a
California limited partnership (“Tenant”).

RECITALS

A. Lessor owns and operates Buchanan Field, a public airport located at Concord, California
(the “Airport”), as shown on the Airport Layout Plan, which plan is on file in the office
of the County Director of Airports (“Director of Airports™).

B. Lessor and Tenant are parties to a lease dated September 21, 1971, as modified, amended,
and assigned (the “Original Lease”), under which Tenant is leasing real property at the
Airport commonly known as 45 John Glenn Drive, as more fully described in Exhibit A
(the “Premises”). Tenant’s possession of the Premises began under the Original Lease.
As permitted under the Original Lease, the Premises has been improved by the
construction of a 323-room hotel (the “Hotel”).

C. The County and Tenant desire to amend and restate the Original Lease in order to extend
its term and modify various provisions. As consideration for the extension of the term of
the Original Lease, Tenant has the option to pay a lease extension fee of $1,300,000 (the
“Extension Fee”) or to make capital improvements to the Premises, as more fully
described below.

The parties therefore agree as follows:
AGREEMENT

1. Lease: For and in consideration of the rent, fees, and faithful performance by Tenant of
the terms and conditions and the mutual covenants hereof, Lessor hereby leases to
Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Lessor the Premises, subject to all easements and
encumbrances of record. Effective on the Effective Date, this lease supersedes and
replaces the Original Lease. Effective on the Effective Date, the Original Lease has no
force or effect. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the terms of the Original Lease
remain in effect with respect to any rights or obligations that were accrued or incurred
prior to the Effective Date.

2. Capital Improvements; Shortfall Fee:

A. Capital Improvements. During the term of this lease, Tenant may elect to make
capital improvements to the Premises that (i) do not interfere with the safe operation
of the Airport, and (ii) are consistent with the ongoing use and operation of the Hotel,
such as those identified within Exhibit B (any such improvements, “Capital




Improvements”). Any Capital Improvements Tenant elects to perform are to be
constructed by well-trained, adequately supervised workers, in a good and
workmanlike manner, free from design, material and workmanship defects in
accordance with all Applicable Laws and Restrictions (the “Performance
Standards”). For purposes of this lease, “Applicable Laws and Restrictions”
means all laws (including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act),
ordinances, regulations, building codes, fire codes, orders, and policies in existence or
adopted from time to time by the United States, the State of California, the County of
Contra Costa and other government agencies having jurisdiction over the Premises.

B. Shortfall Fee. If Tenant does not spend at least $10,000,000 on Capital
Improvements by June 30, 2028, Tenant shall pay the County the Shortfall Fee, plus
interest on the Shortfall Fee calculated at 6% per year from the Effective Date
through the date the Shortfall Fee is paid. For purposes of this lease, the “Shortfall
Fee” is equal to the result obtained by multiplying the Extension Fee by a fraction,
the numerator of which is the Shortfall Amount and the denominator of which is
$10,000,000. For purposes of this lease, the “Shortfall Amount” means the amount
by which Tenant spends less than $10,000,000 on Capital Improvements after the
Effective Date and prior to July 1, 2028.

i. Example No. 1. If the Shortfall Amount is $1,000,000, the Shortfall Fee
will be equal to $1,300,000 x ($1,000,000/$10,000,000), or $130,000, plus
interest at 6% per year from the Effective Date.

ii. Example No. 2. If the Shortfall Amount is $10,000,000, the Shortfall Fee
will be equal to $1,300,000 x (10,000,000/$10,000,000), or $1,300,000,
plus interest at 6% per year from the Effective Date.

C. Documentation. As soon as practicable after the earlier to occur of (i) June 30, 2028,
and (ii) the date Tenant determines it has completed all the Capital Improvements it is
going to make, if any, in connection with the calculation of the amount due under
Section 2.B — Shortfall Fee, above, Tenant shall notify the Director of Airports in
writing of the date the Capital Improvements were completed (such notice, the
“Completion Notice”). Tenant shall cause the Completion Notice to include
evidence of the amount expended to complete the Capital Improvements that were
completed on or before June 30, 2028.

Term: The term of this lease is 50 years, beginning on the Effective Date and ending
March 31, 2073.

Holding Over: If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after the expiration of the
term of this lease, it is not a renewal or extension of this lease but is only a tenancy from
month to month that may be terminated at any time by Lessor or Tenant upon 30 days
written notice. All terms and conditions of this lease then in effect will govern the
month-to-month tenancy.



Rent: Monthly rent is payable monthly in advance without demand on or before the first
day of each month (“Ground Rent”). For any partial month, Tenant shall pay Ground
Rent to Lessor at a rate of 1/30 of the applicable Ground Rent per day.

A.

Initial Ground Rent: For the period April 1, 2023, through March 31, 2029,
Tenant shall pay Ground Rent in the amount of $41,700.00 per month.

Adjusted Ground Rent:

i.  Revaluation Dates. Ground Rent will be adjusted every three years on the
anniversary of the Effective Date (each such date, a “Revaluation Date”);
provided, however, the first Revaluation Date will be April 1, 2029.

ii. Calculation. Beginning on each Revaluation Date, Tenant shall pay Ground
Rent for the subsequent three-year period in an amount equal to (1) the
amount determined by dividing the sum of all Ground Rent and Percentage
Rent (defined below) incurred during the preceding three-year period by 36
and multiplying the result by 0.65, or (2) the Ground Rent in effect during the
preceding three-year period, whichever is greater. In no event will the
adjusted Ground Rent be less than the Ground Rent in effect for the
immediately preceding three-year period. The Lessor shall initiate the
revaluation process prior to each Revaluation Date.

Percentage and Other Additional Rent:

A.

Percentage Rent. In addition to Ground Rent, beginning on April 1, 2026, Tenant
shall pay Percentage Rent monthly in arrears, provided Percentage Rent is a
positive number. If Percentage Rent is not a positive number, no Percentage Rent
is due for that month.

Percentage Rent Due Date. Percentage Rent is due no later than the 15th day of
the month that follows the month Tenant earned the Gross Rooms Receipts and
Other Gross Receipts (the “Relevant Month”).

Definitions.

1. “Gross Receipts” means, for any given period, collectively, Gross Rooms
Receipts and Other Gross Receipts for that period.

ii. “Gross Rooms Receipts” means all gross revenues for the rental of guest
rooms in the Hotel that are collected, at the actual rates charged, and
excluding any sales, use, excise or room or other similar taxes Tenant collects
and transmits to the appropriate taxing authority. Gross Rooms Receipts does
not include the value of any complimentary rooms or any gratuities or other
charges that Tenant collects from guests that are paid or reimbursed to



employees or other parties. Gross Rooms Receipts does not include any
bookings deposits until they have been earned.

iii. “Other Gross Receipts” means all revenue and receipts derived from
Tenant’s operation of the Hotel, excluding Gross Rooms Receipts, and
excluding any sales, use, excise or other similar taxes Tenant collects and
transmits to the appropriate taxing authority. Other Gross Receipts does not
include the value of any complimentary goods and services (including food
and beverage) or any gratuities or other charges that Tenant collects from
guests that are paid or reimbursed to employees or other parties. Other Gross
Receipts does not include any security deposits paid by or revenues of
subtenants, licensees or concessionaires.

iv. “Percentage Rent” means an amount equal to the result obtained by
subtracting the then-current Ground Rent from the Percentage Threshold.

v. “Percentage Threshold” for the period April 1, 2026, through March 31,
2033, means an amount equal to the result obtained by adding (x) the result
obtained by multiplying Gross Rooms Receipts by 0.02, and (y) the result
obtained by multiplying Other Gross Receipts by 0.01.

vi. “Percentage Threshold” for the period April 1, 2033, through March 31,
2073, means an amount equal to the result obtained by adding (x) the result
obtained by multiplying Gross Rooms Receipts by 0.04, and (y) the result
obtained by multiplying Other Gross Receipts by 0.02.

Examples of Percentage Rent.

i.  Example No. 1. If Ground Rent is equal to $41,700 and the Percentage
Threshold is $36,700:

$36,700 - $41,700 = A negative number and no Percentage Rent is due.

ii. Example No. 2. If Ground Rent is equal to $41,700 and the Percentage
Threshold is $56,700:

$56,700 - $41,700 = $15,000 and Percentage Rent of $15,000 is due for that
month.

Statement of Gross Receipts: No later than the 15th day of the month that follows
the Relevant Month, Tenant shall furnish to the Lessor a written statement of
monthly gross receipts that shows the Gross Rooms Receipts and Other Gross
Receipts earned during the Relevant Month.

Certified Annual Statement: No later than 120 days after the close of Tenant’s
fiscal year, and no later than 120 days after the termination of this lease, Tenant




shall deliver to the Lessor an annual statement of gross receipts that shows the
Gross Rooms Receipts and Other Gross Receipts earned during the fiscal year, or
if there is a stub period between the end of the most recently ended fiscal year and
the termination of the lease, the Gross Rooms Receipts and Other Gross Receipts
for that stub period, certified as being correct by an authorized accounting officer
of the Tenant (“Certified Annual Statement”).

i. If the Certified Annual Statement shows that an additional amount of
Percentage Rent is due and payable to the Lessor, Tenant shall make such
payment currently with the delivery of the Certified Annual Statement to the
Lessor.

ii. If the Certified Annual Statement shows that there has been an overpayment
of Percentage Rent, such overpayment will be applied to future Ground Rent
until such overpayment has been reimbursed to Tenant.

Records: The Lessor may inspect the books and records of Tenant and any and
all Subtenants from which any Statement of Gross Receipts or Certified Annual
Statement is prepared at any reasonable time upon request. For this purpose,
Tenant shall keep for a period of four years after submission of any such
statement to the Lessor, all of Tenant’s records, books, accounts, and other data
pertaining or necessary to the verification of Gross Receipts as defined herein,
and shall, upon request, make the same available to the Lessor, the Lessor’s
auditor, representative or agent for examination at any time during such four-year
period. Failure to keep, maintain, and make available the records, books,
accounts, and other data required by this Section is a default of this lease.

Audits: The Lessor may, at the Lessor’s option, engage the services of an
independent certified public accountant to audit and verify the accuracy of
Tenant’s records, books, and accounts, including the Certified Annual Statement.
If the audit shows that an additional amount of Percentage Rent is due and
payable to the Lessor, Tenant shall make such payment within seven days of the
Lessor’s demand therefor. If the audit shows that there has been an overpayment
of Percentage Rent, the Lessor shall promptly repay to Tenant the amount of such
overpayment or, at Lessor’s sole election, credit the amount of the overpayment to
Ground Rent next due the Lessor by Tenant. If the audit shows an underpayment
by Tenant that is greater than five percent of the Percentage Rent due to the
Lessor, Tenant shall pay for the reasonable and actual cost of the audit.

Records to Be Maintained: Tenant shall record all sales and other transactions,
whether cash or credit, and shall keep full and accurate books of account and
records in accordance with United States Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles consistently applied, including without limitation, a sales journal
general ledger, and all bank account statements showing deposits of gross receipts
revenue. In addition, Tenant shall keep all cash register receipts with regard to




Gross Receipts, credits, refunds and other pertinent transactions, as well as
records of all other exclusions and deductions from Gross Receipts.

Additional Rent: In addition to the Ground Rent and Percentage Rent, Tenant
shall pay as additional rent, all other charges, costs and fees required to be paid by
Tenant pursuant to the provisions of this lease (such amounts, “Additional Rent,”
and together with the Ground Rent and Percentage Rent, “Rent”).

7. Additional Payment Provisions:

A.

Late Rental Payments: If Tenant fails to pay Lessor any amount due under this
lease within five days after the amount is due, Tenant shall pay to Lessor a late
charge of $100 per occurrence (the “Late Charge”), plus interest on the unpaid
balance at a rate of one and one-half percent per month, from the date the pay-
ment was due until paid in full. Tenant shall pay all Late Charges as Additional
Rent on or before the date the next installment of Ground Rent is due. Lessor and
Tenant hereby agree that it is and will be impracticable and extremely difficult to
ascertain and fix Lessor’s actual damage from any late payments and, thus, that
Tenant shall pay as liquidated damages to Lessor the Late Charge specified in this
Section, which is the result of the parties’ reasonable endeavor to estimate fair
average compensation for the late payment (other than attorneys’ fees and costs).
Lessor’s acceptance of the Late Charge as liquidated damages does not constitute
a waiver of Tenant’s default with respect to the overdue amount or prevent Lessor
from exercising any of the rights and remedies available to Lessor under this
lease.

Form and Place of Payment: Tenant shall pay all rents and fees in cash or by
personal check, certified check, or money order, payable to the County of Contra
Costa, by delivering same on or before due date to the Director of Airports Office,
550 Sally Ride Drive, Concord, California 94520, or at such other place as Lessor
may designate from time to time.

Returned Checks: If a check written by Tenant is returned for insufficient funds,
Lessor may impose a reasonable service charge in addition to any Late Charge
and in addition to any charges imposed by the bank. Lessor may require Tenant
to pay Rent by certified check or money order if Tenant’s bank or banks have
returned one or more personal checks within the preceding 12-month period.

Security Deposit: Upon execution of this lease, Tenant shall pay $41,700.00 to
Lessor in cash as security for the faithful performance of the terms, covenants,
and conditions of this lease (the “Security Deposit”).

Upon the occurrence of a Default, as defined in Section 27, Lessor may, in its sole
discretion (but is not required to), apply the Security Deposit, or any portion of it,
to any expense, loss or (i) any Rent or other sum owed to Lessor, (i1) any amount
that Lessor may spend or become obligated to spend in exercising Lessor’s rights



10.

under this lease, or (ii1) damage sustained by Lessor resulting from Tenant’s
Default. Upon demand by Lessor, Tenant shall immediately pay to Lessor a sum
equal to that portion of the Security Deposit expended or applied by Lessor as
provided in this subsection so as to maintain the Security Deposit at its original
level.

Upon the expiration or termination of this lease and (i) Tenant’s satisfaction of the
conditions set forth in Section 26. Surrender of Premises, and (ii) a final
accounting by Lessor, any remaining Security Deposit balance will be refunded to
Tenant, without interest. Tenant waives the provisions of California Civil Code
section 1950.7, and all other provisions of law in force or that become in force
after the date of execution of this lease, that provide that Lessor may claim from a
Security Deposit only those sums reasonably necessary to remedy defaults in the
payment of Rent, to repair damage caused by Tenant or to clean the Premises.
Lessor and Tenant agree that Lessor may, in addition, claim those sums
reasonably necessary to compensate Lessor for any other foreseeable or
unforeseeable loss or damage caused by the act or omission of Tenant or Tenant’s
officers, agents, employees, independent contractors or invitees.

Lessor Processing and Transaction Fees: In the event that Tenant requires or requests
Lessor’s review, investigation, processing, recordation, or any other action in connection
with any Tenant document, proposal or other matter that requires Lessor’s staff time and
resources, other than time and resources of the Contra Costa County Airports Division
(e.g., a proposed assignment or other transfer, or an estoppel certificate), Tenant shall
pay Lessor a transaction fee of $2,500.00 plus all of Lessor’s costs, including, but not
limited to, staff time at rates determined by the County Auditor for time spent in
connection with the matter until the matter is complete (“Transaction Fee”). The
Transaction Fee will increase by $500.00 on every fifth anniversary of the Effective Date
and 1s due 30 days after demand therefor by Lessor.

Use of Premises: Except as otherwise provided herein, the Premises may be used by
Tenant only for the operation of a midscale or higher rated (in accordance with STR
classifications or comparable rating system) hotel, including the operation of a restaurant,
cocktail lounge, banquet rooms, meeting rooms, swimming pool, shops and services,
parking and other hotel supporting amenities, and for no other purpose.

Tenant may not use the Premises for any other purpose without the Director of Airport’s
express prior written consent. Any use of the Premises other than as described herein
without the Director of Airports’ prior written consent is a default of this lease.

Condition of Premises:

A. No Warranty: Tenant is leasing the Premises in an “as is” physical condition with
no warranty, express or implied, on the part of Lessor as to the physical condition
of the Premises, including but not limited to, the condition of any existing
Improvements (as defined below), the soil and the geology of the soil, the air,



1.

12.

surface water and groundwater, the presence of known and unknown faults, the
presence of Hazardous Materials (as defined below) and all other kinds of
contamination and pollutants of any kind in the air, soil, groundwater and surface
water, and the suitability of the Premises for the permitted use.

Maintenance: Tenant shall maintain the Premises in accordance with Section 13.
Maintenance, Repair and Storage.

Utility Obligations: Tenant shall pay, on Tenant’s own account, all charges for utilities

used or consumed on the Premises, including, but not limited to, gas, water, electricity,
garbage disposal, storm water and sanitary sewer services, janitorial services, and
telephone services.

If Lessor, or any utility company, requires that any existing or new overhead distribution
system be installed underground, Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, provide all
necessary facility changes on the Premises so as to receive such services.

Alterations and Additions:

A.

Tenant may not do any of the following without the prior written consent of the
Director of Airports (which may include email): (i) erect or place any additional
structures on the Premises, (ii) make any improvements or alterations to the
exterior of any of the buildings on the Premises, including the Hotel, or the
parking area or landscaping, (iii) make any improvements or alterations to the
interior of any of Tenant’s Buildings that require the issuance of a building
permit, or (iv) make any improvements the construction of which could trigger
safety concerns for the Airport, such as the height of the thing being constructed
or the height of equipment used in the construction. Tenant shall provide the
Director of Airports with written plans detailing any proposed improvement for
approval by the Director of Airports; provided, however, obtaining the Director of
Airports’ approval of plans is not required for improvements that constitute
maintenance or repair of existing Improvements or the replacement of furniture,
fixtures or equipment, even if a building permit is required for such repairs or
replacements. When the approval of the Director of Airports is required, the
Director of Airports may not unreasonably withhold or condition approval of the
proposed improvement.

If Tenant makes alterations, constructs additions, or adds additional structures that
violate the conditions of this lease (each, an “Unauthorized Addition”), at the
Director of Airports sole discretion, Tenant shall remove all or any portion of the
Unauthorized Addition at Tenant’s sole cost and expense. If Tenant is required to
remove any Unauthorized Addition, Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall
restore the Premises to the condition existing immediately prior to the existence of
the Unauthorized Addition, or such other similar condition determined at the
discretion of the Director of Airports, reasonably exercised and reasonably
approved by Tenant. If the Director of Airports determines that Tenant is not



required to remove all or any portion of an Unauthorized Addition, then the
portion of the Unauthorized Addition that is not required to be removed will
remain on and be surrendered with the Premises on the expiration or termination
of this lease.

If the Director of Airports has given written consent to Tenant, permitting Tenant
to make alterations or improvements to the Premises, Tenant may not commence
construction until Tenant has (i) obtained all necessary building permits and all
other approvals required, and (ii) provided Lessor with 20 days advance written
notice of the commencement of the construction. In addition, so long as Lessor
provides same to Tenant signed and notarized by Lessor within the timeframe set
forth in Civil Code Section 8444, Tenant shall cause the notice of Lessor non-
responsibility to be posted and recorded during construction in accordance with
Civil Code Sections 8442 and 8444. A copy of the notice is to be mailed to Lessor
upon filing it with the County Recorder.

13. Maintenance, Repair and Storage:

A.

Premises Maintenance: Tenant shall, at its sole expense, throughout the term of
this lease, maintain the Hotel and other structures, signs, driveways, parking
surfaces, curbs, walkways, perimeter fences, landscaping, drainage and sewage
lines, utility lines, irrigation systems and other facilities and improvements on the
Premises (collectively, the “Improvements”), in a good order, condition and
repair and, following the Completion Date, the quality of appearance in effect on
the Completion Date, ordinary wear and tear excepted (the “Maintenance
Standard”). Following the Completion Date, Tenant shall cause all maintenance,
repairs, and replacements to be of a quality substantially equal to the material and
workmanship used in completing the Capital Improvements. Lessor is the sole
judge, exercising reasonable discretion, of the maintenance standards required;
provided, however, if the Hotel is operating under a brand, the maintenance
standards of the brand will be controlling.

Tenant shall perform all maintenance and repairs in compliance with Applicable
Laws and Restrictions.

If Tenant fails to perform its maintenance obligations as described herein within
30 days of written notice by County to Tenant of such failure, County has the
right to enter upon the Premises and to perform such necessary maintenance
obligations and Tenant shall reimburse County for the costs thereof within 20
days after receipt of an itemized invoice therefor. If such maintenance obligations
are of such a nature that they cannot reasonably be completed within such 30-day
period, Tenant will be deemed to have performed its maintenance obligations
within the 30-day period if Tenant begins to perform the maintenance obligations
within the 30-day period and diligently pursues performance to completion.



Lease Maintenance Plan: The Lessor shall reasonably determine what additional
work Tenant is required to perform in order to maintain the Improvements in
accordance with the Maintenance Standard through the remaining term of the
lease (the “Maintenance Work™). Prior to such determination, the Lessor and
Tenant shall conduct a joint inspection of the Improvements not earlier than April
1, 2066 and not later than March 31, 2067.

The Maintenance Work may include, but is not limited to, (i) interior and exterior
building improvements, including roof, doors, windows, signage, street facades,
painting, flooring, fixtures (i.e., lights, toilets and sinks), (ii) asphalt, (iii)) HVAC,
(iv) electrical and plumbing systems, but in all instances not requiring
replacements and only requiring repairs to assure that the Improvements are in
good condition, taking into account the age of the Improvements.

Within 90 days after the joint inspection of the Premises, Tenant shall prepare and
submit to the Director of Airports for his approval a detailed plan that itemizes the
Maintenance Work to be performed. The maintenance plan must include a
timeline for the performance of the Maintenance Work and the expected cost of
the Maintenance Work. The Director of Airports will review the proposed
maintenance plan and approve or disapprove it within 30 days of receipt. If the
proposed maintenance plan is not approved by the Director of Airports, the
Director of Airports shall set forth in writing and notify Tenant of his reasons for
withholding such approval. Tenant shall thereafter submit a revised maintenance
plan to the Director of Airports, which approval is to be granted or denied within
30 days of receipt in accordance with the procedures set forth above. The
Director of Airports may not unreasonably withhold approval of a proposed
maintenance plan. If Tenant’s proposed maintenance plan is disapproved by the
Director of Airports, Tenant shall submit a revised proposed plan to the Director
of Airports until the approval of the Director of Airports is obtained. If the
Director of Airports responds to Tenant’s proposed maintenance plan(s)
(including, without limitation, any resubmittal thereof) in the time frame required
in this Section, Tenant will be in default of this lease if a proposed maintenance
plan is not approved by the Director of Airports by the date that is six months
after the joint inspection of the Premises; provided, however, that such six-month
period may be extended for an additional 90-day period, at the reasonable
discretion of the Director of Airports, if the parties are in good faith negotiating
the approval of the maintenance plan. The proposed maintenance plan that is
submitted by Tenant and approved by the Director of Airports is the
“Maintenance Plan.” Tenant’s failure to carry out the Maintenance Plan is a
default of this lease.

Plans and Lessor’s Approval: Prior to commencing any Maintenance Work,
Tenant shall obtain the Director of Airports’ written approval of any plans
prepared by architects, engineers or contractors that relate to the Maintenance
Plan, and all modifications or amendments thereto, (including all working
drawings and other supplements thereto, but excluding immaterial field changes).

10



Tenant Responsibility for Maintenance Work: Tenant is solely responsible for
obtaining all necessary permits and approvals and for paying any and all fees
required for the Maintenance Work. Approval of the Maintenance Plan by the
Director of Airports does not constitute a representation or warranty as to its
conformity with other requirements, and responsibility therefor remains at all
times in Tenant.

Tenant shall cause all Maintenance Work to be carried out in conformance with:
(1) all requirements of the Lessor, (ii) the Maintenance Plan, (iii) Applicable Laws
and Regulations, and (iv) the Maintenance Standard or the Performance Standard,
as applicable.

Performance Bond: Not less than ten working days before the commencement of
the Maintenance Work, Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish to the
Lessor a performance bond of a surety company licensed to transact business in
the State of California, or other type of security satisfactory to the Lessor, that (i)
is in the amount of 100% of the total estimated cost of the Maintenance Work that
is being performed, (i1) names Tenant as principal, and (ii1) guarantees faithful
performance of all construction work associated with the Maintenance Plan by the
date that is identified in the Maintenance Plan as the date the Maintenance Work
will be completed. The performance bond or other security must be in a form
acceptable to the Lessor. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
subsection 13.E, if the cost to perform the Maintenance Work is equal to or less
than 10% of Gross Receipts for Tenant’s most recently completed fiscal year for
which a Certified Annual Statement has been prepared, the Director of Airports,
utilizing reasonable discretion, may waive the requirement of a performance bond
or other security.

Payment Bond: Not less than ten working days before the commencement of
maintenance pursuant to the Maintenance Plan, Tenant shall, at its sole cost and
expense, furnish to the Lessor either of the following: (i) a payment bond of a
surety company licensed to transact business in the State of California that (x) is
in the amount of 100% of the total estimated cost of carrying out the Maintenance
Plan, and (y) guarantees the payment of all labor, materials, provisions, supplies
and equipment used in, upon, for or about the performance of the construction
work; or (i1) an alternate form of security that is acceptable to the Lessor in its
sole discretion. The payment bond must be in a form acceptable to the Lessor and
must satisfy the requirements of California Civil Code section 3248.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this subsection 13.F, if the cost to
perform the Maintenance Work is equal to or less than 10% of Gross Receipts for
Tenant’s most recently completed fiscal year for which a Certified Annual
Statement has been prepared, the Director of Airports, utilizing reasonable
discretion, may waive the requirement of a payment bond or other security.

11



14.

Inspection and Acceptance: Tenant shall obtain all applicable permits and
authorizations of, all local, state, federal and other government agencies and
entities that have jurisdiction over the Maintenance Work, including but not
limited to, the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and
Development and the Contra Costa County Public Works Department. All
Maintenance Work is subject to inspection, testing, and acceptance in accordance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and requirements of all governmental
agencies and entities that have jurisdiction over the Maintenance Work. Nothing
in this lease is to be construed as approval of any permit or authorization of any
local, state, or federal government agency or entity that has jurisdiction over the
Maintenance Work.

No Warranties: The inspection, testing and acceptance by the Lessor under this or
any other section of this lease, of any plans submitted by or acts performed by
Tenant does not constitute a warranty by the Lessor, and does not relieve Tenant
of its obligation to fulfill the provisions of this lease and of the Maintenance Plan
as approved by the Lessor, nor is the Lessor thereby estopped from exercising any
of its remedies provided at law or equity or under this lease.

Engineering: Tenant is responsible for all engineering work and the accuracy
thereof. Any material deviations from the Maintenance Plan approved by the
Director of Airports must have prior written approval by the Lessor.

Paving and Concrete: As necessary during the term of this lease, Tenant shall
upgrade the pavement for the parking lots within the Premises to enable them to
accommodate the heaviest vehicle expected to operate in the area. When
installed, the pavement must have an expected pavement life of at least 20 years.
All road access must comply with the standards of the County’s Public Works
Department.

Notice of Non-Responsibility: Provided Lessor provides to Tenant a signed and
notarized notice of Lessor non-responsibility within the timeframe set forth in
Civil Code Section 8444, Tenant shall cause the notice to be posted and recorded
during construction in accordance with Civil Code Sections 8442 and 8444. A
copy of the notice must be filed with the County Recorder and mailed to the
Director of Airports after filing.

Storage on Premises: Tenant may not store materials, supplies, products,
equipment or other personal property that is not directly necessary for the
operation of a hotel and associated uses on the Premises. Tenant shall store
personal property items, supplies and materials and combustibles necessary for
the operation of a hotel and associated uses inside the Tenant’s Buildings in a
safe, neat and sanitary manner.

Lawful Conduct: In connection with Tenant’s use of the Premises, Tenant shall obey and

observe, all the terms and conditions of this lease and all statutes, ordinances, resolutions,

12



15.

16.

regulations, orders, and policies now in existence or adopted from time to time by the
United States, (including, but not limited to, the Federal Aviation Administration) the
State of California, the County of Contra Costa, the Central Contra Costa Sanitary
District, the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, and all other
government agencies with jurisdiction over the Premises, including, but not limited to,
applicable laws concerning health, safety, fire, accessibility, police, and the environment.

Tenant shall pay all fines and penalties levied against it by any government agency for
Tenant’s violation of any applicable law associated with Tenant’s activities on the
Premises.

Waste, Quiet Conduct, Nuisance, Pollution: Tenant may not commit, or suffer to be
committed, any waste upon the Premises or any nuisance or other act or thing that may
disturb the quiet enjoyment or the use of the Airport or surrounding property.

Tenant may not permit any activity on the Premises that directly or indirectly produces
unlawful or excessive amounts or levels of air pollution, (e.g., gases, particulate matter,
odors, fumes, smoke, dust), water pollution, noise, glare, heat emissions, trash or refuse
accumulation, vibration, electronic or radio interference with navigational and
communication facilities used in the operation of the Airport or by aircraft, or any other
activity that is hazardous or dangerous by reason or risk of explosion, fire, or harmful
emissions.

Hazardous Materials:

A. Definition of Hazardous Materials: As used in this lease, the term “Hazardous
Materials” means any hazardous or toxic substance, hazardous or radioactive
material, or hazardous waste, pollutant or contaminant at any concentration that is
or becomes regulated by the United States, the State of California, or any local
government authority having jurisdiction over the Premises. Hazardous Materials
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) Any “hazardous waste,”
“extremely hazardous waste,” or “restricted hazardous waste,” as defined in
Sections 25115, 25117 or 25122.7, or listed pursuant to Section 25140 of the
California Health & Safety Code, Division 20, Chapter 6.5 (Hazardous Waste
Control Law); (ii) any “hazardous substance” as that term is defined in Section
25316 of the California Health & Safety Code, Division 20, Chapter 6.8
(Carpenter-Presley-Tanner Hazardous Substance Account Act), (iii) any material
or substance listed as a chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity
pursuant to Section 6380 of the California Labor Code, Division 5, Part 1,
Chapter 2.5 (Hazardous Substances Information and Training Act); (iv) any
“hazardous waste” as that term is defined in the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq. (42 U.S.C. Section 6903); (v) any
“hazardous substance” as that term is defined in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C.
Section 9601 et seq. (42 U.S.C. Section 9601); (vi) any pollutant, contaminant, or
hazardous, dangerous, or toxic chemical, material, or substance, within the
meaning of any other applicable federal, state, or local statute, ordinance,

13



resolution, regulation, order, policy, or requirement, including consent decrees
and administrative orders imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning
any hazardous, dangerous, or toxic waste, substance, or material, now or hereafter
in effect; (vii) any petroleum product; (viii) any radioactive material, including
any “source materials”, “special nuclear materials”, or “byproduct material” as
defined in 42 U.S.C. Section 2011 ef seq.; (ix) any asbestos in any form or
condition; and (x) any polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) and any substances or

any compounds containing PCBs.

Use of Hazardous Materials: Tenant may not cause or permit any Hazardous
Material, as defined in this Section, to be generated, brought onto, stored, used,
emitted, released, discharged or disposed of in, on, under, or about the Premises
by Tenant or its officers, employees, agents, contractors, renters, guests or
invitees, except for the limited quantities reasonably required for keeping the
Hotel and Premises in the standard required by the terms of this lease, of (i)
standard office, landscaping, janitorial, pool and other supplies typically used in
the operation of a hotel; (i1) building materials in the existing improvements on
the Premises that were legally permitted when installed and are legally permitted
to remain as part of the Premises so long as not disturbed, and (iii) such other
Hazardous Materials as are approved in advance in writing by Lessor. During the
term of this lease, Tenant shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, regulations, orders, etc., in effect that relate to public health and
safety and protection of the environment including, but not limited to those
identified in this Section (“Environmental Laws”).

Notification to the Director of Airports: If, during term of this lease, Tenant
becomes aware of (i) any actual or threatened release of any Hazardous Materials
on, under, or about the Premises; or (ii) any inquiry, investigation, proceeding, or
claim by any government agency or other person regarding the presence of
Hazardous Material on, under, or about the Premises, Tenant shall (i) immediately
provide verbal notification to the Director of Airports and (ii) provide written
notification of such release or investigation to the Director of Airports within 24
hours after learning of it. In the event Tenant receives any claims, notices of
violation, reports, or other writing concerning the aforementioned release or
investigation, Tenant shall furnish copies of all such materials to Lessor no later
than the business day following Tenant’s receipt thereof.

Notification to the Director of Airports under this Section does not relieve Tenant
of any obligation to notify any government agency under any Applicable Law.

Indemnification: Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole expense and with legal counsel
reasonably acceptable to Lessor, indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless
Lessor and Lessor’s officers, employees, agents, and contractors from and against
any and all demands, losses, claims costs, suits liability and expenses including
without limitation, attorney’s fees and consultant fees arising out of or relating to
the violation of any Environmental Laws or the use, handling, generation,

14



17.

emission, release, discharge, storage or disposal of any Hazardous Materials by
Tenant or Tenant’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, Subtenants, renters,
guests or invitees. This indemnification applies whether or not the concentration
of such Hazardous Materials exceeds state or federal maximum contaminant or
action levels or whether any government agency has issued a cleanup order.
Losses, claims, costs, suits, liability, and expenses covered by this
indemnification provision include, but are not limited to: (i) losses attributable to
diminution in the value of the Premises; (ii) loss or restriction of use of rentable
space on the Premises; (iii) adverse effect on the marketing of any rental space on
the Premises; and (iv) penalties and fines levied by, and remedial or enforcement
actions of any kind issued by any regulatory agency (including but not limited to
the costs of any required testing, remediation, repair, removal, cleanup or
detoxification of the Premises and surrounding properties). This indemnification
clause will survive any expiration or termination of this lease.

Stormwater Discharge: Lessor has applied for and received a National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination Permit (“NPDEP”’) under the Federal Clean Water Act, which
covers Tenant’s operations on the Premises. In accordance with Section 14, Lawful
Conduct, of this lease, Tenant shall comply with (i) all laws and regulations arising under
the Federal Clean Water Act that are applicable to Tenant’s operations on the Premises;
and (i1) Lessor’s NPDEP.

Tenant shall ensure that no pollution or Hazardous Materials of any type is discharged
from the Premises into the stormwater system at the Airport and shall comply with
Lessor’s NPDEP in all respects as it relates to the Premises and in accordance with the
Stormwater Control Plan and Stormwater Control Operation and Maintenance Plan for
the Premises, and any amendments thereto, and in accordance with all applicable laws
and regulations and other Lessor requirements. Copies of the Stormwater Control Plan
and Stormwater Control Operation and Maintenance Plan for the Premises will be
maintained on file at the Contra Costa County Public Works Department and are
incorporated herein by reference.

If Tenant conducts or produces any type of operation on the Premises that allows
pollutants of any kind to enter the Airport’s storm water system (a “Storm Water
Release”), then Tenant shall notify County in writing that such event has occurred. If
Tenant allows another Storm Water Release to occur after County’s written notice to
Tenant, then Tenant shall provide and install, at Tenant’s sole expense, a separate
drainage, collection, and/or separation system (“Storm Water Equipment”) to ensure
that no untreated liquid waste from any type of operation, prohibited from being
discharged directly into the storm drainage or sanitary system, will enter the storm
drainage system or sanitary system of the Airport, and assures that no pollution of any
type or any Hazardous Materials, as defined in Section 16. Hazardous Materials, will be
discharged into the storm water system at the Airport and shall comply with the NPDEP
in all respects and shall be held responsible for any such discharge either by Tenant or by
any of Tenant’s subtenants, agents, or employees, during the entire term of this lease.
Any fine or cost of remedial action required of the Airport by any agency or agencies
having jurisdiction there over, as a result of actions on or discharges from the Premises,

15



18.

19.

20.

21.

will be charged to Tenant, and Tenant shall immediately reimburse County for these costs
upon demand.

Tenant is responsible for any unlawful discharge by Tenant, its officers, employees,
agents, contractors, renters, guests or invitees during the entire term of this lease. Any
fine or remedial action required of Lessor, by any agency or agencies having jurisdiction
over the Airport, as a result of actions or discharges from the Premises by Tenant, its
officers, employees, agents, contractors, renters, guests or invitees, will be charged to
Tenant, and Tenant shall immediately reimburse Lessor for these costs upon demand.

Rules And Regulations: Tenant shall observe and obey all policies, rules, and regulations
promulgated by Lessor’s Board of Supervisors and any other government entities or
agencies having jurisdiction over the Airport., but such policies, rules and regulations
may not be discriminately applied to the Premises or Tenant.

Noise Ordinance: Tenant shall comply with County Ordinances 87-8 and 88-82, as
amended, and all other rules and ordinances relating to noise standards at the Airport, as
may be approved from time to time by the County Board of Supervisors, to the extent
such ordinances and rules are specifically relevant to the operation of the Hotel on the
Premises. Lessor shall cause all other Airport tenants to comply with such ordinances
and rules.

Security: Lessor has no obligation to provide security to the Premises; provided,
however, that the existing fence between the Premises and the Airport was installed by
Lessor and Lessor shall maintain such fence in good condition and repair. Lessor agrees
that the fence prevents unauthorized vehicular or pedestrian traffic between the Premises
and the Airport. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Tenant has access to the
Airport through such fence (i.e., via a gate), Tenant agrees that it will not allow parties
within the control of Tenant to access the Airport through such fence, and to the extent
Tenant makes any changes to the Premises (as permitted by the terms of this Lease) that
may impact the existing fencing, Tenant shall ensure that there is no unauthorized
pedestrian or vehicular access between the Premises and the aircraft operating area in
compliance with FAA and Airport security Requirements. Tenant shall provide adequate
lighting to provide for all-night illumination of the perimeter of all Tenant’s Buildings on
the Premises, including vehicular parking lots and pedestrian walkways surrounding the
Premises. If at any time during the Term of this Lease additional security requirements
are imposed on the Airport by the FAA or any other agency having jurisdiction over the
Airport which would be applicable to the Hotel operating on the Premises, Tenant shall
comply with said security requirements at Tenant’s sole expense. If Airport is fined by
FAA for a security violation caused by Tenant, Tenant shall immediately reimburse
Lessor upon demand.

Indemnification: Tenant shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the Indemnitees (as
defined below) from the liabilities defined in this Section 21, but in no event will
Tenant’s indemnification obligation extend to any Liabilities caused by any intentional or
negligent act or omission by Lessor or its respective officers, employees, agents, or
representatives.

16



22.

“Indemnities” means Lessor, its governing body, elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, employees, representatives and agents.

“Liabilities” means any liability or claim for damage of any kind allegedly
suffered, incurred because of an Act (as such term is defined below) and such
liabilities include, but are not limited to personal injury, death, property damage,
or any combination of these, and including the defense of any suits or actions at
law or equity concerning these.

An “Act” means any intentional or negligent act or omission by Tenant or its
officers, employees, agents, representatives, invitees, contractors, subtenants,
renters or guests (each, a “Tenant Party”) with respect to the Premises or matters
related thereto, or claimed to be attributable to a Tenant Party.

The terms set forth in this Section 21 are not conditioned or dependent on whether
Tenant or Lessor has prepared, supplied, or approved any plans or specifications
in connection with work performed pursuant to Section 12. Alterations and
Additions, or Section 13. Maintenance, Repair and Storage, or whether there is
insurance or other indemnification covering any such matters. This
indemnification clause will survive any expiration or termination of this lease.

Notice. Tenant shall give Lessor prompt and timely notice of any claim made or
suit instituted of which it has knowledge, and which could in any way directly,
contingently or otherwise affect Lessor. In such a circumstance, both Tenant and
Lessor have the right to participate in the defense of the claim or suit to the extent
of their respective interests.

Insurance: Tenant shall procure and maintain, at its own cost and expense, at all times
during the term of this lease, the following policies issued by insurance companies
authorized to do business in California, with a financial rating of at least an A-status
(unless otherwise stated below) as rated in the most recent edition of Best’s Insurance
Reports:

A.

Commercial General Liability and Property Damage Insurance: Tenant shall
obtain and maintain, owner, landlord, and tenant commercial general liability
insurance with a financial rating of at least an A- or P status (pooled insurance
coverage) covering and insuring all parties hereto (including naming Contra Costa
County and its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds under the
policy or policies) with a minimum combined single limit coverage of
$3,000,000.00 for all damages due to bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death
to any person and damage to property, including the loss of use thereof, arising
out of each accident or occurrence arising out of Tenant’s leasehold interest in, or
maintenance or use of, the Premises and all operations necessary or incidental
thereto. Liability insurance will be factored periodically to maintain adequate
coverage.

17



23.

24.

B. Property and Fire Insurance: Tenant shall insure for fire and extended coverage
risks all personal property, improvements, and alterations in, on, or about the
Premises (excluding earthquake and flood). Such insurance must be in an amount
equal to 100% of insurable, full replacement value of any improvements located
on thereon, and include vandalism and malicious mischief endorsements. Such
property insurance policies must contain loss payable endorsements in favor of
the parties as their respective interests may appear hereunder.

C. Worker’s Compensation: Tenant shall obtain workers’ compensation insurance
as required by law, covering all employees of Tenant, and such insurance shall be
kept in force during the entire term of this lease.

D. Form of Policies: Tenant shall cause all policies of insurance required by this
Section to be in such standard form and written by such qualified insurance
companies as is reasonably satisfactory to Lessor. Tenant shall provide evidence
of such insurance to Lessor in the form of (i) a copy of the policies, and (i1) a duly
executed certificate of insurance. All of such certificates shall name “Contra
Costa County, its officers, agents, and employees” as additional insureds. To the
extent available, said policy or policies or certificates shall contain a provision
that written notice of policy lapses, cancellation or any changes thereto shall be
delivered to Lessor no fewer than 30 days in advance of the effective date thereof.

Taxes: Tenant agrees to pay before delinquency all taxes (including, but not limited to,
possessory interest tax), assessments, and other charges that are levied and assessed upon
Tenant’s interest in the Premises, or upon Tenant’s personal property installed or located
in or on the Premises, by Contra Costa County and other legally authorized government
authority. Tenant may pay any taxes and assessments under protest, without liability, cost
or expense to Lessor, to contest the amount in good faith.

Inspection, Access and Notice: Subject to the next sentence, after giving written notice to
Tenant 24 hours in advance, Lessor and its agents may enter and inspect the Premises and
the Improvements, including the Hotel. Lessor acknowledges that the guests of the Hotel
have a reasonable expectation of privacy while in their rooms and nothing in this lease
gives the Lessor the right to enter a guest’s hotel room without first satisfying applicable
legal requirements. Lessor also has the right to serve or to post and to keep posted on the
Premises, or on any part thereof, any notice permitted by law or this lease, including but
not limited to a notice pursuant to Section 8444 of the Civil Code. Lessor is not liable in
any manner for any inconvenience, disturbance, loss of business, or other damage arising
out of Lessor’s entry on the Premises as allowed in this Section unless Lessor’s acts are
negligent or constitute an illegal entry as to an occupied guest room. Lessor shall
conduct the activities as allowed in this Section in compliance with applicable laws and
in a manner that will cause the least possible inconvenience, annoyance, or disturbance to
Tenant and Hotel guests, and does not materially interfere with access to or use of the
Premises. Tenant shall provide an access gate through the Premises for emergency
vehicles.

18



25.

26.

Assignment and Encumbrances: Tenant may not voluntarily sell, assign, sublet, transfer
or encumber (each, a “Transfer”), its interest in this lease or in the Premises, or allow
any other person or entity (except Tenant’s authorized representatives or
customers/guests of the Hotel) to occupy or use all or any part of the Premises, without
first obtaining Lessor’s written consent, which may not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, Lessor has the right to
require financial and other information from a proposed assignee, sublessee, purchaser,
transferee or other encumbering party (each, a “Transferee”), to make its decision, and
Tenant shall assist Lessor in obtaining such information from any proposed Transferee.
Any Transfer without Lessor’s prior written consent is voidable and, at Lessor’s election,
constitutes a Default. Any consent to a Transfer does not constitute a further waiver of
the provisions of this Section.

If Tenant is a corporation or a limited liability company, any (i) dissolution, merger,
consolidation, or other reorganization of Tenant, or (ii) sale or other transfer of a
controlling percentage of the capital stock or membership interests, as the case may be, of
Tenant, or (ii1) sale of 50% of the value of the assets of Tenant, will be deemed a
voluntary assignment. The phrase “controlling percentage” means (a) in the case of a
corporation, the ownership of, and the right to vote, stock possessing more than 50% of
the total combined voting power of all classes of Tenant’s capital stock issued,
outstanding, and entitled to vote for the election of directors and (b) in the case of a
limited liability company, ownership of, and the right to vote, membership interests
possessing more than 50% of the total combined voting interests of Tenant.

Surrender of Possession:

A. Improvements:

i. Title to Improvements. Subject to subsection 26.A.iii below, title to all
Improvements, including all alterations or additions thereto (including
Unauthorized Additions), will remain in Tenant until the expiration,
cancellation, or other earlier termination of this lease. Upon expiration,
cancellation or other earlier termination of this lease, except as otherwise
provided herein, title to all Improvements will automatically vest in Lessor
and will remain on and will be surrendered with the Premises.

ii. Surrender. Subject to subsection 26.A.iii below, within 30 days after the
expiration, cancellation, or termination of this lease, Tenant shall surrender to
Lessor the Premises and all Improvements, including alterations and
additions, in good condition (ordinary wear and tear excepted). If Tenant fails
to surrender the Premises to Lessor within the time frame required by this
lease, Tenant shall defend, indemnify, and hold Lessor harmless from any and
all claims, liability, costs, and damages resulting from Tenant’s failure to
surrender the Premises, including, without limitation, claims made by a
succeeding tenant or renter.

19



B.

C.

iii. Unauthorized Additions. If (i) the Director of Airports determines that Tenant

has not removed an Unauthorized Addition(s) that the Director of Airports
had previously directed Tenant to remove in accordance with Section 12.B., or
(i1) the Director of Airports was not made aware of the existence of the
Unauthorized Addition(s) and, therefore, did not have an opportunity to direct
Tenant to remove the Unauthorized Addition(s) in accordance with Section
12.B, and (iii) the Director of Airports elects to decline to take title to such
Unauthorized Addition(s), the Director of Airports will notify Tenant in
writing as soon as practicable following such election. Tenant shall cause the
Unauthorized Addition(s) to be removed above ground level not later than 30
days after the expiration, cancellation, or termination of this lease, or such
other date that is agreed upon by Tenant and Lessor. If Tenant fails to remove
the Unauthorized Additions as required by this lease, Lessor may remove the
Unauthorized Additions at Tenant’s expense, and, upon written demand by
Lessor, Tenant shall immediately reimburse Lessor, in full, for all of the
reasonable and actual costs and expenses incurred by Lessor in removing the
Unauthorized Additions.

Personal Property:

ii.

Title to Personal Property. Title to personal property belonging to Tenant will
remain in Tenant at all times during the term of this lease, and Tenant has the
right at any time to remove any or all of its personal property from the
Premises, provided that upon any such removal, Tenant shall repair, at
Tenant’s expense, any damage resulting therefrom and shall leave the
Premises in a broom clean condition.

Failure to Remove Personal Property. If Tenant fails to remove any personal
property from the Premises within 30 days after the expiration, cancellation,
or termination of this lease, such personal property may be removed by Lessor
at Tenant’s expense by charging such expense to the Security Deposit. If the
cost to remove personal property from the Premises exceeds the amount of the
Security Deposit, then Tenant shall reimburse Lessor the difference between
Lessor’s cost and the amount of the Security Deposit, immediately upon
receipt of Lessor’s written demand therefor.

Effectiveness: The provisions of this Section will survive the expiration,
cancellation or earlier termination of this lease.

27. Default: The occurrence of any of the following is a “Default” by Tenant:

A.

Tenant’s failure to pay any Rent or other charges when due if the failure continues
for 30 days after such payment is due. Notwithstanding the foregoing, failure to
pay any Rent or other charges when due twice in any twelve-month period is a
Default without further notice from Lessor.

20



Tenant’s failure to undertake such reasonable maintenance of the Premises as
directed by the Director of Airports, if the failure continues for 30 days after
notice of any reasonably required maintenance has been given to Tenant or if
more than 30 days is required to complete such maintenance so long as Tenant
commences to cure the default within the 30-day period and diligently pursues the
cure to completion.

Tenant’s failure to cure a safety hazard impacting the Airport immediately upon
notice from Lessor to do so. If, in the sole discretion of the Director of Airports,
the required cure of the noticed safety hazard cannot be completed within 24
hours, Tenant is not in Default of this lease if Tenant commences to cure the
failure within the 24-hour period and diligently and in good faith continues to
cure the Default as soon as reasonably possible.

Tenant’s failure to provide any instrument or assurance or estoppel certificate
required by this lease if the failure continues for five business days after written
notice of the failure from Lessor to Tenant.

Tenant’s failure to perform any other obligation under this lease or any other
deemed default under this lease if the failure continues for 30 days after written
notice of the failure from Lessor to Tenant. If, in the sole discretion of the
Director of Airports, the required cure of the noticed default cannot be completed
within 30 days, Tenant is not in Default of this lease if Tenant commences to cure
the Default within the 30-day period and diligently and in good faith continues to
cure the Default to completion.

The committing of waste on the Premises, including any intentional act by Tenant
to harm the Premises, which is incapable of being cured within the cure period
described in Section 27 B. above.

Tenant’s failure to comply with any of the provisions of Section 33, Non-
Discrimination.

To the extent permitted by law:

1. A general assignment is given by Tenant or any guarantor of the Lease for
the benefit of creditors.

il. The filing by or against Tenant or any guarantor, of any proceeding under
an insolvency or bankruptcy law, unless (in the case of an involuntary
proceeding) the proceeding is dismissed within 60 days of its filing.

iiil. The appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of all or
substantially all of the assets of Tenant or any guarantor unless possession
is unconditionally restored to Tenant or that guarantor within 30 days and
the trusteeship or receivership is dissolved.

21



28.

v. Any execution or other judicially authorized seizure of all or substantially
all of the assets of Tenant located on the Premises, or of Tenant’s interest
in this lease, unless that seizure is discharged within 30 days.

Lessor’s Remedies: Lessor has the following remedies upon the occurrence of a Default.

These remedies are not exclusive; they are cumulative and in addition to any remedies
now or later allowed by law:

A.

il

iil.

1v.

Lessor may terminate this lease and Tenant’s right to possession of the Premises
at any time. No act by Lessor other than giving written notice to Tenant shall
terminate this lease. Lessor’s acts of maintenance, efforts to re-let the Premises,
or the appointment of a receiver on Lessor’s initiative to protect Lessor’s interest
under this lease do not constitute a termination of Tenant’s right to possession and
Lessor has a duty to mitigate any damages it may suffer due to Tenant’s Default.
Upon termination of this lease, Lessor has the right to recover from Tenant:

The worth at the time of the award, of the unpaid Rent that had been
earned at the termination of this lease.

The worth, at the time of the award, of the amount by which the unpaid
Rent that would have been earned after the date of termination of this
lease until the time of award exceeds the amount of the loss of Rent that
Tenant proves could have been reasonably avoided.

Subject to Civil Code section 1951.2(c), the worth, at the time of the
award, of the amount by which the unpaid Rent for the balance of the
lease term after the time of award exceeds the amount of the loss of Rent
that Tenant proves could have been reasonably avoided.

Any other amount, and court costs, necessary to compensate Lessor for all
detriment proximately caused by Tenant’s Default.

“The worth, at the time of the award,” as used in (i) and (ii) of this Section, is to
be computed by allowing interest at the rate of ten percent per annum or the
maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less. “The worth, at the time of the
award,” as used in (iii) of this Section, is to be computed by discounting the
amount at the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at the
time of the award, plus one percent.

Lessor, at any time after the occurrence of a Default described in Section 27.B,
can cure the Default at Tenant’s cost, provided Tenant has failed to cure such
Default within the 30-day notice period described in Section 27.B.

Lessor, at any time after the occurrence of a Default described in Section 27.C,
can cure the Default at Tenant’s cost, provided Tenant has failed to cure such
Default within the 24-hour notice period described in Section 27.C or fails to
diligently and in good faith continues to cure the Default as soon as reasonably
possible.

22



If Lessor at any time, by reason of Tenant’s Default, pays any sum to cure a
Default or does any act that requires the payment of any sum, the sum paid by
Lessor will be due from Tenant to Lessor within 30 days from the time the sum is
paid, following written notice by Lessor to Tenant of the amount due. If such
amount is not paid within 30 days of the notice, the amount due will bear interest
at the rate of ten percent per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law,
whichever is less, from the date the sum is paid by Lessor until Lessor is
completely reimbursed by Tenant. The amount due from Tenant, together with
interest accrued thereon, is Additional Rent.

29.  Destruction: Tenant shall promptly notify Lessor in writing of any damage or destruction
to any or all of the Hotel (a “Casualty”).

A.

Twenty Percent or Less. In the event of a Casualty valued at 20% or less of the
then-replacement value of the Hotel, Tenant shall repair the damage to the Hotel
and no rent abatement will apply.

Greater than Twenty Percent. In the event of a Casualty valued in excess of 20%
of the then-replacement value of the Hotel, Tenant has the option to either (i)
terminate this Lease, provided Tenant assigns to Lessor all insurance proceeds
arising from the Casualty that remain after any required payment to the
Mortgagee, as defined in Section 32 — Financing of Leasehold Estate, pursuant to
an express provision of the Leasehold Mortgage, as defined in Section 32 below,
or (i1) repair the Hotel to a condition that is substantially the same as the one that
existed immediately before the Casualty. Tenant shall give written notice of its
election to Lessor within 30 days after the Casualty. If Tenant elects to terminate,
the termination will be effective as of the date of Tenant’s notice to Lessor. If
Tenant elects to rebuild, Tenant is entitled to a proportionate reduction of Ground
Rent (i) while repairs are being made, or (i) for three months, whichever is less,
unless Tenant is compensated by insurance for rent due Lessor, in which case no
rent abatement will apply. The proportionate reduction in Ground Rent will be
calculated by multiplying the monthly Ground Rent by a fraction, the numerator
of which is the number of square feet of the Hotel that are unusable by the Tenant
and the denominator of which is the total square feet in the Hotel.

i. If Tenant elects to repair the Hotel, Tenant will have 180 days to
commence repair or restoration and shall diligently pursue the completion
of the repair or restoration.

ii. If Tenant elects to terminate this lease in accordance with this Section 29
and insurance proceeds are paid to Lessor, after Lessor either (i) completes
repairs that return the Hotel to the condition that existed immediately prior
to the Casualty, or (i1) demolishes the Improvements and removes the
debris, any remaining insurance proceeds will belong to the Tenant.

23



30.

31.

Condemnation:

A. If the whole or any part of the Premises is taken as a result of the exercise of the
power of eminent domain or is conveyed to any entity having such power under
threat of exercise thereof (both such actions being hereinafter referred to as
“Condemnation”), this lease will automatically terminate as to the portion taken
as of the date physical possession is taken by the condemnor. The value of any
damages to the remainder of the Premises sustained by Tenant and Lessor as a
result of a Condemnation action will be determined by a court of law or by
negotiation and agreement with the condemnor.

B. If the remaining part of the Premises is not reasonably suitable for the use
described in Section 9, Use of Premises, as reasonably determined by Tenant, this
lease may be terminated by either Lessor or Tenant through written notice to the
other party within 30 days of the condemning agency’s adoption of a resolution of
necessity (or such agency’s equivalent determination), to condemn the whole or
any portion of the Premises. If a Condemnation takes (i) 25% or more of the
Premises, or (ii) the portion of the Premises providing Tenant access to the Site
Improvements, Tenant may terminate this lease by providing Lessor written
notice within 30 days of the condemning agency’s adoption of a resolution of
necessity (or such agency’s equivalent determination), to condemn such portion
of the Premises. If the remaining part of the Premises is reasonably suitable for
the operation of the business described in Section 9, as reasonably determined by
Tenant, this lease will continue in full force and effect as to such remaining part.
If this lease is not terminated as of the date of such Condemnation, Rent will be
reduced to an amount equal to the product of (i) the then-current Rent multiplied
by (ii) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of square feet of the
Premises remaining after such Condemnation, and the denominator of which is
the number of square feet of the Premises prior to such Condemnation.

In the event that all or any part of the Premises is taken by Condemnation or
conveyed in lieu thereof, both parties have the right to pursue a condemnation
award against the condemning agency. To the extent allowed by law, Tenant is
entitled to any award for lost business, the residual value of its leasehold interest,
moving expenses, and the depreciated value of any fixtures or property
improvements installed and not removed by Tenant. Lessor is entitled to all other
amounts awarded, including but not limited to, all amounts awarded for land
value. No claim made by or payment to Tenant will diminish or otherwise
adversely affect Lessor’s award. Provided the Lessor is not the condemning
agency, Tenant will not have, and may not make, any claim against Lessor for any
loss, damage or other matter arising out of any Condemnation.

Cancellation by Lessor: If Lessor requires the Premises for purposes other than the
operation of a hotel and related activities, Lessor may terminate this lease with not less
than 12 months’ prior written notice (the “Material Change Termination Option”).
The written notice provided by Lessor will specify the date on which the lease will

24



32.

terminate (the “Termination Date”). The Termination Date may not be sooner than the
25th anniversary of the Effective Date.

If Lessor exercises its Material Change Termination Option, Lessor shall pay Tenant an
amount equal to (i) the value of Tenant’s remaining interest in the Premises based on the
fair market value of the remaining term of the lease and any other relevant factors, and
(1) the then-existing fair market value of the Site Improvements (the “Termination
Value”). Payment of the Termination Value is due within ten days of the earlier to occur
of (i) the Termination Date and (i1) Tenant’s satisfaction of its obligation to maintain the
Premises in a first-class condition, in accordance with Section 13.A. above.

Tenant has no right to recover the value of its Improvements in the event the lease is
terminated as a result of Tenant’s Default or for any reason other than as specified in this
Section.

Financing of Leasehold Estate:

A. Tenant’s Right to Encumber. Subject to the conditions set forth below, Tenant
may, at any time, encumber, at its discretion, all or any portion of its interest in
the Lease, the leasehold estate, and the Improvements by mortgage (a “Leasehold
Mortgage”). Tenant may have no more than two Leasehold Mortgages
outstanding at any time. Any Leasehold Mortgage will be subject and
subordinate to all rights and interests of Lessor and will be a lien only on Tenant’s
interests in and to this lease and the leasehold estate and will not be a lien on
Lessor’s fee interest in the Premises or reversionary interest in the Improvements.
Any Leasehold Mortgage is subject to the terms and provisions of this lease and
the holder of the Leasehold Mortgage (each, a “Mortgagee’), or anyone claiming
by, through or under the Mortgagee, will not, by virtue of the Leasehold
Mortgage, acquire any greater rights hereunder than Tenant has under this lease.
Tenant shall deliver to Lessor copies of all documents recorded to evidence any
and all Leasehold Mortgages and all notices of default received by Tenant from a
Mortgagee. Tenant shall also cause any Mortgagee to deliver copies of default
notices to Lessor, simultaneously upon mailing to Tenant.

B. Tenant’s Obligations. Tenant covenants and agrees to pay the indebtedness
secured by a Leasehold Mortgage when the same becomes due and payable and to
perform, when such performance is required, all obligations of the mortgagor
thereunder. Tenant further agrees not to suffer or permit any default to occur and
continue under a Leasehold Mortgage.

C. Rights of Mortgagee. A Mortgagee may enforce its rights under its Leasehold
Mortgage and acquire title to the Tenant’s leasehold estate in any lawful way.
Subject to this lease, including without limitation, the “Use of Premises” and
“Rent” provisions hereof, and all other terms, provisions and conditions of this
lease, upon foreclosure of such Leasehold Mortgage and the Director of Airports’
receipt of a copy of the final judgment confirming the sale, the successor in
interest may take possession of that portion of the leasehold estate subject to the

25



Leasehold Mortgage. During such time as the Mortgagee or any successor in
interest is the owner and holder of the leasehold estate and Tenant’s interest
hereunder, whether by foreclosure or otherwise, such interests are subject to all of
the terms, conditions and provisions of this lease.

Notice to Mortgagee. So long as Tenant or Mortgagee has provided Lessor with
Mortgagee’s address for notices, Lessor shall provide Mortgagee with a copy of
any notice of Default served upon Tenant by Lessor. Lessor agrees that if Tenant
fails to cure such Default within the time provided for in this Lease, then the
Mortgagee may have the following additional times to cure:

i. as to any Rent and other sums payable hereunder, within 30 days after written
notice from Lessor to Mortgagee that Tenant has not cured such default within
the applicable cure period provided in this Lease; and

ii. as to all other defaults which are susceptible to cure by Mortgagee by
performance, within 30 days after the later of (a) the date Mortgagee receives
written notice from Lessor of such default or (b) the last day that Tenant is
given to remedy or cause to be remedied the defaults complained of, or, if
within such period such default cannot be cured, to commence to so cure
within such 30 day period and thereafter diligently and continuously proceed
therewith to completion; provided that, with respect to such other defaults
under this subclause (b) which cannot be cured by Mortgagee without
obtaining possession of the Premises, then Mortgagee’s time to cure the
default will not start until it obtains possession of the Premises so long as
Mortgagee, within 60 days after receiving notice of such default, commences
formal legal proceedings to obtain such possession and thereafter prosecutes
such proceedings diligently and so long as Mortgagee or a wholly owned
subsidiary or affiliate of Mortgagee has cured by payment and performance all
other defaults then or thereafter existing.

Notice of Compliance. Upon written request by Tenant, Lessor shall execute,
acknowledge, and deliver to Tenant or to any Mortgagee, a written statement
stating (i) whether the Lease is unmodified and is in full force and effect, and if
modified, whether the modified Lease is in full force and effect, and stating the
nature of the modification, (i) whether Lessor is aware of any Default by Tenant
in the performance or observance of any term or condition of this lease, (ii1)
whether any notice has been given to Tenant of any Default that has not been
cured (and, if so, specifying the nature of the Default) and (iv) any other
information reasonably requested of Lessor.

No Modifications. Notwithstanding anything contained in this lease to the
contrary, so long as there exists an unpaid Leasehold Mortgage on the leasehold
estate of Tenant which Lessor has been notified of in accordance with the
provisions of this lease, this lease may not be modified, amended or altered in any
respect and Lessor may not accept a voluntary surrender of the Premises or a

26



cancellation of this lease (provided Leasehold Mortgagee timely remedies any
default and keeps this lease current, all as provided above) prior to the expiration
or sooner termination thereof, without the prior written consent of Leasehold
Mortgagee, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed in the case of
a proposed amendment or modification, and which may be withheld in Leasehold
Mortgagee’s sole and absolute discretion in the case of a voluntary surrender or
cancellation.

No Merger. So long as any debt secured by a Leasehold Mortgage in compliance
with the provisions hereof remains unpaid and provided the Mortgagee timely
remedies any Default and keeps the monetary obligations due under this lease
current, all as provided above, unless Mortgagee otherwise consents in writing,
the fee title to the Premises and the leasehold estate in the Premises may not
merge but are to be kept separate estates, notwithstanding the union of such
estates either in Lessor or in Tenant or in a third party by purchase or otherwise.

Modifications Requested by Lender. From time to time during the Term, Lessor
agrees to enter into proposed amendments to this lease reasonably requested by a
Mortgagee and approved by Lessor in its reasonable discretion; provided, such
changes may not: (a) affect Lessor's rights or Tenant's obligations under this
lease; (b) increase any of Lessor's obligations hereunder; (c) affect the Rent to be
paid hereunder; or (d) affect the use restrictions set forth in this lease in any
material respect. As a condition to entering into any such modifications, Tenant
shall pay all of reasonable Lessor’s attorneys’ fees and costs in connection with
such proposed amendment.

Foreclosure. In no event will Lessor's consent be required for a Mortgagee to
foreclose on the Leasehold Mortgage or for Mortgagee to effect a transfer or
assignment in lieu of foreclosure to itself or an affiliate (which Mortgagee may
cause Tenant to enter into). If at any time during the term of this lease, the
Mortgagee succeeds to Tenant’s interest in the lease by foreclosure or otherwise,
the Mortgagee will be subject to the terms and provisions of this lease, including,
without limitation, the obligation to pay Rent as and when due. After acquiring
Tenant's rights by foreclosure or by transfer in lieu of foreclosure, Mortgagee will
continue to be liable for perform Tenant's obligations under this lease, including
those accruing and arising prior to the conclusion or consummation of such
foreclosure or other transfer, until the Mortgagee transfers or assigns the leasehold
estate as permitted by this lease. In no event will a Leasehold Mortgagee acquire
greater rights or interest than Tenant has under this lease.

New Lease. In addition, if the lease terminates for any reason, including without
limitation a default by Lessee thereunder or rejection of the lease in any
bankruptcy proceeding without full satisfaction of the Leasehold Mortgage, and
within 30 days after such termination, Mortgagee, by written notice, requests
Lessor to enter into a new lease of the Premises, then Lessor shall enter into a new
lease with Mortgagee (or its nominee, subject to Lessor’s prior written consent,

27



which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld) within 30 days after the giving
of the written notice by Mortgagee, except that Mortgagee shall continue to keep
all rent and other sums payable under the this lease current and abide by all other
terms of this lease up to the effective date of the new lease.

33. Non-Discrimination:

A.

Tenant hereby covenants and agrees: (i) that no person shall be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to,
discrimination in the use of the Premises on the grounds of race, color, sex, or
national origin; (ii) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or
under the Premises and the furnishing of services thereon, no person shall be
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin; and (iii) that
Tenant shall use the Premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed
by or pursuant to 49 CFR Part 21, as such regulations may be amended.

In the event of a breach of any of the above non-discrimination covenants, Lessor
shall have the right to terminate this lease and to re-enter and repossess the
Premises and the facilities thereon. This provision does not become effective
until the procedures of 49 CFR Part 21 are followed and completed, including the
expiration of any appeal rights.

Tenant shall furnish its accommodations and services on a fair, equal, and not
unjustly discriminatory basis to all users thereof and it shall charge fair,
reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory prices for each unit or service,
provided that Tenant may be allowed to make reasonable and nondiscriminatory
discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions to volume purchasers.

Noncompliance with subsection C above constitutes a material breach thereof
and, in the event of such noncompliance, Lessor has the right to terminate this
lease without liability therefor or, at the election of Lessor or the United States,
either Lessor or the United States government, or both have the right to judicially
enforce the provisions of this subsection D.

Tenant agrees that it shall insert the above subsections A through E in any
sublease agreement by which Tenant grants a right or privilege to any person,
firm, or corporation to render accommodations or services, or both to the public
on the Premises.

In the event Tenant employs anyone on the Premises or in connection with its
activities on the Premises, Tenant assures that it will undertake an Affirmative
Action program (as such term is defined by 14 CFR Part 152, Sub-part E (“Sub-
part E”)), as required by Sub-part E to ensure that no person is excluded from
participating in any employment activities covered by Sub-part E on the grounds

28



of race, creed, color, national origin, or sex. Tenant assures Lessor that no person
will be excluded on these grounds from participating in or receiving the services
or benefits of any program or activity covered by Sub-part E. Tenant assures
Lessor that it will require that its covered suborganizations provide assurances to
Tenant that they similarly will undertake Affirmative Action programs, and that
they will require assurances from their suborganizations, as required by Sub-part
E, to undertake the same effort.

34. Operation of Airport by Lessor:

A.

Aviation Hazards: Lessor shall take any action it considers necessary to protect
the aerial approaches of the Airport against obstructions, including preventing
Tenant from constructing, or permitting the construction of, any building or other
structure on the Premises that, in the opinion of Lessor or the Federal Aviation
Administration, would limit the usefulness of the Airport or constitute a hazard to
aircraft.

Navigational Aids: Lessor reserves the right during the term of this lease, during
any renewal and/or extension or holdover period thereof to install air navigational
aids including lighting, in, on, over, under, and across the Premises, subject to
Tenant’s reasonable review and approval of same. In the exercise of any of the
rights hereof, Lessor shall give Tenant no less than 90 days written notice of its
intention to install such air navigational aids and shall negotiate in good faith with
Tenant as to the location and operation of same. In no event may the navigational
aids disturb or interfere with the operation of the Hotel, and if they do, it will be
deemed a taking requiring compensation to Tenant. Following installation,
Lessor is responsible for the maintenance and operation of such equipment in a
manner that does not disturb or interfere with the operation of the business on the
Premises.

35. Airport Use and Development:

A.

Lessor reserves the right to further develop or improve the landing area of the
Airport as it sees fit, regardless of the desires or view of Tenant and without
interference or hindrance.

Lessor reserves the right, but is not obligated to Tenant, to maintain and keep in
repair the landing area of the Airport and all publicly-owned facilities at the
Airport.

This lease is subordinate to the provisions and requirements of any existing or
future agreement between Lessor and the United States, including but not limited
to the Federal Aviation Administration, relative to the development, operation,
and maintenance of the Airport.

There is hereby reserved to Lessor, its successors and assigns, for the use and
benefit of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace

29



36.

37.

38.

39.

above the surface of the Premises. This public right of flight includes the right to
cause in said airspace all noise inherent in the operation of any aircraft used for
navigation or flight through said airspace, and all noise inherent in landing at,
taking off from, and operations at the Airport.

Development of Premises:

A.

Tenant shall comply with any applicable notification and review requirements
covered by 14 CFR Part 77 of the Federal Aviation Regulations in connection
with any modification or alteration to an existing building on the Premises and in
connection with the construction, modification or alteration of any building or
structure constructed on the Premises in the future.

Tenant may not cause or permit the construction of any structure or object, or the
growth of any tree on the Premises, to exceed the established height contours. In
the event the aforesaid covenants are breached, Lessor reserves the right to enter
upon the Premises and to remove the offending structure or object and cut the
offending tree, all of which shall be at Tenant’s sole cost and expense.

Tenant may not use or develop the Premises in any manner that might interfere
with or otherwise constitute a hazard to the landing and taking off of aircraft from
the Airport or otherwise constitute a hazard (an “Interference Hazard”). Upon
learning of any Interference Hazard, Lessor may enter upon the Premises and
cause the abatement of such Interference Hazard at the sole cost and expense of
Tenant.

Nothing herein shall be construed to grant or authorize the granting of an
exclusive right within the meaning of Section 308a of the Federal Aviation Act of
1958 (49 U.S.C. § 40103) or to consent to future construction, modification or
alteration.

This lease and all of its provisions are subject to whatever right the United States
Government now has or in the future may have or acquire, affecting the control,
operation, regulation, and taking over of the Airport by the United States during a
time of war or national emergency.

Instrument of Transfer: This lease is subordinate and subject to the provisions and
requirements of the Instrument of Transfer by and between the United States and County
dated the 9th day of October 1947, and recorded in Book 1137 at page 114 of Official
Records of Contra Costa County, California.

Choice of Law: This lease is governed by the laws of the State of California.

Notices: Any and all notices to be given under this lease, or otherwise, may be served by
enclosing same in a sealed envelope addressed to the party intended to receive the same,
at its address set forth below, and deposited in the United States Post Office as certified

30



40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

mail with postage prepaid. When so given, such notice will be effective from the third
date of its mailing. Notices may also be given via a reputable overnight courier service,
effective on the next business day following delivery of the notice to the courier service
for next day business delivery. Unless otherwise provided in writing by the parties
hereto, the address of Lessor and Tenant and the proper party to receive any notices on
their behalf are:

County: Director of Airports
Contra Costa County Airports
550 Sally Ride Drive
Concord, CA 94520-5550

Tenant: Dale Village Apartment Company
c/o Concord Plaza Hotel
45 John Glenn Drive
Concord, CA 94520
Attention: General Manager

With Copy to: Concord Plaza Hotel
c/o Hunt Pacific Management Corporation
26 Corporate Plaza Drive, Suite 270
Newport Beach, CA 92660
Attention: David L. Warner

Time is of the Essence: Time is of the essence for each provision of this lease.

Binding on Successors: The terms of this lease inure to the benefit of and bind the heirs,
successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties hereto, subject to the
limitations on assignment of this lease.

Invalid Provisions; Severability: It is expressly understood and agreed by and between
the parties hereto that in the event any covenant, condition or provision contained herein
is held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity does not
invalidate any other covenant, condition or provision of this lease, provided, however,
that the invalidity of any such covenant, condition or provision does not materially
prejudice either Lessor or Tenant in their respective rights and obligations contained in
the valid covenants, conditions and provisions of this lease.

Entire Agreement: This lease and all exhibits (which are incorporated herein and made a
part of this lease by this reference) referred to in this lease constitute the entire agreement
between the parties relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein
assumed, and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous understandings or agreements of
the parties. No alterations or variations of this lease are valid unless they are in writing
and signed by Lessor and Tenant.

Cumulative Rights and Remedies: The rights and remedies with respect to any of the
terms and conditions of this lease are cumulative and not exclusive and are in addition to

31



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

all other rights and remedies at law or in equity. Each right or remedy shall be construed
to give it the fullest effect allowed in law.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries: Nothing in this lease, express or implied, is intended to
confer on any person, other than Lessor and Tenant and their respective successors-in-
interest, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this lease.

No Continuing Waiver: The waiver by Lessor of any breach of any of the terms or
conditions of this lease does not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver. The receipt
by Lessor of any Rent with knowledge of the breach of any term or condition of this lease
may not be deemed to be a waiver by Lessor, unless such waiver is specifically expressed
in writing by the Director of Airports. No payment by Tenant or receipt by Lessor of a
lesser amount than specified in this lease may be deemed to be other than a payment on
account of such Rent and may not be deemed to be a waiver of notice of termination and
of forfeiture of this lease.

Covenant Against Liens; Recordation Against Premises: Neither Tenant nor Lessor may
permit any mechanic’s, materialman’s, or other lien against the Premises, or the property
of which the Premises forms a part, in connection with any labor, materials, or services
furnished or claimed to have been furnished. If any such lien is filed against the
Premises, or property of which the Premises forms a part, the party charged with causing
the lien will cause the same to be discharged; provided however, that either party may
contest any such lien, so long as the enforcement thereof is stayed.

Force Majeure: In addition to specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by
either party will not be deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war,
insurrection, strikes, lock-outs, riots, floods, earthquakes, fires, quarantine restrictions,
freight embargoes, lack of transportation, public health crises, pandemics, government
shutdown order, or court order. An extension of time for any cause will be deemed
granted if notice by the party claiming such extension is sent to the other within ten (10)
days from the commencement of the cause and such extension of time is not rejected in
writing by the other party within ten (10) days after receipt of the notice. In no event will
Lessor be required to agree to cumulative delays in excess of 180 days.

Lease Authorization: This lease is made and entered into by Lessor in exercise of
authority as recognized in Section 25536 of the Government Code of the State of
California.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

32



50. Drafting Conventions: The section headings and captions of this lease are, and the
arrangement of this lease is, for the sole convenience of the parties to this lease. The
section headings, captions, and arrangement of this lease do not in any way affect, limit,
amplify or modify the terms and provisions of this lease.

The lease is not to be construed as if it had been prepared by one of the parties, but rather
as if both parties have prepared it. The parties to this lease and their counsel have read
and reviewed this lease and agree that any rule of construction to the effect that
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party does not apply to the
interpretation of this lease. The definitions in this lease apply equally to both singular

and plural forms of the terms defined.

If any date specified in this lease as a date for taking action falls on a day that is not a
business day, then that action must be taken on the next business day.

Tenant hereby represents and warrants that it is a limited liability company duly
organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of California.

The parties are signing this lease as of the Effective Date.

LESSOR

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, a political
Subdivision of the State of California.

By

Greg Baer
Director of Airports

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

By

Beth Lee
Assistant Director of Airports

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By Thomas L. Geiger, Chief Assistant County Counsel

By

Kathleen M. Andrus,
Deputy County Counsel

33

TENANT

DALE VILLAGE APARTMENT
COMPANY, LP

By

Name:
Its:




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE UN-
INCORPORATED AREA, COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND
IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PORTIONS OF RANCHO MONTE DEL DIABLO, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
PARCEL ONE:

Commencing at the point on intersection of the center line of Concord A venue and the proposed
center line of Meridian Park Boulevard, as said center lines are shown on Map of Subdivision
3258, filed April 28, 1965 in Book 104 of Maps, at Page 1, Official Records of said County;
thence from point of commencement along the center line of the proposed northwesterly
extension of Meridian Park Boulevard, north 40°28'23" west, 53.34 feet to the northwest line of
said Concord Avenue; thence along said northwest line, being parallel to and 52 feet, right angle
measurement, from said center line ("L2" Line) of Concord Avenue, north 62°23'00" east,
209.01 feet to the true point of beginning; thence from said point of beginning continuing along
said parallel and northwest line of Concord Avenue north 62°23 '00" east, 701.86 feet to a
tangent curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 feet; thence leaving the northwest line of
Concord Avenue along said tangent curve, through a central angle of 90°00'00", an arc distance
of 31.42 feet to the west line of the County Road known as John Glenn Drive; thence along said
west line north 27°3 7'00" west, 216.00 feet and northeasterly along a tangent curve to the right
having a radius of 234.36 feet, through a central angle of 32°07'06" an arc distance of 131.38 feet
to the southeast corner of the parcel of land described in the lease by and between Contra Costa
County, as Lessor, and Pacific States Aviation, Inc., as Lessee, dated February 19, 1963, on file
in the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of said County; thence leaving said west
line of John Glenn Drive along the southerly line of said parcel of land leased to Pacific States
Aviation, north 85°29'54" west, 249.01 feet to the southwest corner of said lease parcel; thence
south 24°28' 42" west, 466.12 feet; thence south 62°23'00" west, 217.46 feet; thence south
27°37'00" east, 72.00 feet; thence along the arc of a non-tangent curve concave to the northeast
having a radius of 135.00 feet to which beginning of curve from which a radial bears north
51°55'31"east; thence southeasterly along said curve through a central angle of 35°12'52", an arc
distance of 82.97 feet; thence non-tangent from last said curve south 27°37'00" east, 62.59 feet to
the trust point of beginning.

PARCEL TWO:

Commencing at the point on intersection of the center line of Concord Avenue and the proposed
center line of Meridian Park Boulevard, as said center lines are shown on Map of Subdivision
325 8, filed April 28, 1965 in Book 104 of Maps, at Page 1, Official Records of said County;
thence from point of commencement along the center line of Concord Avenue, south 62°23 '00"
west, 2.03 feet; thence leaving said center line of Concord A venue along the Monument line of
the northwesterly extension of Meridian Park Boulevard, north 40°28'23" west, 184.08 feet;

34



thence north 30°28'30" west, 45.00 feet to the true point of beginning of the following described
parcel of land; thence from said true point of beginning, continuing north 30°28'30" west, 22.11
feet; thence north 24°28' 42" east, 155.60 feet; thence south 65°31 '18" east 55.07 feet; thence
north 62°23'00" east, 211.49 feet; thence north 24°28'42 east, 460.86 feet; thence south
85°29'54" east, 69.16 feet to the most northerly corner of the parcel of land described in Exhibit
"A" in the Lease by and between Contra Costa County, as Lessor, and Concord Properties ( a
General Partnership), as Lessee, recorded September 29, 1971 in Book 6487 of Official Records
at Page 216, Records of said County; thence along the northwesterly and northerly lines of said
Lease (6487 OR 216); south 24°28'42" west, 466.12 feet; thence south 62°23'00" west, 338.57
feet; thence south 24°28'42" west, 47.62 feet; thence southerly along a tangent curve concave to
the east having a radius 0f20.00 feet, through a central angle of 83°45'54", an arc distance
0f29.24 feet, to a point of cusp with a tangent curve concave to the south having a radius of
45.00 feet; thence westerly along said curve through a central angle of 61 °11 '18", an arc
distance of 48.06 feet to the true point of beginning.

PARCEL THREE:

Commencing at the point on intersection of the center line of Concord Avenue with the proposed
center line of Meridian Park Boulevard, as said center lines are shown on Map of Subdivision
3258, filed April 28, 1965 in Book 104 of Maps, at Page 1, Official Records of said County;
thence from point of commencement along the center line of the proposed northwesterly
extension of Meridian Park Boulevard, north 40°28'23" west, 53.34 feet to the northwesterly
right of way line of said Concord Avenue; thence along said northwesterly line being parallel
with and 52.00 feet northwesterly measured at right angles, from said center line of Concord
Avenue north 62°23'00" east, 65.77 feet; thence continuing along said parallel and northwesterly
line of Concord Avenue, north 62°23'00" east, 143.24 feet; thence north 27°37'00" west, 62.21
feet to the true point of beginning of the following described parcel of land from which point a
radial line of a non-tangent curve concave to the northeast, having a radius of 135.00 feet, bears
north 16°42'39" east; thence from said true point of beginning along said curve, through a central
angle of 35°12'52", an arc distance of 82.97 feet; thence, non-tangent to said curve
north27°37'00" west, 72.00 feet to a point which shall hereinafter be referred to as Point "A",
being on the southeasterly line of the above described Parcel Two; thence along said
southeasterly line south 62°23'00" west, 50.67 feet; thence 40°37'00" east, 100.00 feet; thence
south 82°37'04" east, 81.20 feet to the true point of beginning.

PARCEL FOUR:

Commencing at the point on intersection of the center line of Concord A venue with the
proposed center line of Meridian Park Boulevard, as said center lines are shown on Map of
Subdivision 3258, filed April 28, 1965 in Book 104 of Maps, at Page 1, Official Records of said
County; thence from said point of commencement along the center line of the northwesterly
extension of Meridian Park Boulevard, north 40°28'23" west, 53.34 feet to the northwesterly
right of way line of said Concord Avenue; thence along said northwesterly line being parallel
with and 52.00 feet northwesterly measured at right angles, from said center line of Concord
Avenue north 62°23'00" east, 65.77 feet to the true point of beginning of the following described

35



parcel of land; thence from said true point of beginning continuing along said parallel and
northwesterly line of Concord Avenue, north 62°23'00" east, 143.24 feet; thence north 27°37'00"
west, 62.61 feet; thence north 82°37'04" west, 81.30 feet; thence north 40°37'00" west, 100.00
feet to a point which shall hereinafter be referred to as Point "B"; thence south 62°23'00" west,
20.44 feet; thence south 24°28'42" west,47.62 feet; thence southerly along a tangent curve
concave to the east having a radius of 20.00 feet, through a central angle of 83°45'54", an arc
distance 0f29.24 feet to a point on the northeasterly line of said northwesterly extension of
Meridian Park Boulevard from which point a radial line of a -reverse curve concave to the
southwest, having a radius of 45.00 feet, bears south 30°42' 40" west; thence along said
northeasterly line as follows: southeasterly along said reverse curve, through a central angle of
53°54'38", an arc distance of 42.34 feet, southerly along a reverse curve concave to the east,
having a radius of 10.00 feet, through a central angle of 35°05' 49", an arc distance of 6.13 feet;
tangent to said curve, south 40°28"23" east 75.26 feet and easterly along a tangent curve concave
to the north, having a radius of 40.00 feet, through a central angle of 77°06'37", an arc distance
of 53.86 feet to the true point of beginning.

Bearings used in the above description are based on the California Coordinate System, Zone III
taken on the Monument Line of Concord Avenue bearing of north 62°23'00", east as shown on
that certain Parcel Map M.S. 21-77 filed for Record on June 6, 1977 in Book 55 of Parcel Maps
at Page 12, Official Records of Contra Costa County.

36



EXHIBIT B

Potential Capital Improvements

Site / Building Exterior: Estimated Capital Improvement Spend $1,700,000
Site, Parking Areas, Drive Aisles, and Sidewalks

1.| Retain the services of a Marriott-recommended, licensed architect to renovate exterior elements as required by
this conversion scope.

2.|Clean and power wash sidewalks.

3.| Replace stamped concrete in the drive aisle at the main hotel entrance/porte cochere.

4| Employ an acoustical consultant to assess the impact of the nearby airport (maximum acceptable hourly
equivalent noise levels in guestrooms are 45 dBA during the day and 40 dBA at night). Submit the results of the
acoustical survey, in addition to a recommended action plan to mitigate these conditions.

.| Replace damaged concrete curbs and sidewalks.
.| Repave and restripe parking lot.
.| Provide/replace seating and decorative trash receptacle(s) at building entrances.

OlN|o| U

.| Remove non-permanent structures (sheds, storage containers) from the site.
9.| Replace dumpster enclosure to match the new design of the building.
Exterior Lighting

10.| Provide a photometric study of existing site lighting and submit a plan with revisions to conform to brand
standards.

11.] Connect exterior and building lighting systems to photo cell sensors with time clock back-up.
12.| Provide bollard light fixtures to illuminate walkways.
13.| Replace exterior sconces and building-mounted light fixtures.

Landscaping

14.[ Design and implement a comprehensive landscaping plan for the site. Submit proposed plan for review and
approval.

15.[ Prune plants and manicure planting beds. Remove dead and misshapen plants.
Outdoor Patio / Courtyard / Terrace

16.| Provide a small outdoor transitional seating area adjacent to the hotel entrances.

17.| Provide a permanent masonry fire pit or similar features.
Site & Building Signage

18.| Replace exterior building and site signs. Signs shall be designed and provided by a franchisor-approved sign
vendor.

19.| Provide exterior and interior wayfinding signage.
Architectural / Building Envelope / Main Entry / Porte Cochere

20.| Re-concept the building exterior and porte cochere. Develop a custom design concept inspired by the brand's
current generation exterior architectural features, materials, and color palette.
21.| Provide architectural trim or other treatments on the building exterior to provide greater surface variation.
22.| Verify condition of windows and doors and reseal, repair, or replace any damaged units.

23.| Provide insect screens for guest room windows.

24.| Replace balcony railings and replace with glass, steel cable, or similarly upgraded handrail design.

25.| Remove canopy from the over the guestroom window within the atriums area.

26.| Provide a permanent structured overhang over all exterior doors to protect guests from inclement weather.

27.] Reimage the porte cochere by reducing the massing and incorporating finishes to compliment the interior
architecture finishes. The under-structure and support columns may be salvageable.

28.| Provide a vestibule at the main entry area.

37



Building Interior: Estimated Capital Improvement Spend $5,700,000
General Requirements

29.

Retain the services of a Marriott recommended and licensed design professional (interior designer, architect) to
assist with the layout and design of the public space, guestrooms, and the development of an interior decor
scheme appropriate to the market, location, and Franchisee preference. Marriott can provided a comprehensive
list of Interior Designers approved for the Recommended Designs Program upon request.

30.

Provide a comprehensive replacement of FF&E and interior finishes including, but not limited to, wall finishes (full
height corner guards, painted surfaces and vinyl wall coverings), floor finishes (tile, carpet, and base), ceiling
finishes, stair nosings, countertops, chair rails, crown molding, door, door hardware, plumbing fixtures, vanities,
casegoods, soft goods, upholstered seating (including ergonomic task chairs), architectural and decorative
lighting (fixtures, lamps, and shades), window treatments (including hardware), artwork, decorative mirrors, and
accessories.

31.

Renovate interior and exterior elements as required by this conversion scope. Clarify the public space
programming design intent, linked or blended, and design spaces to accommodate the respective brand's key
count and select service operation model.

- Provide a brand agnostic design for all shared spaces.

- Public spaces that may be shared include the lounge, Courtyard Bistro & Crate market, fitness, pool, guest
laundry, meeting rooms, and back-of-house areas. For any shared spaces, the Courtyard brand design standards
and guidelines apply.

- Provide separate brand specific registration desks and arrival experiences.

- For the Fairfield guest, provide a breakfast room with complimentary breakfast offering a 24-hour coffee
station. Size the buffet and breakfast seating to accommodate the Fairfield key count.

- The restaurant offering is not a brand requirement and can be repurposed to other uses.

- The pool and spa are optional, and the space may be repurposed to other uses.

32.

Reimage the atrium/terrace to align to the select service operation model.
- Replace decorative light fixtures.
- Provide a 10-feet minimum landscaping or alternate buffer in front of guestroom windows.

33.

Remove brochure rack, tourism collateral, newspaper racks, and ATM from lobby and vestibule area.

34.

Replace damaged or stained finishes.

35.

Replace brass railing and trims.

36.

Replace interior signage.

37.

Provide a full range of Courtyard and Fairfield guestroom types in the hotel; identify proposed room mix.

38.

Provide a small minimum percent guest suite room types for each brand.

39.

Configure guest rooms to provide brand-required elements and interior zoning (i.e., bathroom, living room, and
bedroom).

40.

Provide showers in one hundred percent (100%) of king rooms and in fifty percent (50%) of queen-queen rooms,
or in seventy-five percent (75%) of total key count.

41.

Franchisor requires an acceptable proof of concept design set to include a proposed site plan, ground and typical
floor plans, exterior building elevations or renderings, and enlarged guestroom plans with guest bathroom
reconfiguration for each room type offered.

Vestibule / Reception Area

42.

Provide a vestibule with an automatic, bi-parting doors at both the inner and outer doors of the vestibule.

43.

Provide a key card reader and intercom in the vestibule and positioned within view of the front desk.

44,

Provide a dedicated space to house luggage carts.

45.

Provide safe-deposit boxes for guest use at reception. Position the box so it is visible by guests when in use.

38




Amenities: Estimated Capital Improvement Spend $250,000
Fitness Room

46.| Expand the fitness room to accommodate the minimum quantities of fitness equipment and program
requirements as noted in the brand standards. Provide four (4) areas or zones for cardio, strength, stretch, and
hydration.
47 | Replace cardiovascular equipment older than five years and/or lacking individual TV screens.
48.| Provide the hydration station millwork with automatic water bottle filler, shelves, towel and trash receptacles.
49| Provide a wall-mounted, 55" television with high definition signal, viewable from the weight training area.
50.| Provide a storefront glazed wall and door into the fitness room.
51.| Provide enlarged windows on the exterior wall of the fitness room to maximize daylighting.
Swimming Pool and Spa Area
52.| Replace pool deck surface.
53.| Replace decorative waterline tiles, depth markers, and "no diving" tiles.
54.] Provide depth indicators and "no diving" tiles on pool deck.
55.| Replace existing pool coping with a handgrip pool coping profile.
56.| Provide in-deck sleeve and permanently-mounted accessible lift.
Guest Laundry
57.| Provide seating and a built-in table for folding clothes.
Back-of-House: Estimated Capital Improvement Spend $300,000
Associate Facilities
58.| Provide dedicated employee break room(s), size space and kitchen to accommodate the total key count.
59.| Replace refrigerator, sink, microwave oven, and coffee maker.
Food Production
60.| Repair and clean elements and equipment to remain.
61.| Remove broken equipment that is no longer in service.
62.| Provide equipment in support of the brand's food and beverage program; augment with new equipment.
63.| Remove excess storage items.
Main Laundry / Housekeeping
64.| Remove broken equipment that is no longer in service.

Hotel Support Systems / Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing: Estimated Capital Improvement Spend $1,800,000
Elevators

65.| Rehabilitate (remove scratches, corrosion, etc.) elevator doors.

66.| Provide a comprehensive elevator modernization for passenger and service elevators.

67.| Replace interior cab finishes (flooring, side and back walls, and ceiling finishes).
Technology Infrastructure / Low Voltage

68.| Install brand-standard property management systems (PMS), point of sale (POS), and other required hotel
systems.

69.| Install approved mobile key certified RFID lock system with BLE key reader on all doors including, but not limited
to, guest room entries, guest-accessed facilities, exterior entrances, meeting spaces, and back-of-house doors at
the front desk/check-in station, and front office.

70.| Provide wireless high-speed internet access (HSIA) throughout the public spaces and guestrooms of the hotel. In
addition to wireless, provide an optional wired connection at the guestroom desk that is easily accessible to
guests.

71.| Provide a commercial-free, built-in, background music (BGM) system with speakers in public space to include, but
not limited to, lobby, lounge, porte cochere, and recreational amenities.

72.| Provide a house telephone in the engineer's office, pool equipment room, food preparation kitchen, and main
laundry room.
73.| Provide a house telephone in the meeting room(s), elevator lobbies, fitness center, and guest laundry.

39



74.| Provide doorbells with disconnect switches in rooms for the hearing impaired guestrooms.

Mechanical

75.

Provide a Building Automation System (BAS) to provide automatic scheduling, operation, and optimization of
major HVAC and plumbing systems. Provide sensors in public areas with temperature controls by BAS. Generally,
locate sensors in main area of occupancy. Function spaces require local controls.

76.

Provide guestroom management system (GRMS) that meets Marriott standards. The system must include a
remote digital thermostat with integral occupancy sensor that faces into the guestroom sleeping area and
interfaces with the RFID signal from the entry door lock. Recommend that a system integrator be retained to be
responsible for design, installation, project management, procurement, and commissioning of the GRMS.

77.

Replace package terminal air conditioning (PTAC) units more than seven years old with new Marriott approved

standard PTAC heat pumps. Sized at maximum 12,000BTU/500sf. Ensure clearances are met at exterior grille to
maintain PTAC warranties. Provide manufacturer subbase to conceal wires.

78.

Recommission the water-source heat pump and valves in Guestrooms to like new. Replace units that have failed.
New unit size should be standardized and should be sized at 12,000BTU/500sf. When a unit sizing falls between
two standard sizes, select the smaller size unit for increased run times. Submit sizing of new units to Marriott
Engineering for review and acceptance.

Electrical

79.

Replace sliding dimmers in guest facing public spaces with four-scene programmable dimming system with
timeclock for event. In meeting rooms, provide local, individual zone control.

80.| At public restrooms, provide keyed light switches. Ceiling-mounted occupancy sensors are permitted, but note
that lights should dim to 50 percent.
Plumbing
81.| Domestic hot water (DHW) must be stored in tanks at minimum 140°F. Provide a digital mixing valve (Armstrong

"The Brain", Watts "Intelistation", or Leonard "Nucleus") to temper DHW to guest zones at maximum 125°F.
Thermostatic mixing valves are not acceptable.

Fire Protection and Life Safety: Estimated Capital Improvement Spend $250,000

General

82.

The above property was surveyed virtually on March 8, 2022 through drawings, photographs, and a virtual tour.
This project has been surveyed with the understanding that the work performed in this building meets
renovation as defined as refinishing, replacement, bracing, strengthening, or upgrading of existing materials,
elements, equipment, or fixtures without involving the reconfiguration of spaces. If any other work in the
building is performed, such as reconfiguration, change of use, additions, etc., Marriott Fire Protection must be
contacted for a reassessment of the fire and life safety requirements.

83.| The following items noted below must be completed prior to conversion. The fire protection and life safety
systems must be inspected and tested by Marriott FLS prior to conversion:
Fire Alarm
84.| Provide fire alarm system smoke detectors with sounder bases in all guestrooms. These will be programmed to

sound a local alarm for smoke detector activations as well as for general alarms. Hearing-impaired guestrooms
will require 177cd strobes in the sleeping area and bathrooms meeting NFPA 72 requirements.

85.

Provide system type carbon monoxide detectors with sounder bases in all areas with fuel fired appliances.

Life Safety

86.

Limit the occupant load to a maximum of 49 persons in Acorn and Oak meeting rooms. Post new signage and
revise the sales brochure to reflect new occupant load.

87.

Provide panic hardware on assembly occupancy exit doors in the Contra Costa room of not equipped.

88.

Provide emergency lighting at all exterior exit door discharge.

40




Smoke Control

89.| Re-certify and provide documentation from a licensed contractor that the existing atrium mechanical smoke
exhaust is compliant with the original building Design Rational Analysis. If the current system does not meet or i
not installed to meet the original building Design Rational Analysis or NFPA 92/IBC 909, then an atrium smoke
exhaust system shall be provided in accordance with NFPA 92/1BC 909.

Sprinkler

90.| Provide quick response fire sprinklers in all guestrooms and guestroom corridors. Standard response type
sprinklers may remain in the public and back of house areas of the hotel provided the sprinklers are in working

condition.

41



Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors
From: Greg Baer, Director of Airports
Date: March 7, 2023

Subj ect: Approve and Authorize the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a hangar rental agreement with Buchanan Field Airport
Hangar tenant

RECOMMENDATION(S):

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a month-to-month hangar rental agreement with Rushmore
Aviation, LLC., for a south-facing hangar at Buchanan Field Airport effective February 24, 2023, in the monthly amount of $359.00, Pacheco
area (District IV).

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Airport Enterprise Fund will realize $4,308.00 annually.

BACKGROUND:
On November 14, 2006, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved the form of the T-Hangar and Shade Hangar Rental

Agreement for use with renting the County's t-hangars, shade hangars, medium hangars, and executive hangars at Buchanan Field Airport.

On February 23, 2007, Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved the new Large Hangar Rental Agreement for use with the large
East Ramp Hangars.

On January 16, 2009, Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved an amendment to the T-Hangar and Shade Hangar

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Greg Baer, 925-681-4200

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Rental Agreement and the Large Hangar Rental Agreement (combined "Hangar Rental Agreements"). The Hangar Rental Agreements are
the current forms in use for rental of all the County hangars at Buchanan Field Airport.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
A negative action will cause a loss of revenue to the Airport Enterprise Fund.

ATTACHMENTS
Hangar Rental Agmt. pg 4-5 CCR E-6




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY - BUCHANAN FIELD AIRPORT

T-HANGAR AND SHADE HANGAR RENTAL AGREEMENT

PARTIES: _February 24, 2023, (“Effective Date”), the COUNTY OF CONTRA
COSTA, a political subdivision of the State of California ("Airport"), Rushmore
Aviation, LLC ("Renter"), hereby mutually agree and promise as follows:

RENTER AND AIRCRAFT INFORMATION: Simultaneous with the execution of this
T-Hangar and Shade Hangar Rental Agreement (“Rental Agreement”) by Renter,
Renter shall complete the Renter and Aircraft Information Form. A completed copy
of the Renter and Aircraft Information Form is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated herein. Renter must also provide to Airport at that time, for inspection
and copying, (1) the original current Aircraft Registration or, if the aircraft described
in Exhibit A is under construction, the plans for and proof of ownership of such
aircraft; and (2) the insurance information required by Section 16 below.

PURPOSE: The purpose of this Rental Agreement is to provide for the rental of a T-
Hangar or Shade Hangar space at the Contra Costa County - Buchanan Field
Airport for the storage of the aircraft described in the Renter and Aircraft Information
Form (“Renter’s Aircraft”).

PREMISES: For and in consideration of the rents and faithful performance by Renter
of the terms and conditions set forth herein, Airport hereby rents to Renter and
Renter hereby rents from Airport that T-Hangar or Shade Hangar shown as #_E-6
on the T-Hangar and Shade Hangar Site Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit B and
incorporated herein. This T-Hangar or Shade Hangar is part of the T-Hangar and
Shade Hangar Site (“T-Hangar Site”) and shall hereinafter be described as the "T-
Hangar.”

Renter has inspected the T-Hangar and hereby accepts the T-Hangar in its present
condition, as is, without any obligation on the part of Airport to make any alterations,
improvements, or repairs in or about the T-Hangar.

USE: The T-Hangar shall be exclusively by Renter for the storage of Renter's
Aircraft. In addition to the storage of Renter's Aircraft, Renter may use the T-Hangar
for (1) the homebuilding, restoration and/or maintenance of Renter's Aircraft,
provided that such homebuilding, restoration and/or maintenance is performed by
Renter only and in conformance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, resolutions,
regulations, orders, circulars (including but not limited to FAA Advisory Circular 20-
27) and policies now in existence or adopted from time to time by the United States,
the State of California, the County of Contra Costa and other government agencies
with jurisdiction over Buchanan Field Airport; (2) the storage of and materials directly
4

Revised T-HANGAR AND SHADE HANGAR AGREEMENT

niINNNO



related to the storage, construction of homebuilt planes homebuilding, restoration,
and/or maintenance of Renter's Aircraft; (3) the storage of one boat, or one
recreational vehicle, or one motorcycle, or one automobile, provided that Renter first
provides to Airport proof of Renter's ownership and original registration of any stored
boat or vehicle, for inspection and copying; and/or (4) the storage of comfort items
(such as a couch, small refrigerator, etc.) that the Director of Airports, in his sole
discretion, determines will not impede the use of the hangar for the storage of
Renter's Aircraft, and are not prohibited by applicable building and fire codes. The
T-Hangar shall not be used for any purpose not expressly set forth in this Section 5.
Use.

The use of all or a portion of the T-Hangar for the storage of aircraft not owned or
leased by Renter is prohibited. ("Aircraft not owned or leased by Renter” means any
aircraft in which Renter does not have an ownership interest or which is not directly
leased to Renter). Renter shall present proof of said ownership interest or lease to
Airport upon request in addition to that information provided in Exhibit A.

If Renter's Aircraft is or becomes non-operational, it may be stored in the T-Hangar
only if it is being homebuilt or restored by Renter. Prior to the commencement of
any such homebuilding or restoration, Renter shall provide to Airport (1) a copy of
the purchase agreement or (2) a valid federal registration number. If Renter's
Aircraft is not registered as of the Effective Date, upon completion of construction,
Renter shall register and apply for an airworthiness certificate for Renter's Aircraft in
accordance with all applicable federal statutes and regulations and provide the
original registration and certification to Airport, for inspection and copying,
immediately upon receipt by Renter. On or before January 1 of each year, if the
homebuilding or restoration has not been completed, Renter shall provide a written
annual report to the Director of Airports that details the homebuilding or restoration
activity performed, work still required to be completed and an estimate of time of
completion.

TERM: This Rental Agreement shall be from month to month commencing
February 24, 2023, and shall continue until terminated. This Rental Agreement may
be terminated by any party upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.

RENT:

A. Monthly Rent and Additional Rent. Renter shall pay $_359.00 in rent per
month (“Monthly Rent”) due and payable in advance on the first day of each
calendar month, beginning on the commencement date of this Rental
Agreement. Unless directed to do otherwise by Airport, Renter shall pay rent
only in cash or by personal check, certified check, or money order. If the term
of this Rental Agreement begins on a day other than the first day of the
month, the Monthly Rent stated above for the first month shall be prorated

5

Revised T-HANGAR AND SHADE HANGAR AGREEMENT

fainNnna



C.10

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard 111, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7, 2023

Subj ect: Golden State Fire Apparatus Contract for One Type Il Wildland Firefighting Engine - Change Order and Contract Limit Increase

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a Change Order with Golden State Fire Apparatus, in the amount of

$30,075, for the purchase of one (1) Type 3 Model 34 Wildland Firefighting Engine and increasing the maximum expenditure amount under the
contract to not exceed $423,075.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The new maximum expenditure amount established by this action is $423,075. The original contract price was $374,800 plus this change order
0f $30,075. The balance of $18,200 remains available for contingencies that may arise during the build process between now and the time the
vehicle is delivered.

The Fire District received a $1.2 million Measure X allocation for purchase of two pieces of apparatus for Fire Station 94 (formerly 54) in
Brentwood. The purchase price of the two pieces of fire apparatus exceed the Measure X allocated funding by approximately $123,000. The
Fire District will fund that outstanding balance and this proposed increase from CCCFPD General Fund revenue.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7, 2023
Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Contact: Aaron McAlister, (925) 383-5003

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND:

On April 26, 2022, the Board authorized the Fire Chief, or designee, to enter into a contract for purchase of a Boise Mobile Equipment
(manufacturer) wildland firefighting engine through Golden State Fire Apparatus (dealer). See item C.5 on the Fire Board agenda. On April 28,
2022, the Fire District executed the contract for purchase.

In February 2023, the Fire District was contacted by the manufacturer, through the dealer, about the price increase. This purchase was a "tag-on"
to a State of California competitively bid contract. The manufacturer found it necessary to go to the CA Department of General Services (DGS)
and request a price increase of $30,075 for each apparatus. When CA DGS granted this price increase, the increase applied to all "tag-on"

orders associated with the same contract.

This price increase is acceptable to Fire District staff and is consistent with other apparatus manufacturer market conditions.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The District will not acquire the new fire engine. The current age and condition of the fleet will deteriorate and negatively impact the District's
ability to provide safe, reliable, and effective emergency response. Maintenance costs and out-of-service times will increase due to mechanical
breakdowns.



Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard III, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Purchase Order for Ambulance Equipment

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Fire Chief, to execute a purchase order with American Medical Response,

in an amount not to exceed $983,000, for the purchase of medical equipment in ambulance vehicles.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Budgeted; 100% CCCFPD EMS Transport Fund

BACKGROUND:

On May 12, 2020, the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors authorized the Fire Chief to execute a contract extension
to provide emergency ambulance services and a contract amendment and extension with American Medical Response as the subcontractor for
the next five years. A component of this amendment is for the Fire District to purchase the rolling stock for the next five-year term. As part of
the requirement of the amendment, the District will purchase 20 ambulances and the necessary upfitting equipment. This purchase is to equip the
new ambulances with gurneys, stair chairs, defibrillators, iPads, and associated equipment.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The District will not be able to properly equip new ambulances.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the
date shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Contact: Tracie Dutter, Assistant Chicf , County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
925-941-3300

By:, Deputy

cc:



C.12

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard III, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Contract with Locality Media, Inc. (dba First Due Corporation) for Fire Prevention Software

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a contract with Locality Media, Inc., dba First Due Corporation, in an

amount not to exceed $486,500 for fire prevention software to manage State Fire Marshal mandated occupancy inspections and other calls for
service in the Fire District, for the period of March 15, 2023, through March 14, 2026, with two one-year extension options to March 14, 2028.

FISCAL IMPACT:
100% CCCFPD General Fund $101,300 for the first year and $96,300 for each subsequent year.

BACKGROUND:

The Fire District needs fire prevention software to manage State Fire Marshal mandated occupancy inspections; and to manage and track
community care licensing fire inspections, complaints, and other calls for service. The software has the ability to issue permits and invoices for
the services rendered. First Due Corporation will further expand our pre-incident planning of all occupancies throughout the Fire District and
include an interface for both Operations and Prevention to update critical information.

First

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS 1 hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Contact: Regina Rubier (925) 265-3055

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)
Due Corporation was selected through a competitive bid process and was awarded the contract not only on the lowest bid, but they also best met
the needs of the Fire District.

Despite the quantity of properties the District needs to reference, the proposed contract includes a set annual fee. This fee does have an annual
inflation rate that may be increased no more than 5% annually during the term of this Agreement.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the agreement is not approved, the Fire District would have to continue with its current software system, the fees for which are substantially
higher than the fees for this product.



C.13

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard III, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Contract with GoGov, Inc. for Code Enforcement Case Management Software

RECOMMENDATION(S):

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a contract with GOGov, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $4,188 per year,
for the period of March 15, 2023, through March 14, 2026, with two one-year extension options to March 14, 2028, for a total cost of $26,110,
to provide record tracking software for weed abatement.

FISCAL IMPACT:
100% CCCFPD General Fund. $4,188 per year, $26,110 total through March 14, 2028.

BACKGROUND:
The Fire District needs weed abatement software for record and inspection tracking. The current tracking system has become obsolete, and

GOGov offers an efficient product that can be used in the field, increasing the efficiency of the weed abatement program.

GOGov was selected through a competitive bid process. GOGov was awarded the contract not only on the lowest bid, but they also best met the
needs of the Fire District.

The proposed contract includes a provision for mutual indemnification between GoGov and the Fire District, and

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

1 hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Regina Rubier (925) 265-3055

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

is a set annual fee, despite the quantity of properties the Fire District needs to track. This fee does have an annual inflation rate that may be
increased no more than 7% annually during the term of this Agreement.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the agreement is not approved, the Fire District will have to continue using an obsolete product which could result in lost information.



C.14

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard III, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Appropriation and Revenue Adjustment - Training Facilities

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE Appropriation and Revenue Adjustment No.005051 authorizing new revenue in the amount of $44,900 from the Contra Costa

Community College District and appropriation of the funds to the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (7300) for maintenance of
training facilities.

FISCAL IMPACT:
100% CCCFPD General Fund. The College District paid the Fire District a facilities fee of $38,500 for use of the Fire District training facilities,
and a live fire training fee of $6,400 for live fire training conducted with the assistance of the Fire District.

BACKGROUND:

On August 10, 2021, the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors authorized the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a
Training Facility Use Agreement with the Contra Costa Community College District (Los Medanos College). Los Medanos College provides an
Accredited Regional Firefighter 1 Training Program (ARTP) as one of their many educational programs.

The Fire District maintains

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors
on the date shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Contact: Elizabeth Patterson, Fiscal Officer Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
925-941-3300 x 1302

By:, Deputy

cc:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

a State Accredited Fire Academy (facility, equipment, props, and classrooms) that provides the location for the Los Medanos College
ARTP.

The Training Facility Use Agreement permits the College District to deliver their ARTP using the Contra Costa County Fire Protection
District Training Center.

The Fire District needs to perform maintenance on its training tower. Practice fire training drills cause extreme wear on the structure and it
requires periodic refurbishing to keep it in good condition.

ATTACHMENTS
TC27/24 AP005051




AUDITOR-CONTROLL S :
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY FINAL APPROVAL NEEDED BY: '

APPROPRIATION ADJUSTMENT/ BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENT [0 COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
TiC-27 [J AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

ACCOUNT CODING DEPARTMENT: Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

ORGANIZATION | EXPENDITURE EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION <DECREASE> INCREASE

7300 2281 MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS 44,900.00

0.00 44,900.00

I i
APPROVED EXPLANATION OF REQUEST

To appropriate training services revenue to maintence of the Contra Costa
AUDITOR — C_ONTROLLER County Fire Protection District's training tower,

By: %—- Date 21122

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
By: / /5&»/ @L/ Date 312123

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

YES:
NO:

PREPARED BY: Regina Rubier ¢ Lt
TITLE: Chief of Administrative Services

DATE: 2/23/2023
APPROPRIATION APOO 505\

By: Date ADJ. JOURNAL NO.

(M 129 Rev. 6/09)



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
ESTIMATED REVENUE ADJUSTMENT/
ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENT

TC/24

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER USE ONLY: |

FINAL APPROVAL NEEDED BY:

X BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

[] COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

~ [J AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

ACCOUNT CODING

DEPARTMENT: Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

ORGANIZATION

P REVENUE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

INCREASE <DECREASE>

7300 0876

TRAINING SERVICES

44,900.00

TOTALS 44,900.00 0.00

APPROVED
AUDITOR ~ CONTROLLER

By_ Q—P-—‘ Date gi { !z;

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

By: ﬁ_/ /Z/yL/ Date3/2/23

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
YES:
NO:

By: Date

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST

To accept revenue from Contra Costa Community College District for
training facility use for the fiscal year at the Contra Costa County Fire
Protection District's training facility in Concord.

PREPARED BY: Regina Rubier KP\WQM

TITLE: Chief of Administrative Services
DATE: 2/23/2023
raoo D05 |

REVENUE ADJ.
JOURNAL NO.

(M 129 Rev. 6/09 CAO)




C.15

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard III, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Contract Amendment for Vision33 Fire Inspection Records Management System

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Fire Chief, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with Vision33 Inc. to extend the termination date

from March 10, 2023, to March 31, 2025, and increase the payment limit by $185,000 to a new payment limit of $825,000, to provide for
hosting and support of the Calytera Amanda fire inspection software system.

FISCAL IMPACT:

100% CCCFPD General Fund. The District's Fire Prevention Bureau charges fees for fire safety inspections, permitting of specific operations,
and plan review services. The records management system cost is considered when calculating the fire prevention fees so they reflect the
District's actual costs of providing services.

BACKGROUND:
The Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (District) conducts fire safety inspections, the permitting of specific operations and plan
review services for the District, in accordance with the California Fire Code (CFC).

These operations include annual fire and life safety inspections of occupancies required by the Health and Safety Code and the California State
Fire Marshal. Additionally, these

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS 1 hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Contact: Chris Bachman, Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Marshal, Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

925-941-3300

By: , Deputy

cc:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

operations also include, but are not limited to, life safety inspections, plan review for construction projects, and issuing permits as identified in

the CFC for various activities (e.g., operating places of public assembly, schools, adult and child care facilities, and the production and handling
of hazardous materials).

The District uses a records management system to track inspection data. The Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
authorized the District to execute a contract with Vision33 Inc. on March 10, 2020 to implement, host, and support the software. This
amendment will allow the District to receive hosting and support for an additional two years through March 31, 2025.



C.16

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Board of Directors
From: Lewis T. Broschard III, Chief, Contra Costa Fire Protection District

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: GEMT QAF Payment to California Department of Health Care Services CY 2022 Q4

RECOMMENDATION(S):
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, on behalf of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (District), to make a

payment to the State of California Department of Health Care Services in an amount not to exceed $547,586 for the Ground Emergency
Medical Transportation Quality Assurance Fee for ambulance transports provided by the District in the months of October through December
(Quarter 4) of 2022.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact is revenue generating for the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (District) due to the significant number of
Medi-Cal transports within the District’s ambulance operating area. Medi-Cal is the second highest payer type (second to Medicare). The net
revenue the District receives will be calculated by multiplying the $220.80 per transport uplift for Medi-Cal fee-for-service and Medi-Cal
managed care transports less the $34.02 Quality Assurance Fee (QAF) the District is required to pay on all transports.

The net revenue estimate (uplift less QAF) for the District for the current fiscal year is approximately $2 million under these funding and fee
parameters.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors
on the date shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Contact: Jackie Lorrekovich, Chief Admin Sves (925) , County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
941-3300

By: , Deputy

cc:



BACKGROUND:

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved State Plan Amendment (SPA) 18-004 authorizing the Ground
Emergency Medical Transportation (GEMT) Quality Assurance Fee (QAF) program in March 2019. QAF is an add-on fee used to increase
Medi-Cal funding. Essentially, emergency medical transportation providers in California must pay this fee on all transports, and in return,
providers receive an uplift that increases the Medi-Cal reimbursement base rate for Medi-Cal fee-for-service and managed care recipients.
The GEMT QAF program increases the historic base rate of Medi-Cal reimbursement by $220.80 per transport. The GEMT QAF program,
therefore, increases the per transport reimbursement from the historic base rate of $118.20 to $339.00.

To fund this program, the State of California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) began assessing all transport providers within the
State of California a fee of $25.23 per transport effective July 1, 2018. The fee was increased to $26.07 for FY 2019-20, to $32.30 for FY
2020-21, and to $33.42 for FY 2021-22. The current rate of $34.02 in effect for FY 2022-23 is assessed on ground emergency medical
transports with dates of service beginning January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022.

The District received the attached invoice from DHCS on February 14, 2023. The invoice is for the period October, November, and
December (Quarter 4), for $547,585.92.

This request is for calendar year 2022 quarter 4 fees (for October-December 2022 transports). The payment for Quarter 4 is due on May 1,
2023.

Note that the GEMT QAF program ended December 31, 2022, so this will be the final payment under the "legacy" program. Pursuant to
Assembly Bill 1705 (Bonta, 2019), a new Public Provider-Ground Emergency Medical Transportation Intergovernmental Transfer
(PP-GEMT IGT) program went into effect on January 1, 2023.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The GEMT QAF payment is mandatory for all ambulance providers within the State. If not paid, the State can assess late payment penalties
and withhold provider payments for ambulance services provided to Medi-Cal recipients.

ATTACHMENTS
GEMT 2022 Q4 Invoice




DHCS State of California—Health and Human Services Agency

g% Department of Health Care Services

MICHELLE BAASS GAVIN NEWSOM
DIRECTOR GOVERNOR

Ground Emergency Medical Transport (GEMT)
Quality Assurance Fee (QAF) — Quarterly Payment
Provider Invoice

Provider Information: ‘ Due Date: ‘ 5/1/2023

Name: e

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY FIRE Payment Detalls:

PROTECTION DISTRICT Year: 2022 QTR: Q4

DHCS Account Number: Invoice Number: GEM05239MET

GEM1316339609 Amount Due: $ 547,585.92

Fiscal Year = Reporting Structure Account App Ref Service Location
2021-22 4260KB0B 4129200 980 80005
Activity Program Alt Account Fund Project
9990 3323

Emergency Transport Type:  Quantity:

Medi-Cal Fee-for-Service | 552

Medi-Cal Managed Care | 3662

Medicare | 5621

Other| 4729

Dual Medicare/Medi-Cal | 1532

Amount Due | = Sum of Total Transports x QAF Rate ($34.02)
= $547,585.92

Payment Instructions:

1. Please use the invoice number provided above to pay via Electronic Funds
Transfer (http://dhcs.ca.gov/epay).

OR

2. Please submit this invoice and payment to:
ATTN: GEMT QAF
Accounting Section/Cashiers Unit, Mail Stop 1101
1501 Capitol Avenue
P.O. Box 997415
Sacramento, CA 95899-7415

Third Party Liability and Recovery Division, General Collection Section, MS 4720
P.O. Box 997425, Sacramento, CA 95899-7425



C.17

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: Monica Nino, County Administrator Cou nty

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: claims

RECOMMENDATION(S):
DENY the claims filed by Lorrie J. Ceccarelli, Roy S. Halleybone, Harry Imperial-Bobis, John Muir Medical Center, W.C.(2), Helena Lee,

Antonio Lopez, Susannah M. McDavid, Mercury Insurance, State Farm Mutual for Lashun Shumake-Ward, Erica Tiffany Thomas for H.A.L.,
and Romelyn Bayaua for R.D. DENY an amended claim filed by Harry Imperial-Bobis. DENY a late claim filed by Chung Jin Park.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND:

DENY the claims filed by Lorrie J. Ceccarelli, Roy S. Halleybone, Harry Imperial-Bobis, John Muir Medical Center, W.C.(2), Helena Lee,
Antonio Lopez, Susannah M. McDavid, Mercury Insurance, State Farm Mutual for Lashun Shumake-Ward, Erica Tiffany Thomas for H.A.L.,
and Romelyn Bayaua for R.D. DENY an amended claim filed by Harry Imperial-Bobis. DENY a late claim filed by Chung Jin Park.

Lorrie J. Ceccarelli: Property claim for damage to yard in the amount of $10,000.
Roy S. Halleybone: Property claim for damage to

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Risk Management

By:, Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

vehicle in an amount to be determined.

Harry Imperial-Bobis: Property claim for damage to vehicle in the amount of $8,116.87.

John Muir Medical Center, W.C.: Claim for underpayment of services in the amount of $27,612.99.

John Muir Medical Center, W.C.: Claim for underpayment of services in the amount of $27,720.

Helena Lee: Property claim for damage to vehicle in the amount of $190.

Antonio Lopez: Property claim for broken dentures during medical procedures in an amount to be determined.
Susannah M. McDavid: Property claim for stolen bracelet in the amount of $500.

Mercury Insurance: Property claim for damage to vehicle in the amount of $12,859.84.

State Farm Mutual for Lashun Shumake-Ward: Property claim for damage to vehicle in the amount of $3,487.59
Erica Tiffany Thomas for H.A.L.: Personal injury claim for injuries sustained on playground in an amount exceeding $1,000,000.
Romelyn Bayaua for R.D.: Personal injury claim for dangerous condition in an undisclosed amount.

Amended Claims
Harry Imperial-Bobis: Amended claim for damage to vehicle in the amount of $8,408.97

Application to Accept Late Claim
Chung Jin Park: Request that the Board of Supervisors accept late claim re property assessment.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Not acting on the claims could extend the claimants' time limits to file actions against the County.



C.18

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: John Gioia, District I Supervisor Cou nty

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Proclaiming March as American Red Cross Month

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023
Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Contact: 5109320415

By:, Deputy

ce:



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution
2023/64




% L@maw/ 9/ c%/w&z%&ﬂ c}/ ’
%ﬂpﬁaﬁi‘w %zﬂdz %ﬂi&?&fgﬁ, %;J:/:é;?m

In the matter of: Resolution No. 2023/64

During American Red Cross Month in March, we celebrate the humanitarian spirit of Contra Costa residents and
reaffirm our commitment to help ensure no one faces a crisis alone. Caring for one another is at the heart of our
community and exemplified by Contra Costa residents whose simple acts of kindness through the Red Cross provide help
and hope in people’s most difficult moments — continuing the lifesaving legacy of Clara Barton, who founded the Red
Cross more than 140 years ago to prevent and alleviate human suffering. Every day, these ordinary individuals lend a
helping hand to make an extraordinary difference for neighbors in need — whether it’s providing emergency shelter,
food and comfort for families displaced by home fires, floods and other disasters, or donating blood for cancer patients,
accident victims, people with sickle cell disease and other life-threatening conditions. In 2022, the Red Cross assisted 172
families in need and held 568 blood drives in Contra Costa, collecting over 16,823 units of blood. Every day, these
ordinary individuals also support military members and veterans, along with their families and caregivers, assisting 320
cases in 2022; and use vital skills like first aid and CPR to help people survive medical emergencies, and trained over
7,000 in these skills in 2022. In addition, these ordinary individuals, through the Red Cross Sound the Alarm program
installed 300 smoke alarms making households safer and trained over 400 youth in preparedness through the Prepare
with Pedro and Pillowcase Project. The support, volunteerism and generous donations by these ordinary individuals
and partners are critical to our community’s resilience and Contra Costa County hereby recognizes March 2023 in honor
of all those who fulfill Clara Barton’s noble words “You must never think of anything except the need and how to meet
it,” and ask everyone to join in this commitment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County hereby proclaims March 2023
as Red Cross Month and encourages all residents of Contra Costa County to reach out and support the Red Cross’ humanitarian
mission.

JOHN GIOIA
Chair, District I Supervisor

CANDACE ANDERSEN DIANE BURGIS
District II Supervisor District IIT Supervisor
KEN CARLSON FEDERAL D. GLOVER
District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date
shown.

ATTESTED: March 7, 2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator

By: , Deputy




C.19

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: Diane Burgis, District III Supervisor County

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Declare March 2023 as Prescription Drug Abuse Awareness Month

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Teresa Gerringer 925-723-2884

By:, Deputy

ce:



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution
2023/62




% L@maw/ 9/ c%/w&z%&ﬂ c}/ ’
%ﬂpﬁaﬁi‘w %zﬂdz %ﬂi&?&fgﬁ, %;J:/:é;?m

In the matter of: Resolution No. 2023/62
Declaring March 2023 as Prescription Drug Abuse Awareness Month.

WHEREAS: When used as prescribed by a doctor, prescription medicines such as stimulants, sedatives and
opioids can be helpful in treating many illnesses, but when these medications are misused, they can have
serious consequences; and

WHEREAS: Many prescription drugs can alter a person’s thinking and judgment, and can lead to health
risks, including addiction, drugged driving, infectious disease, and adverse effects on pregnancy; and
WHEREAS: Anyone who takes prescription opioids can become addicted to them. In fact, as many as one in
four patients receiving long-term opioid therapy in a primary care setting struggles with opioid use disorder
(OUD); and

WHEREAS: Prescription opioid overdose deaths also often involve benzodiazepines. Benzodiazepines are
central nervous system depressants used to sedate, induce sleep, prevent seizures, and relieve anxiety. The
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) recommends avoiding taking benzodiazepines while
taking prescription opioids whenever possible due to the risk of overdose; and

WHEREAS: In 2021 in Contra Costa County there were 498,097 opioid prescriptions given to patients which
is an age-adjusted rate of 349.6 per 1,000 residents, higher than the state rate of 321.7; and

WHEREAS: In 2021, a total of 21,016 emergency department visits occurred in California that were related
to any opioid overdose and 341 of those visits occurred in Contra Costa County; and

WHEREAS: According to the Center for Disease Control (CDC), 106,699 drug overdose deaths occurred
nationally in 2021, 80,411 were from opioids and 183 of those opioid related overdose deaths occurred in
Contra Costa County; and

WHEREAS: Synthetic opioids other than methadone (primarily fentanyl) and stimulants such as
methamphetamine were the main drivers of drug overdose deaths in the U.S. in 2021; and

WHEREAS: To help prevent substance use disorder and overdose deaths, the Contra Costa County Board of
Supervisors encourages community members to dispose of their expired and unwanted prescription drugs
throughout the year and safely store those still needed; and

WHEREAS: The Contra Costa County Medication Education and Disposal Safety (MEDS) Coalition
engages youth and adult community members from across the county to participate in Prescription Drug
Abuse Awareness Month activities to raise prescription drug safety awareness; and

that the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors does hereby declare March 2023 as Prescription Drug

Abuse Awareness Month, and encourages all community members to participate in prescription drug abuse related prevention

programs and activities; Be it also resolved that the County Board of Supervisors encourage all community members pledge
to, “Spread the Word... One Pill Can Kill”.

JOHN GIOIA
Chair, District I Supervisor

CANDACE ANDERSEN DIANE BURGIS
District II Supervisor District IIT Supervisor
KEN CARLSON FEDERAL D. GLOVER
District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date
shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator



By:

Deputy




C.20

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: John Gioia, District I Supervisor Cou nty

Date: March 7, 2023

Subj ect: Recognizing March 10, 2023 as the 64th Anniversary of the Tibetan National Uprising and Affirm Support of the People of Tibet

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

T hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Robert Rogers, 510.942.2224

By:, Deputy

ce:



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution
2023/63




% L@maw/ .-:7/ %/w&z%&ﬂ c}/ ’
%ﬂpﬁaﬁi‘w %:;m&‘z %:;dd??ffggﬂ, %;J:/:é;?m

In the matter of: Resolution No. 2023/63

Recognizing March 10, 2023 as the 64th Anniversary of the Tibetan National Uprising and Affirm Support of the People
of Tibet

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2023, Californians, including Tibetan-Americans, residing in Contra Costa
County will commemorate the 64th anniversary of the Tibetan National Uprising against the Chinese
invasion and occupation of Tibet;

WHEREAS, Contra Costa County has a diverse population, including Tibetan-Americans, who are
concerned about human rights and freedom in Tibet and throughout the world; Contra Costa County has a
long history of support for Tibet and the Tibetan people;

WHEREAS, His Holiness the 14th Dalai Lama was awarded the Congressional Gold Medal in October
2007 in recognition of his many enduring and outstanding contributions to peace, nonviolence, human
rights, and religious understanding; and visited the City of Richmond in February 2014;

WHEREAS, Tibetan-Americans have expressed concern over the Chinese Government’s travel restrictions
against Tibetans and U.S. citizens, restrictive regulations on religious affairs in Tibet, censorship of
Buddhist literature and information in Tibet, demolition of Tibetan Buddhist sites, and imprisonment of
Tibetan prisoners of conscience;

WHEREAS, in 1991, Congress resolved its sense that Tibet is an occupied country under the established
principles of international law whose true representatives are the Dalai Lama and the Tibetan government
in exile as recognized by the Tibetan people;

WHEREAS, Contra Costa County supports the Tibetan people’s fundamental human rights and freedoms,
including their right to self-determination and the protection of their distinct religious, cultural, linguistic,
and national identity;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors that March 10 shall be officially
recognized as "Tibet Day" in Contra Costa County; BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Contra Costa County is in solidarity with
the Tibetan people and their just, peaceful and non-violent movement to remind the world of the occupation and ongoing
suppression of human rights and freedom in Tibet and the continuous degradation of culture, religion, land and identity of the
Tibetan people by China; BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Contra Costa County supports the bipartisan ‘“Promoting a
Resolution to the Tibet-China Conflict Act (S 138 and H.R. 533)” that was introduced in Congress in January 2023, seeking to
empower the United States government to achieve its long-standing goal of getting the Dalai Lama’s envoys and Chinese
authorities to address the unresolved issue of Tibet peacefully through dialogue; and BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies

of this resolution be sent to the President of the United States, elected federal representatives, the Governor of California, and the
United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights in Geneva, Switzerland.

JOHN GIOIA
Chair, District I Supervisor

CANDACE ANDERSEN DIANE BURGIS
District II Supervisor District III Supervisor
KEN CARLSON FEDERAL D. GLOVER
District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date
shown.

ATTESTED: March 7, 2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator

By: » Deputy




C.21

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: Diane Burgis, District III Supervisor County

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: Declare March 2023 Women’s History Month, and recognizing March 8, 2023, as International Women's Day.

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Teresa Gerringer, 925-655-2330

By:, Deputy

ce:



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution
2023/67




% L@maw/ .-:7/ %/w&z%&ﬂ c}/ ’
%ﬂpﬁaﬁi‘w %:;m&‘z %:;dd??ffggﬂ, %;J:/:é;?m

In the matter of: Resolution No. 2023/67

proclaiming March 2023 as Women’s History Month, and recognizing March 8, 2023, as International Women's Day in
Contra Costa County.

WHEREAS, women of Contra Costa County of every race, class, sexual orientation, and ethnic background
have made historic contributions to the growth and strength of our County in countless recorded and
unrecorded ways; and

WHEREAS, women of Contra Costa County have played and continue to play a critical economic, cultural,
and social role in every sphere of the life of the County by constituting a significant portion of the labor
force working inside and outside of the home; and

WHEREAS, women of Contra Costa County were particularly important in the establishment of early
charitable, philanthropic, and cultural institutions in our County; and

WHEREAS, women of Contra Costa County have played a unique role throughout the history of the
County by providing the majority of the volunteer labor force of the County; and

WHEREAS, women of Contra Costa County of every race, class, sexual orientation, and ethnic background
served as early leaders in the forefront of many major progressive social change movements; and

WHEREAS, women of Contra Costa County have been leaders, not only in securing their own rights of
suffrage and equal opportunity, but also in the abolitionist movement, the emancipation movement, the
industrial labor movement, the civil rights movement, and other movements which create a more fair and
just society for all.

WHEREAS, the County of Contra Costa recognizes International Women’s Day on March 8th as the
worldwide holiday to educate all people about the condition of women and girls throughout the world.
International Women's Day is a global day celebrating the social, economic, cultural, and political
achievements of women. The day also marks a call to action for accelerating gender parity. Significant
activity is witnessed worldwide as groups come together to celebrate women's achievements or rally for
women's equality; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors proclaim the month of March
2023 as Women’s History Month, and recognizing March 8, 2023, as International Women's Day in Contra Costa County and
encourage all residents of Contra Costa County to participate in ceremonies and events to commemorate and honor women for
their countless contributions to our community.

JOHN GIOIA
Chair, District I Supervisor

CANDACE ANDERSEN DIANE BURGIS
District II Supervisor District III Supervisor
KEN CARLSON FEDERAL D. GLOVER
District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date
shown.

ATTESTED: March 7,2023



Monica Nino, County Administrator

By: , Deputy




C.22

Contra
Costa
County

To:  Board of Supervisors

From: Brian M. Balbas, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date:  March 7,2023 Drrrasid

Subj ect: Ordinance to prohibit commercial vehicles exceeding a maximum gross weight of 20,000 pounds at all times on various roads in
North Richmond areas.

RECOMMENDATION(S):
A. ADOPT Ordinance No. 2023-06 to prohibit commercial vehicles exceeding a maximum gross weight of 20,000 pounds at all times on Fred

Jackson Way (Road No. 0461A), Market Avenue (Road No. 0562), Chesley Avenue (Road No. 05464A), Gertrude Avenue (Road No. 0564E),
First Street (Road No. 0565U), Fifth Street (Road No. 0565AA), and Sixth Street (Road No. 0565AC), as recommended by the Public Works
Director, North Richmond area, and MAKE related findings.

B. FIND that Fred Jackson Way, Market Avenue, Chesley Avenue, Gertrude Avenue, First Street, Fifth Street, and Sixth Street, are residential
roadways that are not compatible with heavy truck use, and that unsafe conditions and traffic hazards are created by commercial vehicles with a
gross weight of more than 20,000 pounds, and that a weight restriction of 20,000 pounds is necessary to safeguard the public health, safety, and
welfare.

C. DIRECT the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors to publish the ordinance in the East Bay Times within 15 days after its adoption, with the
names of the Supervisors voting for and against it.

D. DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to post appropriate signs at the above-specified intersections of Fred Jackson Way and
Chesley Avenue, Fred Jackson Way and Pittsburg Avenue, Market Avenue at Contra Costa County/City of San Pablo border, Chesley Avenue
at Contra Costa County/City of San Pablo border, First Street at Chesley Avenue, Fifth Street at Chesley Avenue,

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

1 hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Monish Sen, 925.313.2187

By:, Deputy

ce:



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)
Sixth Street at Chesley Avenue, Gertrude Avenue at First Street, and Gertrude at at Contra Costa County/City of Richmond border, to
provide notice of the restriction imposed by the ordinance.

E. DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to forward a copy of this ordinance to the Contra Costa County Sheriff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Nominal costs to install signs to provide notice of weight restricted roadways. (100% Local Road funds)

BACKGROUND:

In February 2007, the former Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency prepared the North Richmond Truck Route Study to develop
an alternative route for trucks to reduce truck traffic in the residential area of North Richmond and Verde Elementary School, and to
establish a link to major transportation corridors, including Richmond Parkway. The study designated unincorporated County roadways
Richmond Parkway and Parr Boulevard as an alternative truck route to the east side of North Richmond.

After the study was released, the Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency was dissolved by State law. No project has since been
developed to reduce truck traffic in the residential area on North Richmond and Verde Elementary School.

Heavy commercial vehicles continue to utilize residential roads to cut through the North Richmond area and bypass roads more appropriate
for commercial vehicles. This excess truck traffic on residential roadways, including roads near Verde Elementary School, is detrimental to
public health, safety, and welfare. Health and safety impacts of truck traffic in these residential zones include excess noise, dust, fumes, and
exhaust, and longer stopping distances, poorer visibility, and other traffic hazards due to the size and weight of the vehicles. Additionally,
the residential roadways in North Richmond most impacted by this traffic were not designed or constructed for this volume of commercial
truck traffic of this weight and size.

After receiving ongoing complaints from residents about heavy trucks passing through local residential streets in North Richmond, the
community requested that Contra Costa County Public Works Department restrict heavy trucks from using their roadways as a bypass to
destinations outside of North Richmond. The County has developed a truck restriction sign plan designed to reduce truck traffic in the
residential area of North Richmond and near Verde Elementary School. Unincorporated County roadways, Richmond Parkway and Parr
Boulevard, are appropriate to serve as alternate routes for commercial trucks to travel to and from the east and west sides of North
Richmond to bypass these residential areas. Richmond Parkway is appropriate as an alternate route for commercial trucks to travel to and
from the north and south sides of North Richmond to bypass these residential areas.

It should be noted that this 10-ton truck restriction matches those already established just south of North Richmond by the City of
Richmond on their neighborhood roadways.

In order to prohibit heavy trucks from using the neighborhood roads, Fred Jackson Way, Market Avenue, Chesley Avenue, Gertrude
Avenue, First Street, Fifth Street, and Sixth Street, as cut-thoughs, the Public Works Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt this ordinance to restrict commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 20,000 pounds from using these residential roads.
This weight restriction will be enforced after signage is posted giving notice of the restriction.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The ordinance will not be adopted. Commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 20,000 pounds will be able to continue to use
Fred Jackson Way, Market Avenue, Chesley Avenue, Gertrude Avenue, First Street, Fifth Street, and Sixth Street, which will result in
continued unsafe conditions and traffic hazards along residential streets in North Richmond and near Verde Elementary School.

ATTACHMENTS
Ordinance No. 2023-06




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-06
(Uncodified)

ORDINANCE TO PROHIBIT COMMERCIAL VEHICLES WITH A GROSS WEIGHT
EXCEEDING 20,000 POUNDS ON FRED JACKSON WAY, MARKET AVENUE,
CHESLEY AVENUE, GERTRUDE AVENUE, FIRST STREET, FIFTH STREET,
AND SIXTH STREET, IN UNINCORPORATED NORTH RICHMOND

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors ordains as follows:

Section 1. Purpose and Authority. The purpose of this ordinance is to prohibit
commercial vehicles with a gross weight exceeding 20,000 pounds from traveling on
certain roads in the unincorporated North Richmond area for the preservation of public
health, safety, and welfare. This ordinance is adopted pursuant to Vehicle Code section
35701, et seq., County Ordinance Code sections 46-2.002 and 46-2.012, and other
applicable laws.

Section 2. Weight Restriction Imposed. Commercial vehicles exceeding a maximum
gross weight of 20,000 pounds are prohibited at all times on Fred Jackson Way (Road
No. 0461A), Market Avenue (Road No. 0562), Chesley Avenue (Road No. 05464A),
Gertrude Avenue (Road No. 0564E), First Street (Road No. 0565U), Fifth Street (Road
No. 0565AA), and Sixth Street (Road No. 0565AC), in the unincorporated North
Richmond area of Contra Costa County, as more particularly shown on the map attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 3. Exceptions. Notwithstanding Section 2 of this ordinance:

(a) This ordinance does not prohibit any vehicle that is subject to Public Utilities
Code Sections 1031 through 1036 from using any of the weight-restricted
roadways identified in Section 2 of this ordinance.

(b) This ordinance does not prohibit any commercial vehicle coming from an
unrestricted street having ingress and egress by direct route to and from a
restricted street identified in Section 2 of this ordinance when necessary for the
purpose of making pickups or deliveries of goods, wares, and merchandise from
or to any building or structure located on the restricted street or for the purpose of
delivering materials to be used in the actual and bona fide repair, alteration,
remodeling, or construction of any building or structure upon the restricted street
for which a building permit has previously been obtained.

(©) This ordinance does not apply to any vehicle owned by a public utility, or to a
licensed contractor of a public utility, while necessarily in use in the construction,
installation, or repair of any public utility.

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-06
]



Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective 30 days after passage, or
until signs are erected pursuant to Vehicle Code section 35701, whichever is later.
Within 15 days after passage, this ordinance shall be published once with the names of
the supervisors voting for and against it in the East Bay Times, a newspaper published in
this County.

PASSED ON , 2023, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
ATTEST:
MONICA NINO
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Board Chair

and County Administrator

By: [SEAL]
Deputy

SMS
H:\Client Matters\Public Works\Traffic\Ordinance 2023-06 (North Richmond Truck Restriction) docx

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-06
2



)
: = ® o\‘
Parr Blvd Q ‘
J
J Pittsburg Ave 4 I ‘ ‘ "":L§E ‘ j;];
T — _
N '%% Market St #I
/_K—/\« E 3
S | 10 -TON LOAD LIMIT | (
025600 1,000L,50@,000 Gertrude S HCLOSURE POINTS with }
BN . Feet

4 g - il SIGNAGE, typical

L1

Legend
10-TON Limit Roadways (County) q
County Maintained Roads (only) \ /_ ;Q J y
Street L
A I
SITE PLAN
Exhibit A North Richmond - 10-Ton Load Limit

Restriction Boundary

255 GLACIER DRIVE  MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA 94553 PH: (925) 313-2000 FAX: (925-313-2333 | FEDERAL ID NO:

[os: 1L cB: mD [patE: NOv2022 | Pagel of 1



lleong
Rectangle

lleong
Line

lleong
Line

lleong
Line

lleong
Line

lleong
Line

lleong
Line

lleong
Line

lleong
Line

lleong
Callout
10 -TON LOAD LIMIT CLOSURE POINTS with SIGNAGE, typical

lleong
Line


C.23

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: Karen Caoile, Director of Risk Management Cou nty

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: ACEEO Member Reappointments

RECOMMENDATION(S):
REAPPOINT Roosevelt Gibson, Jr. to the Education Seat and Eric Maldonado to Community Seat #3 to the Advisory

Council on Equal Employment Opportunity (ACEEQ) as recommended by the Equity Committee. Both terms expire
on November 30, 2025.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

BACKGROUND:

The ACEEO was established in July 1991 to serve as an advisory committee to the Board of Supervisors. The
ACEEO assists with the implementation of the County's Equal Employment Opportunities and Contracting Programs.
The Council is composed of 13 members, and a Board committee reviews nominations to all seats except those
designated for County managers and labor unions. Terms of office for seats reviewed by the Board Committee are
three years.

The Board makes appointments to two distinct types of seats on its advisory bodies. The following process will be
followed for appointments to these two types of seats:

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Antoine Wilson, 925-335-1455

By: , Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Type 1: Supervisorial District Appointments Applications may be delivered to either the Clerk of the Board or to the District Supervisor's
office. Applications received by a Supervisor's office are to be sent to the Clerk of the Board, and a copy is to be retained by the Supervisor's
office. The Clerk of the Board will ensure that the Supervisor has a copy of all applications originally filed with the Clerk of the Board.

Type 2: At Large/Countywide Appointments Applications are sent to the Clerk of the Board. The Clerk of the
Board will distribute the applications to the appropriate interviewer. With the exception of the Planning
Commission and the Treasury Oversight Committee, bodies may generally conduct their own interviews of
applicants, unless provided direction by a Board Committee. When an advisory body conducts interviews, the
body's recommendation will be provided to a Board Committee for further review, along with all applications
received for the applicable seat. In all cases, the Board Committee decides which applicants to nominate for full
Board action.

The ACEEO falls under type 2.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The ACEEO will not have the diversity needed to make decisions pertaining to EEO issues.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None

ATTACHMENTS
Roosevelt Gibson, Jr. ACEEO Application
Eric Maldanado ACEEO Application




Contra Costa County Boards & Commissions Submit Date: Mar 31, 2018
Application Form

Profile

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Equal Employment Opportunity Advisory Council: Submitted
Contra Costa Council on Homelessness: Submitted
Affordable Housing Finance Committee: Submitted

Seat Name (if appicab e)

Describe why you are interested in serving on this advisory board/commission (please limit
your response to one paragraph).

| am interested is in serving as a board member because | have 20 years of administrative, managerial,
analytical ,law enforcement and instructional transferable skills that are relative to the duties as requires
by the board. | also possess a Masters Degree in Health Services Management , California Community
College Credential and an Adult Teaching Credential. My Experience working with youth is as follows. As
a Job Corps instructor over eight years, | delivered quality instruction in GED and Testing of Basic Adult
Education (TABE) reading & math preparation as needed to Job Corps Trainees utilizing a standardized
curriculum. | have worked with at risk trainees from diverse socio-economic ethnic backgrounds to provide
them with the tools needed to be successful in future endeavors. | have utilized Citrix to monitor
attendance and process evaluations Personal Career Development Plans and conduct reports.
Additionally, as a requirement for employment, | participated in the training by the Outlet Program
emphasizing the creation of safe environments for Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer and
Questioning Youth. Prior to my Career at Job Corps | worked at several universities recruiting and
counseling undergraduate minority pre-med students to enter the School of Medicine throughout the
country. | coordinated an early outreach component to motivate high school students (GRADES 9-12) into
the health sciences. As a hobby | build computers in my spare time. | am also familiar with the latest
software packages used in businesses (Microsoft Office (Excel, Access, Publisher, Word and
PowerPoint).

This application is used for all boards and commissions

Roosevelt Gipson Jr

First Name Midd e nitia Last Name

Emai Address

Roosevelt Gipson Jr Page 1 of 7



Home Address Suite or Apt

City State Posta Code
Primary Phone

Contra Costa County GA Experienced Level Clerk Government

Emp oyer Job Tite Occupation

Do you, or a business in which you have a financial interest, have a contract with Contra
Costa Co.?

c Yes & No
Is a member of your family (or step-family) employed by Contra Costa Co.?

c Yes & No

Education History
Select the highest level of education you have received:

¥ Other

f "Other" was Se ected Give Highest Grade or
Educationa Leve Achieved

College/ University A

University of Ca/Davis

Name of Co ege Attended

Course of Study / Major

188.5

Units Comp eted

Roosevelt Gipson Jr Page 2 of 7



Type of Units Completed
V¥ Quarter
Degree Awarded?

« Yes ¢ No

B.S.

Degree Type

June 1978

Date Degree Awarded

College/ University B

Golden Gate University
Name of Co ege Attended

Course of Study / Major

36

Units Comp eted

Type of Units Completed
¥ Semester
Degree Awarded?

& Yes ¢ No

Degree Type

June 1980

Date Degree Awarded

College/ University C

Metropolitan Education
Name of Co ege Attended

Roosevelt Gipson Jr

Page 3 of 7



Course of Study / Major

Units Comp eted

Type of Units Completed

¥ Semester

Degree Awarded?

c Yes ¢ No

Degree Type

Date Degree Awarded

Other schools / training completed:

Clinician/Practitioner Consultant
Course Studied

Hours Comp eted

Certificate Awarded?

& Yes ¢ No

Work History

Please provide information on your last three positions, including your current one if you are
working.

1st (Most Recent)

October 2017 To Present

Dates (Month Day Year) From To

Roosevelt Gipson Jr Page 4 of 7



40

Hours per Week Worked?

Volunteer Work?

c Yes ¢ No

Experienced Level Clerk

Position Tite

Employer's Name and Address

Contra Costa County,1305 Mac Donald Ave, Richmond,Ca

Duties Performed

EXPERIENCED LEVEL CLERK GA (GENERAL ASSISTANCE) PROGRAM (CONTRA COSTA
COUNTY) -Obtain GA Roster from GA Unit -Enter GA Intake attendance into Calwin(Traffic Log) -Proctor
the BSI( Mental Health Screening) Group -Complete an assessment of clients completing BSI
questionnaire in CalWin -Instruct Clients on use of the self serve Kiosk -Scan confidential documents -
Serve as a greeter for incoming clients -Schedule & Reschedule GA appointments -Refer clients to Job
placements ,Food pantry & other resources via the Resource Room. -Issue Bus Passes/Bus tickets
pending determined eligibility -Maintain records of issued Bus passes/Bus Tickets

2nd

December 2014-December 2016

Dates (Month Day Year) From To

40

Hours per Week Worked?

Volunteer Work?

c Yes ¢ No
SERVICE AGENT(CONTRA
COSTA COUNTY)

Position Tite

Employer's Name and Address

2500 Bates Ave, Concord Ca.

Roosevelt Gipson Jr Page 5 of 7



Duties Performed

-Answers Covered California customer inquiries through multiple system and toll-free telephone numbers
for responding to inbound and other calls as necessary; -Handles requests through Covered California
customer inquiries and complaints, using business knowledge, professionalism, and efficiency, to
maximize and facilitate one-call resolution; -Refers unresolved Covered California customer complaints to
the Customer Service Supervisor or other appropriate staff; -Responds to Covered California customers'
inquiries, complaints, and refers requests using business knowledge, policy, uniform procedures,
professionalism, and efficiency to facilitate one-call resolution; -Records Covered California customer
interactions, recording details of inquiries, complaints, or comments, as well as actions taken. -Provide
Technical Support to assist customer in setting up and maintaining online account utilizing CAL HEER'S
statewide system

3rd

10/2011 to Present

Dates (Month Day Year) From To

On Call

Hours per Week Worked?

Volunteer Work?

c Yes ¢ No

Position Tite

Employer's Name and Address

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (Disaster Assistance)

Duties Performed

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (Disaster Assistance) -Respond to a variety of customer
inquires ranging from routine to complex, and provide detailed information to the public regarding federally
declared disasters and SBA's loan program. -Assist individuals and businesses with the completion of
various SBA loan applications. -Assist applicants in filing an application via the Internet through use of
SBA's Electronic Loan Application -Screen the ELA Home and Business applications for accuracy and
completeness. -Act as a lead to subordinate Customer Service Representatives (communicating
management's goals and objectives to team members.

Board Member 03 31 18.doc

Up oad a Resume

Roosevelt Gipson Jr Page 6 of 7



Final Questions

How did you learn about this vacancy?

¥ Contra Costa County Homepage

f "Other” was se ected p ease exp ain

. Do you have a Familial or Financial Relationship with a member of the Board of
Supervisors?

c Yes ¢ No

If Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship:

Do you have any financial relationships with the County such as grants, contracts, or other
economic relations?

c Yes ¢ No

If Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship:

Roosevelt Gipson Jr Page 7 of 7



Contra Costa County Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Submit Date: May 20, 2021

Profile

Eric

First Name

Home Address

Bay Point

City

Primary Phone

Email Address

Which supervisorial district do you live in?

¥ District 5

L

Middle Initial

Maldonado

Last Name

Suite or Apt
State Postal Code

Education

Select the option that applies to your high school education *

¥ High School Diploma

College/ University A

Name of College Attended

Diablo Valley College

Degree Type / Course of Study / Major

Business Administration

Degree Awarded?

c Yes ¢ No

College/ University B

Name of College Attended

Heald Business College

Eric L Maldonado



Degree Type / Course of Study / Major

Degree Awarded?

¢ Yes ¢ No

College/ University C

Name of College Attended

Nortre Dame/ Mendoza School of Business
Degree Type / Course of Study / Major

Degree Awarded?

¢ Yes ¢ No

Other schools / training completed:

Course Studied
Business Development
Hours Completed
48

Certificate Awarded?

¢ Yes ¢ No

Board and Interest

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Equal Employment Opportunity Advisory Council: Submitted

Seat Name

Community Representative

Have you ever attended a meeting of the advisory board for which you are applying?

¢ Yes ¢ No

Eric L Maldonado



If you have attended, how many meetings have you attended?

4

Please explain why you would like to serve on this particular board, commitee, or
commission.

To increase diversity of Contra Costa's labor force by working closely with community stakeholders and to
increase access to the BIPOC, Women-Owned Businesses, Veterans, and Disabled by assuring that they
have access to the counties contracting programs to help them build strong business that will create
stronger and more vibrant communities.

Qualifications and Volunteer Experience

I would like to be considered for appointment to other advisory boards for which | may be
qualified.

c Yes ¢ No

Are you currently or have you ever been appointed to a Contra Costa County advisory
board, commission, or committee?

c Yes ¢ No

List any volunteer or community experience, including any advisory boards on which you
have served.

| was the former President of the Hispanic Chamber of Commerce of Contra Costa County from 2009-
2010 and reappointed in 2012-2013 and worked closely with cities, chambers of commerce and
community groups throughout Contra Costa County from Pt. Richmond to the Community of Oakley and
the Monument Corridor in Concord. | have also served on the Richmond Community Foundation as a
corporate advisor and served on the CA State Chamber of Commerce Coalition of Minority groups by
working the California Black Chamber of Commerce and the Cal Asian Chamber and the CalVet.

Describe your qualifications for this appointment. (NOTE: you may also include a copy of
your resume with this application)

Community and Business Leader Business Management PR & Communication Specialist Bilingual in
English and Spanish

Upload a Resume

Conflict of Interest and Certification

Do you have a Familial or Financial Relationship with a member of the Board of
Supervisors?

c Yes ¢ No

Eric L Maldonado



If Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship:

Do you have any financial relationships with the County such as grants, contracts, or other
economic relations?

c Yes ¢ No

If Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship:

Please Agree with the Following Statement

| certify that the statements made by me in this application are true, complete, and correct to
the best of my knowledge and belief, and are made in good faith. | acknowledge and
undersand that all information in this application is publicly accessible. | understand that
misstatements and/or omissions of material fact may cause forfeiture of my rights to serve
on a board, committee, or commission in Contra Costa County.

¥ | Agree

Eric L Maldonado



C.24

Contra
To:  Board of Supervisors Costa
From: Karen Caoile, Director of Risk Management Cou nty

Date: March 7,2023

Subject: ACEEO Member Reappointment

RECOMMENDATION(S):
REAPPOINT Lara DeLaney to the Management Seat #1 on the Advisory Council on Equal Employment Opportunity's for a term ending

November 30, 2025, as recommended by the County Administrator.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

BACKGROUND:

The Advisory Council on Equal Employment Opportunity (ACEEO) was established in July 1991 to serve as an
advisory committee to the Board of Supervisors. The ACEEO assists with the implementation of the County's Equal
Employment Opportunities and Contracting Programs. The Council is composed of 13 members, and a Board
committee reviews nominations to all seats except those designated for County managers and labor unions. Terms of
office for seats reviewed by the Board Committee are three years.

The Board makes appointments to two distinct types of seats on its advisory bodies. The following process will be
followed for appointments to these two types of seats:

APPROVE |:| OTHER

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR I:' RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Action of Board On:  03/07/2023 |:| APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED |:| OTHER

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.
ATTESTED: March 7,2023

Monica Nino, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Contact: Antoine Wilson, 925-335-1455

By: , Deputy

ce:



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Type 1: Supervisorial District Appointments Applications may be delivered to either the Clerk of the Board or to the District Supervisor's
office. Applications received by a Supervisor's office are to be sent to the Clerk of the Board, and a copy is to be retained by the Supervisor's
office. The Clerk of the Board will ensure that the Supervisor has a copy of all applications originally filed with the Clerk of the Board.

Type 2: At Large/Countywide Appointments Applications are sent to the Clerk of the Board. The Clerk of the
Board will distribute the applications to the appropriate interviewer. With the exception of the Planning
Commission and the Treasury Oversight Commit<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>